William Biddlecombe Joe Dike Sam Artino Monty Tapp Mark Claus Matt Grieves Joel Hagy
Councilmember Councilmember Councilmember Mayor Vice-Mayor Councilmember  Councilmember

CITY COUNCIL — REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, September 13, 2022 @ 6:30 PM
City Council Chambers
417 Main Street
Huron, Ohio 44839

LIVESTREAM MEETING INFORMATION This regular meeting of Council will be conducted in person in Council
Chambers at Huron City Hall and live-streamed on the City of Huron's YouTube channel. The public is free to

observe and hear the discussions and deliberations of all members of City Council via the following link:
https.//www.youtube.com/channel/UCpRAV-AnmlA6lfukQzKakQg

VI.

Call To Order Moment of Silence followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

Roll Call of City Council

Approval of Minutes

lll.a

Minutes of the August 30, 2022 Council work session.

Audience Comments Citizens may address their concerns to City Council. Please state your name and

address for the recorded journal. (3-minute time limit)

Old Business

New Business

Vl.a

Vi.b

Vli.c

Vid

Vl.e

Ordinance No. 2022-48 (first reading) (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)

An ordinance authorizing the City Manager and the Service Director to enter into wholesale electric
agreements with American Municipal Power for the delivery of power/electricity to Huron Public
Power customers.

Ordinance No. 2022-50 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)

An ordinance amending Chapter 121 (Council) to add a new Section 121.03- Administrative Authority;
repealing and amending and restating Chapter 131 (City Manager); and repealing and amending and
restating Section 159.05- Normal Purchase Procedure and Section 159.06- Emergency Purchases of
Chapter 159 - Division of Purchasing.

Resolution No. 76-2022 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)

A resolution granting a request from St. Peter School for placement of signage in the median area
promotion their 5K and Fun Run event to be held on October 29, 2022.

Resolution No. 77-2022 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)

A resolution authorizing an agreement with ODOT pertaining to annual bridge inspections.
Resolution No. 78-2022 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)

A resolution authorizing Contract Modification No. 1 from OHM Advisors for additional engineering
design services relating to the Cleveland Road East Sidewalk Extension Project.



VII.

VIIL.

Xl.

City Manager's Discussion
Mayor's Discussion

For the Good of the Order
Executive Session(s)

Adjournment



CITY OF

RURGN

TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council

FROM: Stuart Hamilton , Service Director

RE: Ordinance No. 2022-48 (first reading) (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
DATE: September 13, 2022

Subject Matter/Background

The nature of electric contract purchasing is an immediate and volatile commodity. There have been times in the
past where Huron Public Power has missed out on advantageous pricing due to the lack of authority to act
immediately. This legislation will allow Huron Public Power to act in the best interests of its customers by locking
in pricing as it arises, by authorizing the City Manager and/or Service Director (with prior City Manager approval)
to enter in to agreement for contract power to distribute to our customers on behalf of the City. Council will
always be kept up to date via the managers report and regularly updated on pending purchases.

Financial Review
This legislation will allow the City to obtain timely and competitive electric rates in an effort to reduce/stabilize
electric costs for Huron Public Power customers.

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal legislative procedure, and is properly before you.

Recommendation
If Council is in agreement, a motion adopting Ordinance No. 2022-48 is in order.

Ordinance No. 2022-48 HPP City Manager Purchase Power.doc


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1552431/Ordinance_No._2022-48_HPP_City_Manager_Purchase_Power.pdf

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-48
Introduced by Joel Hagy

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER AND/OR THE SERVICE
DIRECTOR (WITH PRIOR CITY MANAGER APPROVAL) TO ENTER INTO
WHOLESALE ELECTRICITY AGREEMENTS WITH AMERICAN MUNICIPAL
POWER FOR THE DELIVERY OF POWER/ELECTRICITY TO HURON PUBLIC
POWER CUSTOMERS.

WHEREAS, the City of Huron, Ohio (the “City”) is a political subdivision organized
and existing pursuant to the laws of the state of Ohio;

WHEREAS, the City owns and operates Huron Public Power (“HPP”), a municipal
electric utility system, for the sale of electric power and associated energy for the benefit of its
citizens;

WHEREAS, in order to satisfy the electric power and energy requirements of HPP and
HPP’s customers, the City purchases power and energy from AMP, an Ohio non-profit
corporation, or purchases power arranged by AMP;

WHEREAS, the City has executed a Master Services Agreement (“MSA”) with AMP
which sets forth the general terms and conditions for the provision of power supply and other
services by AMP to the City;

WHEREAS, AMP, on an ongoing basis under the terms of the MSA, will negotiate with
one or more reputable and financially sound third-party power suppliers to enter into purchase
power agreement(s) (“PPAs”) for the purchase of electric power and/or energy for the benefit of
HPP’s electric utility customers; and

WHEREAS, City Council wishes to authorize the City Manager and/or the Service
Director (with prior City Manager approval) to enter into agreements with AMP on an ongoing
basis for the timely purchase of electric power and/or energy through PPAs between AMP and
third-party power suppliers, which will result in more beneficial market-based electricity prices
for HPP customers.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
HURON, OHIO:

SECTION 1. That the City hereby authorizes the City Manager and/or Service Director
(with prior City Manager approval) to enter into agreements with AMP for the purchase of
wholesale electricity for the benefit of HPP’s utility customers.

SECTION 2. That competitive bidding is not required for the City to purchase

power/energy from AMP to serve HPP’s customers, and that any such competitive bidding
requirements that might otherwise be applicable, are hereby waived.

17934243v1



SECTION 3. That City Manager and/or Service Director (with prior City Manager
approval) are authorized and directed to sign any certificates, statements, or other documents and
instruments and to take such actions as are, in the opinion of legal counsel to the City, necessary
or appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Ordinance. The City
Manager and/or Service Director (with prior City Manager approval) are further authorized to
take any actions on behalf of the City that are required or permitted to be taken by the City under
or pursuant to this Ordinance.

SECTION 4. 1t is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such
formal actions were in meetings open to the public in compliance with the law.

Monty Tapp, Mayor

ATTEST:

Clerk of Council

ADOPTED:

17934243v1



CITY OF

RURCN

TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council

FROM: Stuart Hamilton , Service Director

RE: Ordinance No. 2022-50 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
DATE: September 13, 2022

Subject Matter/Background

The City has been exploring methods and improvement across departments to enhance customer service and
increase efficiency when interacting with customers, residents, contractors and business owners. This legislation
aims to accomplish some of these objectives by reducing the types of transactions or requests that require
Council approval. As evidenced within the proposed ordinance, requests by individuals or entities to place
temporary signage in the median of State Route 6 between the walk-over bridge and Williams Street right of way
will no longer require Council approval. Agreements for the reasonable and limited use and access of City
property for placement of banners and signage, as set forth in Chapter 1129.06(w) can be approved or
disapproved by the City Manager after internal review by the planning and zoning department to ensure the
request meets the existing parameters of the signage code. In addition, individuals or entities looking to
temporarily stage materials or vehicles on City property (when there is no monetary consideration) will be able to
be reviewed and approved or disapproved by the City Manager. Of course, there will still be license agreements in
place between the parties to ensure those entities maintain insurance and return the site to its prior condition,
which will be drafted and approved by the Law Director. Please note, this ordinance does not relate to sale,
purchase or lease of real estate regardless of the level of monetary consideration. In summary, we are hoping to
develop more streamlined and customer-friendly processes that allow the City to conduct business more
effectively and quickly.

Financial Review
The matter has been reviewed, and there is no financial impact relating to this request.

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal administrative procedure and is properly before you.

Recommendation
If Council is in agreement with the request, a motion adopting Ordinance No. 2022-50 is in order.

Ordinance No. 2022-50 City Mgr Auth for Signs and Use of Public Property.docx
Ordinance No. 2022-50 Exhibit A Chapter 121.pdf
Ordinance No. 2022-50 Exhibit B Chapter 131.pdf
Ordinance No. 2022-50 Exhibit C Chapter 159.pdf


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1552402/Ordinance_No._2022-50_City_Mgr_Auth_for_Signs_and_Use_of_Public_Property.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1549662/Ordinance_No._2022-50_Exhibit_A_Chapter_121.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1549663/Ordinance_No._2022-50_Exhibit_B_Chapter_131.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1549664/Ordinance_No._2022-50_Exhibit_C_Chapter_159.pdf

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-50
Introduced by William Biddlecombe

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF HURON CODIFIED ORDINANCES TO
ADD A NEW SECTION 121.03- ADMINISTRATIVE AUTHORITY AND POWERS TO
CHAPTER 121 (COUNCIL); REPEALING AND AMENDING AND RESTATING
CHAPTER 131 (CITY MANAGER) INITSENTIRETY; REPEALING AND AMENDING
AND RESTATING SECTION 159.05- NORMAL PURCHASE PROCEDURE AND
SECTION 159.06- EMERGENCY PURCHASES OF CHAPTER 159 (DIVISION OF
PURCHASING); AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO:

SECTION 1. That Chapter 121 (Council) of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Huron
which currently reads as follows: (refer to Exhibit “A” attached), shall be and is hereby amended.

SECTION 2. That Chapter 121 (Council) of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Huron
is hereby amended to add a new Section 121.03 — Administrative Authority and Powers to read as
follows:

121.03 ADMINISTRATIVE AUTHORITY AND POWERS.
All members of Council and their staff shall:

(@) Recognize the Charter role of the Mayor, Council, and City Manager,
particularly in contracting, development projects, and incentives;

(b) Support the integrity of the City's development processes and promote public
trust by directing inquiries from developers related to financial assistance or land
use approvals to the City Manager's Office so that they can be handled uniformly
through transparent City administrative processes;

(c) Set City funding and appropriation priorities in an open, transparent, and
public manner; and

(d) Report, without undue delay, to the City Manager, Ohio Ethics Commission,
Law Director, Prosecutor, or other appropriate authority, conduct in the
performance of official duties that is reasonably believed to violate the law or
reasonably believed to violate any codes of conduct.

SECTION 3. That Chapter 131 (City Manager) of the Codified Ordinances of the City of
Huron, which currently reads as follows: (refer to Exhibit “B” attached), shall be and is hereby
repealed.

SECTION 4. That a new revised and restated Chapter 131 (City Manager) of the Codified
Ordinances of the City of Huron is hereby amended and restated to read as follows:



CHAPTER 131
City Manager

131.01 Administrative authority and powers.
131.02 Performing duties of Clerk of Council.

CROSS REFERENCES

Appointment; removal - see CHTR. §4.01, 4.04

Duties - see CHTR. §4.02

Absence or disability - see CHTR. §4.03

Relation to Council - see CHTR. 84.05

Personal interest in contract - see CHTR. 85.08

City Manager exempt - see CHTR. §8.02

Community Development Director - see ADM. 155.01
Administrative Services Director - see ADM. 157.02
City Manager to act as Purchasing Agent for the City - see ADM. 159.01 et
seq.

Normal Purchase Procedure - see ADM. 159.05
Emergency Purchase Procedure - see ADM. 159.06
Bond required - see ADM. 163.01

Manager to supervise urban renewal and redevelopment activities - see
ADM. 191.04 et seq.

131.01 ADMINISTRATIVE AUTHORITY AND POWERS.

(@) The City Manager shall have full authority to prescribe and enforce
administrative policy and procedure and to prescribe and enforce administrative
rules and regulations for all departments, divisions, officers and employees of the
City as the City Manager may deem necessary to the performance of the duties of
the City Manager and to the efficient operation of the entire City government.

(b) The City Manager shall have full authority to prescribe the use of various
forms and procedures for the conduct of the City's affairs. Further, the City Manager
shall prescribe and/or approve the use of various reports and forms for the various
departments, divisions, officers and employees, either regularly, or from time to
time, for the City Manager’s, the Mayor's or the Council's information and use.

(c) The City Manager may require the submission of regular or special reports
from any department, division, office, officer or employee to be used in the
administrative direction and control of the City.

(d) The City Manager shall have the power to make or delegate to department
heads, rules and regulations to govern management practices.

(e) The City Manager is authorized and directed to amend and modify existing
written agreements, and enter into and execute new written agreements by and on
behalf of the City, without the approval of the City Council for the purposes, and
subject to the limitations, set forth in Section 131.03.

(Ord. 2022-50. Passed 9-13-22.)



131.02 PERFORMING DUTIES OF CLERK OF COUNCIL.

The City Manager or the person(s) designated by the City Manager shall perform
the duties of Clerk of Council during the disability or temporary absence of the
Clerk. Such duties shall include those duties imposed upon the Clerk of Council by
Section 2.12 of the Charter, ordinances of the City and laws of the State, and the
authority to execute certificates in regard to transcripts submitted to bond counsel
to obtain approving opinions for the issuance of notes and bonds of the City.

(Ord. 2022-50. Passed 9-13-22.)

131.03 CITY MANAGER ACTIVITIES

(@) The City Manager, in their capacity as chief administrative and Safety
Services officer of the City, is hereby authorized and directed to take any and all
actions, including executing contracts for and on behalf of the City, without the
approval of the City Council, for the following purposes:

(1) Contracts for public improvements, provided that the expenditure per
occurrence or series of occurrences does not exceed the amount set forth in Section
159.05(a);

(2) Contracts necessitated by emergency circumstances, as set forth in Section
159.06;

(3) License and vendor agreements for the reasonable and limited and/or
incidental use and access of City property, including in and to the rights of way,
provided that the access is for limited purposes and the contract does not extend
beyond a period of one year;

(4) Agreements for the reasonable and limited use and access of City property
for placement of banners and signage, as set forth in Chapter 1129;

(5) Agreements and/or granting permission to permit maintenance, repairs and
replacements of infrastructure and/or improvements in the City right-of-way and/or
on City property that pertain to then-existing easements, rights-of-way, or other
conditions or encumbrances of record that grant property interests in and to City
property;

(6) Undertake any and all other expenditures, transactions, and all other
activities that serve to promote and permit the ongoing efficient daily operations
and functions of the City that the City Manager deems to be in the best interest of
the City and that, in the City Manager’s discretion, may reasonably be transacted
or undertaken without consent of the City Council, provided that the transaction
does not exceed the amount set forth in Section 159.05(a) per occurrence or series
of occurrences and the transaction will not extend beyond a period of one year
provided, however, that there shall be no monetary limitations or caps for
amendments to and modifications of existing written agreements, or entering into
and executing new written agreements by and on behalf of the City, for power
portfolio purchases pertaining to Huron Public Power and/or Huron Public Power
customers due to the ever-changing, and occasionally volatile, nature of the energy
markets.



(b) The City Manager shall not knowingly have any conflict of interest in
violation of the Ohio Revised Code in any contract entered into as City Manager
for and on behalf of the City.

(c) The City Manager is authorized to issue any and all permits or grant approvals
required or permitted by then-existing Ordinances, including but not limited to
permits for signage.

(Ord. 2022-50. Passed 9-13-22.)

SECTION 5. That Section 159.05—- Normal Purchase Procedure and Section 159.06—
Emergency Purchases of Chapter 159 (Division of Purchasing) of Chapter 159 of the Codified
Ordinances of the City of Huron, which currently read as follows: (refer to Exhibit “C” attached),
shall be and hereby are repealed in their entirety.

SECTION 6. That Section 159.05- Normal Purchase Procedure and Section 159.06-
Emergency Purchase of Chapter 159 (Division of Purchasing) of the Codified Ordinances of the
City of Huron, are hereby amended and restated to read as follows:

159.05 NORMAL PURCHASE PROCEDURE.

All purchases, other than emergency purchases or as otherwise provided in
Section 159.03, shall be made in the following manner:

(@) The City Manager is authorized to amend and modify existing written
agreements, and enter into and execute new written agreements by and on behalf of
the City for expenditures not to exceed Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars
($25,000.00) per occurrence or series of occurrences for any public improvement,
or the purchase or lease of equipment, materials, and supplies, or to obtain
professional or personal services or for any other lawful purpose, provided that a
current appropriation supports such expenditure and, provided further that there
shall be no monetary limitations or caps for amendments to and modifications of
existing written agreements, or entering into and executing new written agreements
by and on behalf of the City for power portfolio purchases pertaining to Huron
Public Power and/or Huron Public Power customers due to the ever-changing, and
occasionally volatile, nature of the energy markets. An expenditure exceeding
Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) per occurrence or series of
occurrences shall not be divided to bring it within the provisions of this section.
The City Manager shall notify Council of such expenditure at the next meeting of
Council by way of the City Manager’s Report or other method of written
communication (e.g. email).

(b) The City may expend up to Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) per
occurrence or series of occurrences with the approval of the City Manager or City
Manager’s designee, and the Director of Finance, to the extent there are
appropriations therefor, for any public improvement, or the purchase of equipment,
materials, or supplies, or to obtain professional or personal services or for any other
lawful purpose. The City Manager may designate approval to the Director of
Finance for purchases made up to Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000.00). These
purchases must be encumbered, and a purchase order issued prior to receipt of
services, materials or supplies and disbursement of funds.

4



(c) The City may expend between Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00)
per occurrence or series of occurrences and up to Fifty Thousand Dollars
($50,000.00) per occurrence or series of occurrences with the approval of the City
Manager, or City Manager’s designee, and the Director of Finance, to the extent
there are current appropriations therefor, upon the prior approval of a majority of
Council, which approval may be given by a motion and vote at any regular or
special meeting of Council. Authorization provided by Council shall only be
effective if all members of Council are provided a written explanation of the amount
and purpose of the proposed expenditure prior to said motion and vote. The City
Manager shall provide specifications to Council. Council may request the City
Manager or department heads to attempt to obtain at least two quotations, as part
of an informal bidding process. These purchases must be encumbered, and a
purchase order issued prior to receipt of services, materials or supplies and
disbursement of funds.

(d) All requests for the purchase of materials, supplies, or services shall come
from the department head involved.

(e) Requests for materials, supplies or services shall be addressed to the City on
a requisition form to be provided by the Office of the Director of Finance, or
electronically submitted through the Director of Finance's designated software. All
requests shall explicitly state the items or services desired.

(F) All requisitions shall be filed, approved, and stored in the Finance
Department, which may be done electronically. In accordance with Section 6.12
of the Charter, purchases shall be made by written purchase order signed by the
Purchasing Agent. Agreements for construction work shall be made by written
contract. Agreements for personal services shall be made by written contract or
appointment, signed by the City Manager, or City Manager’s designee, acting as
Purchasing Agent for the City.

(g) Purchase orders shall be on printed forms as prescribed by the City Manager
and the Director of Finance. They shall bear consecutive numbers as to the date of
issue.

(h) No purchase order or contract shall be valid as an obligation of the City
unless it bears a certificate of the Director of Finance that the estimated amount
thereof has been entered as an encumbrance in the City accounts against an
allotment based on a valid appropriation.

(i) After the approval of requisitions and after the certificate of the Director of
Finance has been signed, which may be electronically, stating that the funds are
available for such purchase from the proper fund, the original purchase orders shall
be issued to the vendor, supplier, or person rendering the required service.

(j) A second (carbon) copy of every purchase order shall be immediately posted
to the encumbrance ledger and such sum shall be subtracted from the respective
appropriate account. All second (carbon) copies or purchase orders shall be kept
in numerical filing order in the custody of the Director of Finance, unless retained
electronically.

(k) All vouchers and warrants for the disbursement of City funds shall bear the
purchase order number authorizing such expenditure when so applicable. If there



is a difference in the quoted purchase order price and the invoice or final price, such
difference shall be reconciled immediately with the encumbrance ledger, with such
explanation within the voucher as to difference in price as the Director of Finance
or City Manager may require or deem advisable.

() The City Manager, together with the Director of Finance, shall sign all
warrants, vouchers and checks or any contract involving the disbursement of City
funds, which may be done electronically.

(Ord. 2022-50. Passed 9-13-22.)

159.06 EMERGENCY PURCHASES.

(@) Emergency purchases, without recourse to requisition or purchase procedure,
may be made by certain authorized employees, including the City Manager,
Director of Finance, or a department head, when such emergency action is
necessary. Examples of such emergency situations would be in times of military or
civil disaster or during periods of the day or night when the required officials would
not be available to approve normal purchase procedure and when the unavailability
of such officials to approve such purchases would adversely affect the best interest
and the day-to-day operations of the City.

(b) When an emergency purchase is made by the City Manager or an authorized
employee(s) of the City, a written explanation of such purchase shall be made to
the Director of Finance within twenty-four (24) hours after such purchase is
negotiated or made. The Director of Finance shall subsequently prepare and sign a
purchase order for the emergency purchase, and it shall be filed in the manner
prescribed in Section 159.05.

(Ord. 2022-50. Passed 9-13-22.)

SECTION 7. 1t is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council

concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such
formal action were in meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal requirements,

including O.R.C. §121.22.

SECTION 8. That this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure

necessary for the immediate preservation of the public health, safety and general welfare of the
residents, and to ensure the sound fiscal administration of the City of Huron; WHEREFORE, this

Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

Monty Tapp, Mayor

ATTEST:

Clerk of Council

ADOPTED:




EXHIBIT "A"
CHAPTER 121

Council
121.01 Rules of Council.
121.02 Filling vacancies of Vice Mayor and Clerk of Council.

CROSS REFERENCES
Membership; term; vacancies - see CHTR. §2.01, 2.04, 2.05
Qualifications - see CHTR. §2.02
Salary - see CHTR. §2.06
Rules; journal - see CHTR. §2.07
Powers - see CHTR. §2.08
Meetings - see CHTR. §2.09
Clerk of Council - see CHTR. §2.12
City Manager performing duties of Council Clerk - see ADM. 131.02
Urban renewal action - see ADM. 191.08

121.01 RULES OF COUNCIL.

I. MEETINGS. The regular meetings of Council shall be held in the Council Chambers of the Municipal
Building at 6:30 p.m. on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each and every calendar month. Special meetings of
Council may be called by the Mayor or by any three members of Council by having the Clerk serve written
notice of the call of such meeting upon each member of Council and upon the Mayor, in person or by delivering
a copy thereof to the usual place of residence of such persons not less than twelve hours prior to the holding of
such meeting. Such notice shall specify the time and place of the holding of such meeting.

Regular work sessions open to the public shall be held in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building at
6:30 p.m. on the first and third Tuesday of each month, unless a special Council meeting has been called for
such day and time, as hereinabove provided, in which event the work session shall be convened immediately
following the adjournment of the special meeting.

The Clerk of Council shall, as soon as possible, and on or before January 1 annually thereafter, cause to be
published in a newspaper of general circulation in Huron, Ohio, a calendar of the regularly scheduled regular
meetings of Council and the regularly scheduled work sessions of Council to be held as hereinabove provided
during the succeeding twelve months.

The Clerk of Council shall maintain a current list of the names of the news media who have requested, in
writing, notification of special meetings of the Council, and in the event of the scheduling of such a special
meeting, the Clerk of Council shall, no later than twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of such special
meeting, advise the news media who have requested notification, stating the time, place and stated purpose of
the special meeting. Where practical, such notification shall be made in writing by first class mail addressed to
such news media at the addresses provided by them to the Clerk of Council. In emergency situations where
twenty-four hour notice is not possible, the Clerk of Council shall cause to be made oral notification to such
news media representatives by telephone and shall record the fact of such notice in a statement to be attached to
the minutes of the meeting.

Upon payment of an annual fee in the amount of ten dollars ($10.00) on or before January 1 of any year, any
person may receive notice of all meetings of the Huron, Ohio City Council.

(Ord. 2005-42. Passed 9-13-05.)

II. HOLIDAY MEETINGS. When any regular Council meeting or any regular work session falls due on a
legal holiday, or an election day, Council shall meet in regular session or regular work session on the day
following, at the place and time set forth in paragraph I above.

III. JOURNAL. The Clerk of Council shall keep a written journal of the proceedings of all regular and special
Council meetings, which journal shall be promptly recorded and open to public inspection. The journal shall
only reflect the general subject matter of discussions held in executive sessions. (Ord. 1975-64. Passed 11-24-
75.)



twelkener
Typewriter
EXHIBIT "A"


IV. OPEN PROCEEDING. The Mayor shall take the chair at the time appointed for Council to meet, and shall
immediately call the members to order; he shall then cause the journal of the preceding session to be read and
disposed of, unless otherwise ordered by Council. In the absence of the Mayor, the Vice Mayor of Council shall
perform such duties as are imposed upon the Mayor. In the absence of both the Mayor and Vice Mayor of
Council, Council may appoint a temporary chairman or President of Council.

V. PRESIDING OFFICERS. The Mayor shall preserve order and decorum, and confine members in debate to
the question. He may in common with any other member call any member to order who shall violate any of the
rules, and shall, when in the chair, decide all questions of order, subject to any appeal to Council on the demand
of two members. On such appeal there shall be no debate, but the member making the appeal may briefly state
his reasons for the same, and the presiding officer shall have the same right to a similar statement. The Director
of Law shall function as Parliamentarian when requested by the presiding officer.

VI. STANDING COMMITTEES. Standing committees shall be created by motion of any Council member
approved by a majority of the members of Council.

The Mayor shall appoint two members to each standing committee immediately following the approval of the
motion creating such committee.

The Mayor may at any time remove any member or members of any standing committee and appoint a new
member or members of such committee to serve in place of such member or members so removed. (Ord. 1962-
20. Passed 7-23-62.)

VII. ORDER OF BUSINESS. The business of the regular meetings of Council shall be transacted in the
following order:

Roll call;

Reading or disposal of the minutes;
Old business;

New business;

City Manager's discussion and reports;
Mayor's discussion;

. Adjournment.

The presiding officer of Council may at any time permit a member to introduce an ordinance, motion or
resolution out of the regular order for the same, unless the same be objected to by a majority of the members
present. (Ord. 1976-28. Passed 9-27-76.)

VIII. VOTING. Although it is the duty of each Council member to vote on each issue before the Council, a
member may abstain, without explanation, if the member states that there is a potential or actual conflict of
interest. There is no requirement that the member who abstains obtain the approval or consent of other Council
members before that abstention. Any member who refuses to vote on any question when the yeas and nays are
being taken, without recognizing the existence of a potential or actual conflict of interest will be deemed guilty
of contempt of Council, and may for such contempt be censured by a majority vote of Council.

Roll call voting may be used to place the vote of the individual members on the record. Roll call votes are
required to go into Executive Session for the limited purposes defined in Ohio R.C. 121.22 (G). There is no
requirement to vote to come out of an Executive Session.

(Ord. 2010-34. Passed 9-14-10.)

IX. REPORTS OF COMMITTEE. The report of any committee of Council or Municipal officer, upon matters
referred by Council, shall be made in writing and shall be accompanied by the original papers upon which such
report is based, unless otherwise ordered by Council.

If any matters referred by Council to any committee or officer, are not reported upon within two weeks from
the time of such reference, such matter shall be brought to the attention of Council by the Clerk, and Council
shall take such further action in the premises as it may deem best.

X. MOTIONS, WHEN DEBATABLE; WITHDRAWAL. All motions shall be placed before Council for its
consideration without the necessity for a second thereto.

When a motion is made, it shall be stated by the presiding officer before any debate shall be in order. Any such
motion, and any amendment thereto, may be withdrawn by the movers thereof at any time before decisions, if a
majority of the members then present shall agree thereto.

XI. DIVISION OF QUESTION. Any member may call for a division of the question, or the presiding office
may direct the same, and in either case, the same shall be divided if it comprehends questions so distinct that one
being taken away, the other will stand as an entire question for decision.

R N




XII. TO REFER; PRECEDENCE. When there is a question of referring a given subject to a standing
committee, or to a select committee, the question of reference to a standing committee shall be put first.
XIII. TO ADJOURN. The motion to adjourn shall always be in order, unless Council is engaged in voting,
and the motion to adjourn or to lay on the table, or for the previous question, shall be decided without debate.
XIV. SUBSIDIARY; ORDER OF PRECEDENCE. When a question or proposition is before Council, or under
debate, no motion shall be received except the following:
1. To adjourn;

2. To lay on the table;

3. For the previous question;

4. To postpone to a certain day;
5. To commit;

6. To amend;

7.

To postpone indefinitely.

The several motions shall have precedence in the order in which they are herein arranged.

XV. INTRODUCTIONS. Ordinances and resolutions shall be introduced only by members of the Council
present, except such ordinances and resolutions as may be presented to Council upon written recommendation of
some committee of Council or as provided by the City Charter.

XVI. REFERENCE TO COMMITTEE ON RULES AND ORDINANCES. All ordinances of a general or
permanent nature, except the ordinances for appropriation, before their final passage, may be referred to the
Committee on Rules and Ordinances. It shall be the duty of such Committee as to any ordinance so referred to it,
to carefully compare the same with all existing ordinances, upon the subject matter, and it shall report thereon
any discrepancy or conflict which may exist therewith. It shall also examine and report upon the form of such
discrepancy or conflict or to correct error in form. If any amendment shall be made to any ordinance after the
Committee has reported thereon the ordinance may before its final passage be recommitted to such Committee
for further report thereon.

XVII. REFERENCE TO COMMITTEES. Any report, resolution, ordinance or matter before Council for
consideration, except appropriation ordinances, before their final passage may be referred to a committee
specially appointed by the Mayor. Any such committee shall consider the matter thus referred to it and report
thereon to Council without unnecessary delay. Any matter referred to a committee may be taken from the hands
of such committee for consideration by a two-thirds vote of Council at any time prior to report of such
committee.

XVIII. APPEARANCES BEFORE COUNCIL. Any person, group or delegation wishing to appear before
Council at any regular or special Council meeting shall direct a letter to the Clerk of Council in such time that he
will receive it not less than forty-eight hours before the time of the Council meeting. The letter shall clearly state
the purpose of the appearance and the approximate number of persons who will appear in the group.

XIX. DEBATES AND DISCUSSIONS. No member of Council while Council is in session shall engage in
debate or discussion with any one save another member of Council or the Mayor or some person who has either
been granted by Council the privilege to address Council or is present at a Council meeting on invitation of
Council. All such debate or discussion shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order.

XX. HEARINGS. If any elector or electors or taxpayers of the City or any other person or persons desire a
hearing on any matters pending before Council, application may be made therefor to Council and Council may
by a two-thirds vote grant such public hearing by arranging for a special time and place therefor which must not
be during any regular or special meeting of Council.

XXI. RESIGNATION. The resignation of a member of Council shall not take effect until the same has been
accepted by a vote of the majority of the members exclusive of the person tendering the resignation.

XXII. ROBERT'S RULES OF ORDER. In the absence of any rule upon the matter of business, Council shall
be governed by Robert's Rules of Order.

XXIII. AMENDMENTS. These rules may be amended or altered or new rules adopted by a vote of the
majority of all the members elected at any meeting of Council, on the report of a committee to which the subject
has been referred at a previous meeting.

XXIV. SUSPENSION OF RULES. These rules or any of them may be temporarily suspended at any meeting
of Council, by a concurrent vote of the majority of all members elected, except when a greater number is
required by law or by these rules. The vote on such suspension shall be taken by the yeas and nays and entered




on the journal. In case any rule herein shall not have been adhered to by Council, the same shall be regarded as
having been suspended. (Ord. 1962-20. Passed 7-23-62.)

121.02 FILLING VACANCIES OF VICE MAYOR AND CLERK OF COUNCIL.
(a) A vacancy in the office of Vice Mayor shall be filled within thirty days by Council selecting from among
its members one to serve as Vice Mayor to fill such office for the unexpired term of his predecessor.
(b) A vacancy in the office of Clerk of Council shall be filled within thirty days, by a majority vote of the
members of Council, selecting from outside its membership one to serve as Clerk of Council to fill such office

for the unexpired term of his predecessor.
(Ord. 1970-26. Passed 4-27-70.)




EXHIBIT "B"

CHAPTER 131

City Manager
131.01 Administrative authority and powers.
131.02 Performing duties of Clerk of Council.

CROSS REFERENCES
Appointment; removal - see CHTR. §4.01, 4.04
Duties - see CHTR. §4.02
Absence or disability - see CHTR. §4.03
Relation to Council - see CHTR. §4.05
Contract interest - see CHTR. §5.08
City Manager exempt - see CHTR. §8.02
Community Development Director - see ADM. 155.01
Administrative Services Director - see ADM. 157.02
City Manager to act as Purchasing Agent for the City - see ADM. 159.01 et seq.
Bond required - see ADM. 163.01
Manager to supervise urban renewal and redevelopment activities - see ADM. 191.04
et seq.

131.01 ADMINISTRATIVE AUTHORITY AND POWERS.

The City Manager shall have full authority to prescribe and enforce administrative policy and procedure and to
prescribe and enforce administrative rules and regulations for all departments, divisions, officers and employees
of the City as he may deem necessary to the performance of his duties as City Manager and to the efficient
operation of the entire City government.

The City Manager shall have full authority to prescribe the use of various forms and procedures as he shall
approve for the conduct of the City's affairs. Further, he shall prescribe and/or approve the use of various reports
and forms for the various departments, divisions, officers and employees, either regularly, or from time to time,
for his, the Mayor's or the Council's information and use.

He may require the submission of regular or special reports from any department, division, office, officer or
employee to be used in the administrative direction and control of the City.

The City Manager shall have the power to make or delegate to department heads, rules and regulations to
govern management practices. (Ord. 1962-20. Passed 7-23-62.)

131.02 PERFORMING DUTIES OF CLERK OF COUNCIL.

The City Manager shall perform the duties of Clerk of Council during the disability or temporary absence of
the Clerk. Such duties shall include those duties imposed upon the Clerk of Council by Section 2.12 of the
Charter, ordinances of the City and laws of the State, and the authority to execute certificates in regard to
transcripts submitted to bond counsel to obtain approving opinions for the issuance of notes and bonds of the
City.

(Ord. 1976-37. Passed 11-22-76.)



twelkener
Typewriter
EXHIBIT "B"


EXHIBIT "C"
CHAPTER 159

Division of Purchasing
159.01 Creation and composition.
159.02 Agent’s general purchasing power.
159.03 Formal bidding requirements.
159.04 Manager may seek Council approval.
159.05 Normal purchase procedure
159.06 Emergency purchases.
159.07 Design professional selection law waived.

CROSS REFERENCES
Purchasing agency established - see CHTR. §5.05
Competitive bidding - see CHTR. §5.06
Contracts - see CHTR. §5.07 et seq.
Purchasing procedure - see CHTR. §6.12
Division established; head - see ADM. 157.01

159.01 CREATION AND COMPOSITION.

There is hereby created a Division of Purchasing which shall be composed of the Purchasing Agent as
established by Section 5.05 of the City Charter. The City Manager, or his designee, shall act as Purchasing Agent
for the City.

(Ord. 2010-16. Passed 5-25-10.)

159.02 AGENT'S GENERAL PURCHASING POWER.
Unless otherwise provided for in this chapter, the Purchasing Agent shall make all purchases and contracts for
the purchase of supplies, materials and equipment required by the City. (Ord. 2010-16. Passed 5-25-10.)

159.03 FORMAL BIDDING REQUIREMENTS.

(a) The City shall procure expenditures in accordance with the bidding requirements set forth in Ohio R.C.
735.05, except as otherwise provided in this Chapter or by separate ordinance of Council.

(b) In all circumstances, the Council reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive informalities in
bidding.

(c) In all cases of expenditures exceeding bidding threshold set forth in Ohio R.C. 735.05, the requirements
of division (a) of this Section may be waived by Council if the expenditure falls within one of the following
categories. In all cases, the purchase shall be approved by Council.

(1) Purchase from the State under Ohio R.C. 125.04 or 5513.01.

(2) Purchase from a governmental body.

(3) Purchase of professional service.

(4) Emergency purchases.

(5) Purchases incapable of being competitively bid, such as sole source providers.

(6) Purchases from another supplier upon equivalent terms, conditions, and specifications but a lower price
than is offered by the State under Ohio R.C. 124.04(c¢).

(d) In cases of public disaster, declared by Council resolution adopted by unanimous vote of those members
present, provided that a quorum is present, any purchase may be made in the open market.

(e) The City may prepare "blanket" certificates in accordance with ORC Section 5705.41, not to exceed
current appropriations and $100,000 for each "blanket" certificate.

(Ord. 2019-18. Passed 8-27-19.)

159.04 MANAGER MAY SEEK COUNCIL APPROVAL.
The approval of the City Council of any purchase, irrespective of the amount involved, shall be required when
ordered by the City Manager.
(Ord. 2010-16. Passed 5-25-10.)

159.05 NORMAL PURCHASE PROCEDURE.
All purchases, other than emergency purchases or as otherwise provided in Section 159.03, shall be made in
the following manner:


twelkener
Typewriter
EXHIBIT "C"


(a) The City may expend up to twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) with the approval of the City Manager
or his designee, and the Director of Finance, to the extent there are appropriations therefor, for
any public improvement, or the purchase of equipment, materials, or supplies, or to obtain
professional or personal services or for any other lawful purpose. The City Manager may
designate approval to the Director of Finance for purchases made up to three thousand dollars
($3,000.00). These purchases must be encumbered, and a purchase order issued prior to receipt
of services, materials or supplies and disbursement of funds.

(b) The City may expend between twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) and up to fifty thousand dollars
($50,000) with the approval of the City Manager, or his designee, and the Director of Finance, to
the extent there are current appropriations therefor, upon the prior approval of a majority of
Council, which approval may be given by a motion and vote at any regular or special meeting of
Council. Authorization provided by Council shall only be effective if all members of Council are
provided a written explanation of the amount and purpose of the proposed expenditure prior to
said motion and vote. The City Manager or Purchasing Agent shall provide specifications to
Council. Council may request the City Manager or department heads to attempt to obtain at least
two quotations, as part of an informal bidding process. These purchases must be encumbered,
and a purchase order issued prior to receipt of services, materials or supplies and disbursement of
funds.

(c) All requests for the purchase of materials, supplies, or services shall come from the department head
involved.

(d) Requests for materials, supplies or services shall be addressed to the Purchasing Agent on a requisition
form to be provided by the Office of the Director of Finance, or electronically submitted through
the Director of Finance's designated software. All requests shall explicitly state the items or
services desired.

(e) All requisitions shall be filed, approved, and stored in the Finance Department, which may be done
electronically. In accordance with Section 6.12 of the Charter, purchases shall be made by
written purchase order signed by the Purchasing Agent. Agreements for construction work shall
be made by written contract. Agreements for personal services shall be made by written contract
or appointment, signed by the City Manager, or his designee, acting as Purchasing Agent for the
City.

(f) Purchase orders shall be on printed forms as prescribed by the City Manager and the Director of Finance.
They shall bear consecutive numbers as to the date of issue.

(g) No purchase order or contract shall be valid as an obligation of the City unless it bears a certificate of the
Director of Finance that the estimated amount thereof has been entered as an encumbrance in the
City accounts against an allotment based on a valid appropriation.

(h) After the approval of requisitions and after the certificate of the Director of Finance has been signed,
which may be electronically, stating that the funds are available for such purchase from the
proper fund, the original purchase orders shall be issued to the vendor, supplier, or person
rendering the required service.

(1) A second (carbon) copy of every purchase order shall be immediately posted to the encumbrance ledger
and such sum shall be subtracted from the respective appropriate account. All second (carbon)
copies or purchase orders shall be kept in numerical filing order in the custody of the Director of
Finance, unless retained electronically.

() All vouchers and warrants for the disbursement of City funds shall bear the purchase order number
authorizing such expenditure when so applicable. If there is a difference in the quoted purchase
order price and the invoice or final price, such difference shall be reconciled immediately with the
encumbrance ledger, with such explanation within the voucher as to difference in price as the
Director of Finance or City Manager may require or deem advisable.

(k) The City Manager, together with the Director of Finance, shall sign all warrants, vouchers and checks or
any contract involving the disbursement of City funds, which may be done electronically.

(Ord. 2019-18. Passed 8-27-19.)

159.06 EMERGENCY PURCHASES.

Emergency purchases, without recourse to requisition or purchase procedure, may be made by the City
Manager, Director of Finance, Purchasing Agent, a department head, when such emergency action is necessary.
Examples of such emergency situations would be in times of military or civil disaster or during periods of the
day or night when the required officials would not be available to approve normal purchase procedure and when
the unavailability of such officials to approve such purchases would adversely affect the best interest and the
day-to-day operations of the City. When an emergency purchase is made by any of the authorized employee(s)
of the City, a written explanation of such purchase shall be made to the Purchasing Agent of the City within



twenty-four (24) hours after such purchase is negotiated or made. The Purchasing Agent and Director of Finance
shall subsequently prepare and sign a purchase order for the emergency purchase and it shall be filed in the
manner prescribed in Section 159.05.

(Ord. 2010-16. Passed 5-25-10.)

159.07 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL SELECTION LAW WAIVED.
(a) The provisions of Ohio R.C. 153.65 through 153.71 shall not be applicable in the City.
(b) In addition to meeting existing ordinances and Charter provisions as to contracts and purchases, the City
Manager is authorized to establish such further procedures as are deemed to be in the City's best interests for the

selection of design professionals.
(Ord. 2010-16. Passed 5-25-10.)




CITY OF

N

TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council

FROM: Matthew Lasko

RE: Resolution No. 76-2022 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
DATE: September 13, 2022

Subject Matter/Background

Resolution 76-2022 acknowledges the request from Rev. J. Douglas Garand of St. Peter Catholic Church for the use
of city streets, services and placement of signage in the median on Route 6, just west of the Center Street light
promoting its 5K and Fun Run to benefit St. Peter School improvements, which will be held on October 29th. The
banner would be no larger than 3' x 5' and would be removed at the conclusion of the race.

This will be the eighth year for this event. Details of the request remain the same as previous years with respect to
the race route, banner placement in the median and city services. St. Peter's will provide proof of insurance prior
to the event. The proposed date of the event has been cleared by the Parks & Recreation Operations Manager
with regard to any city event conflict and Chief Lippert remains involved with the organizers the year with regard
to safety services.

Financial Review
There is no financial impact relating to this request.

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal legislative procedure and is properly before you.

Recommendation
If Council is in support of the request, a motion adopting Resolution No. 76-2022 is in order.

Resolution No. 76-2022 St Peter Fun Run Banner.docx
Resolution No. 76-2022 Exhibit A St Peter Fun Run Banner.pdf


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1554135/Resolution_No._76-2022_St_Peter_Fun_Run_Banner.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1543195/Resolution_No._76-2022_Exhibit_A_St_Peter_Fun_Run_Banner.pdf

RESOLUTION NO. 76-2022
Introduced by Matt Grieves

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER, ON BEHALF OF THE CITY
OF HURON, OHIO, TO GRANT THE REQUEST OF SAINT PETER CATHOLIC
CHURCH ON BEHALF OF ST. PETER SCHOOL FOR THE USE OF CITY STREETS,
TRAFFIC CONTROL SERVICES, AND PLACEMENT OF ABANNER IN THE MEDIAN
AREA ADVERTISING THEIR 5K RACE AND FUN RUN TO BE HELD ON SATURDAY,
OCTOBER 29, 2022.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO:

SECTION 1. That the City Manager is authorized on behalf of the City of Huron, Ohio
to grant the request of St. Peter Catholic Church on behalf of St. Peter School for the use of city
streets, traffic control services, and the placement of an advertising banner in the median from
mid-September to October 29, 2022 relating to the St. Peter School 6™ Annual 5K and Fun Run,
said request to be substantially in the form of Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof.

SECTION 2. That this Council hereby finds and determines that all formal actions relative
to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council and that all
deliberations of this Council and of its Committees, if any, which resulted in formal action, were
taken in meetings open to the public in full compliance with applicable legal requirements,
including O.R.C. §121.22.

SECTION 3. That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and immediately
after its adoption.

Monty Tapp, Mayor

ATTEST:

Clerk of Council

ADOPTED:




g St. Peter Catholic Church | 419.433.5725

www.stpetershuron.org 430 Main Street
Huron, OH 44839

26 August 2022

Mr. Matthew Lasko & Huron City Council
417 Main Street
Huron, OH. 44839

Dear Mr. Lasko and Huron City Council Members,

On behalf of St. Peter School, I am asking the city of Huron to grant us permission to hold our 7th Annual
5K running race and fun run. We would like to hold this event on Saturday, 29 October 2022. This is
race is part of the "Huron 5K Series" of other worthwhile races in our beloved community.

Anyone from the community is welcome to participate, and we are always pleased to be hosting new
runners each year. The race will begin on Main Street, in front of St. Peter Church and run through the
streets of Huron. The race will begin at 9:00am, and by 10:30am we will be done and tearing things
down. We are also asking permission to put up a banner in the median on Route 6. just west of the Center
Street light. We would like to put this up mid-September to promote the race. The banner would be no
larger than 3' x 5" and would be removed at the conclusion of the race.

We understand that liability insurance is required as well. We are covered under the Catholic Diocese of
Toledo insurance policy and. once a date is confirmed, we can provide proof of insurance within a day's
notice.

Proposed course maps are attached. The course is the same that we used last year. and we will again work
closely with Chief Lippert to ensure the safety of all runners. In addition, if the city is agreeable in
allowing us to hold this race, we will ensure that all of the city's needs are met to limit our impact on city
services and traffic

We are hopeful that the city will approve this request again, and we look forward to another successful
race.

Thank vou for your consideration in this matter.
Sincerely,

% D@M y oy

Rev. J. Dougle C‘arand
Pastor



Spooktacular 5K Course

-
-
= ™
= o
= = %
= -~ y, ey
- v -
= g o <
& (8 o
= ~_ = o2t
2 r>d =
. -
- N a5
- =
<
T

AV paty ARy

Hﬂqd o 8 u'ﬁ«‘.lﬂ



CITY OF

RURCN

TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council

FROM: Stuart Hamilton , Service Director

RE: Resolution No. 77-2022 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
DATE: September 13, 2022

Subject Matter/Background

This resolution authorizes the City to continue its participation in the ODOT Bridge Inspection Program Services
Project for another 3-year term.

This program commenced in 2014 as ODOT launched a new program to help municipalities across the state in
achieving full compliance with FHWA's bridge metrics. The program includes, but is not limited to, bridge load
rating calculations, scour assessments, bridge inspections and fracture critical plan development (see Exhibit 1 -
Scope of Services attached hereto) The State assumes 100% of all costs for the Bridge Inspection Program Services
as described in the Consultant's Scope of Services Task Order Contract. The City would agree to pay 100% of the
cost of those features which are not included in the scope.

Administration has been satisfied with the contracted firms and annual bridge inspection reports completed since
the inception of the service and staff recommends continuation of this program.

In order to confirm participation, the State requires that the Consent Legislation be adopted at the next regular
Council meeting (October 13, 2022). For more information on the program, please refer to Exhibit 2 - Metrics for
the Oversight of the National Bridge Inspection Program attached hereto.

Financial Review
The matter has been reviewed, and there is no financial impact associated with participation in this program.

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal legislative procedure and is properly before you.

Recommendation
If Council is in support of the request, a motion adopting Resolution No. 2022-77 is in order.

Resolution No. 2022-77 Exhibit 1 ODOT Bridge Inspections.pdf
Resolution No. 2022-77 Exhibit 2 ODOT Bridge Inspections.pdf
Resolution No. 77-2022 ODOT Bridge Inspections.doc


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1544628/Resolution_No._2022-77_Exhibit_1_ODOT_Bridge_Inspections.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1544680/Resolution_No._2022-77_Exhibit_2_ODOT_Bridge_Inspections.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1554148/Resolution_No._77-2022_ODOT_Bridge_Inspections.pdf

General Engineering Services Scope of Services
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering
PID No. 117554

Scope of Services Meeting Date: **/**/**
Approved Final Scope of Services Minutes Date: **/**/**

GENERAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering
Scope of Services

The CONSULTANT may be required to perform the following services on a task order type
basis for bridges designated by regulation or by agreement as City or Village inspection
responsibility. Consultants must be prequalified for Level 1 Bridge Inspection services, which
may include but are not limited to the following:

Task 1 - Scour Tasks
Task 1A - Scour Critical Assessment
Task 1B - Scour Plan-of-Action

Task 2 - Load Rating Tasks
Task 2A - Field Measurements for Load Rating
Task 2B - Load Rating Calculations

Task 3 — AssetWise Structure Inventory and Review, Including New SNBI Fields

Task 4 — Inspection Procedures
Task 4A - Fracture Critical Plan
Task 4B — Underwater Inspection Procedures

Task 5 - Bridge Inspection
Task 5A — Routine Bridge Inspection
Task 5B — Fracture Critical Inspection
Task 5C — Underwater Dive Inspection

Services shall be conducted in accordance with the following:

e ODOT Manual of Bridge Inspection, Latest Version

e ODOT Bridge and Inventory Coding Guide, Latest Version

e ODOT Bridge Design Manual, Section 900), Latest Version

e Hydraulic Engineering Circulars 18, 20 and 23

e The Manual for Bridge Evaluation, Third Edition 2019 interim with revisions, AASHTO

1



General Engineering Services Scope of Services
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering
PID No. 117554

Publication

e Bridge Inspector's Reference Manual, FHWA NHI Publication Number: 12-049,
Publication Year: 2012

e Underwater Bridge Inspection, FHWA Publication Number: FHWA NHI-10-027,
Publication Year: 2010

The CONSULTANT shall maintain a project cost accounting system that will segregate costs
for individual task orders. The invoicing progress reports shall be detailed enough to show the
breakdown of each assigned structure indicating the status of all subtasks. Completion of the
individual subtasks in necessary for reimbursement credits.

The duration of the agreement will be twelve (12) months from the authorization date of the
agreement.

The Department will be performing an annual Quality Assurance Review (QAR) for each
selected consultant in accordance with Manual of Bridge Inspection to ensure accuracy and
consistency of the inspection and documentation in AssetWise. This typically includes an
office and field review.

The project will be divided into four (4) sub-projects (SP). A CONSULTANT will be selected
for each sub-project. Municipalities opted into the previous inspection program will have the
option to renew their legislation. Municipalities with population greater than 50,000 people
are excluded from the program. The sub-projects have the following general geographic
areas, category characteristics, and maximum contract values for the municipalities with
municipal inspection responsibility obtained from AssetWise data as of July 2022.

Project: SP01 - District (1, 2, &3), Total Structures = 485*

Type L=<20’ 20'<L=<60 60' < L =<200' L > 200’ Total
Single Span 192 178 26 0 396
Multi-Span 24 20 31 14 89
Culvert 119 29 1 0 149
Truss 0 1 3 0 4
Fracture Critical 0 0 2 0 2
Inspection

Underwater Inspection 0 0 0 0 0
Load Rating** 108 99 29 7 243

* Level 1 Bridge Inspection structures
** Tasked as budget allows w/priority for NBI bridges with many BrR updates




Project: SP02 - District

General Engineering Services Scope of Services
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering
PID No. 117554

4, 11, &12), Total Structures = 392*

Type L=<20 20' <L =<60 60' < L =< 200’ L > 200' Total
Single Span 127 126 35 0 288
Multi-Span 22 25 37 20 104
Culvert 84 40 1 0 125
Truss 1 2 6 0 9
Fracture Critical 0 3 0 3
Inspection
Underwater Inspection 0 0 0 0 0
Load Rating** 75 76 36 10 197
* Level 1 Bridge Inspection structures
** Tasked as budget allows w/priority for NBI bridges with many BrR updates
Project: SP03 - District (5, 6, &10), Total Structures = 515*
Type L=<20 20' <L =<60 60' < L =< 200’ L > 200' Total
Single Span 189 206 40 0 435
Multi-Span 11 11 37 21 80
Culvert 111 87 4 0 202
Truss 0 7 0 7
Fracture Critical 0 0 7 1 8
Inspection
Underwater Inspection 0 0 0 0 0
Load Rating** 80 87 31 8 259
* Level 1 bridge inspection structures
** Tasked as budget allows w/priority for NBI bridges with many BrR updates
Project: SP04 - District (7, 8 &9), Total Structures = 508*
Type L=<20 20'<L=<60 60' < L =< 200' L > 200' Total
Single Span 177 157 36 1 371
Multi-Span 29 45 49 14 137
Culvert 126 85 3 0 214
Truss 0 0 7 1 8
Fracture Critical 0 1 4 1 6
Inspection
Underwater Inspection 0 0 0 0 0
Load Rating 103 101 43 8 255

* Level 1 bridge inspection structures
** Tasked as budget allows w/priority for NBI bridges with many BrR updates

3




General Engineering Services Scope of Services
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering
PID No. 117554

Please note that the total number of structure types is estimated based on current AssetWise
data queries, and it may be adjusted when tasks are assigned in the future which may
include newly found orphan bridges. The estimated annual contract price value for each sub-
project is as follows:

SP01 $560,000
SP02 $530,000
SP03 $570,000
SP04 $590,000

DBE Participation:

Project Goal
SPO1 10%
SP02 0%
SPO03 0%
SP04 0%

CONSULTANT shall clearly designate in the letter of intent the SP(s) they wish to be
considered for.

Three (3) copies of the letter of intent shall be submitted. The letter of intent shall
demonstrate that the CONSULTANT has a clear understanding of the scope of services.



General Engineering Services Scope of Services
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering
PID No. 117554

Price Proposal Due Date: **/**[**

UNDERSTANDING

1. Inspections shall be completed by firm’s full-time staff prequalified with ODOT for Level 1
bridge inspection according to the Manual of Bridge Inspection.

2. Task order are intended for maintaining compliance with the FHWA 23-Mertics, Ohio
Revised Code, and ODOT policy manuals. Deadlines set by the task orders shall be
respected.

3. All reports and records compiled under this agreement shall become the property of the
City or Village and shall be housed in the City or Village. ODOT shall receive an electronic
copy of plans, analysis files, reports and other items mentioned below.

a) CONSULTANT shall perform all applicable updates to ASSETWISE with new or
revised information for structure inventory and appraisal data, inspections, scour,
fracture critical members, and load ratings.

b) CONSULTANT shall submit copies of all reports and calculations electronically, or
in hard copies when requested, to the City or Village for inclusion in their bridge
records.

c) This includes, as applicable, a printed copy of the inspection report, Scour Plan-of-
Action, Fracture Critical Plan, load rating report, gusset plate analysis, inspection
procedures, and field measurement notes, digital pictures as well as a reproducible
digital data file (.pdf, .doc, .xml, and .xIs formats).

4. Copies of all transmittal letters and emails related to this Task Order shall be submitted to
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering.

a) When required, CONSULTANTS shall locate the original construction plans, as-
built, and shop drawings from archive locations specified by the municipality and
upload them onto ASSETWISE.

Services to be furnished by CONSULTANT may include:

TASK 1 - SCOUR TASKS

Task 1A — Scour Critical Susceptibility NBIS Item 113) - The CONSULTANT shall
refer to the most recent ODOT Manual of Bridge Inspection. Deliverables include field
notes, a completed Scour Critical Assessment Checklist as per Appendix | of the 2014
Manual of Bridge Inspection, and any other reference material needed for the bridge
owner to properly maintain their bridge files. Channel photos or cross sections maybe
tasked under this item if assigned. Please use the latest scour assessment form.



General Engineering Services Scope of Services
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering
PID No. 117554

Task 1B - Scour Plan-of-Action - The CONSULTANT shall refer to the most recent
ODOT Manual of Bridge Inspection Appendix H for the scope of this task.
Deliverables include a completed Scour Plan-of-Action, field notes, calculations, and
any other reference material needed by bridge owner to maintain bridge files.

TASK 2 — LOAD RATING TASKS

Task 2A - Field Measurements for Load Rating - Should no plans exist or if
additional information is required, each main member shall be field measured for load
rating. The condition of the member should be noted on the field documentation. All
measurements shall be included in the load rating report.

Task 2B - Load Rating Calculations — A bridge carrying vehicular traffic shall be
rated to determine the safe load carrying capacity. The CONSULTANT shall review
existing bridge plans and inspection reports and other inspection information such as
photographs and estimates of section loss for bridge members and connections. The
analysis for existing structures shall be performed for AASHTO HS20-44 [MS 18]
(truck, lane, & military) loading for both inventory and operating levels, and for the four
Ohio Legal Loads including the special hauling vehicles (2F1, 3F1, 4F1, and 5C1,
SU4, SU5, SU6, SU7, Type 3, Type 3S2, Type 3-3, NRL, EV2, and EV3) at operating
level. The CONSULTANT shall try to complete the load rating analysis utilizing BrR
(Virtis) at first. Hand-calculations or Spreadsheets if BrR is not applicable. The BrR
analysis file, other load rating files, and the latest BR100 shall be included with the
submittal to OSE.

The inventory and operating ratings shall be coded as per the most recent version of
the ODOT Bridge Inventory Coding Guide. Update ASSETWISE Inventory with the
load rating results and upload BR100 pdf file.

The electronic deliverable shall include if applicable an Excel spreadsheet or other
files used for analysis for each bridge which shall include the member areas, member
capacities both with and without section loss, influence lines (can be the ordinates or
graph of the lines), dead loads and dead load stresses in members, live loads and live
load stresses in members for all truck loadings and the load ratings of the members.
Truck loadings to be used for the ratings are specified in BDM Section 900.

The Load Rating Report shall be prepared by a registered or non-registered engineer,
and it shall be checked, signed, sealed and dated by an Ohio Registered Professional
Engineer.

The Load Rating Report shall explain the method used to calculate the load rating of
each bridge.

AASHTO Load Factor Rating (LFR) shall be utilized for all bridges not designed by
Load and Resistance Factor Design. AASHTO Load and Resistance Factor Rating
(LRFR) shall be utilized for all structures designed for HL93 loading starting October
2010.

6



General Engineering Services Scope of Services
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering
PID No. 117554

Load Rating Report Submittal to the City or Village shall include:

a. Two (2) printed copies and one electronic pdf copy of the Load Rating Report
for each bridge.

b. Final summary of inventory and operating ratings for each member and the
overall ratings of the structure shall be presented for each live load truck. An
acceptable format is ODOT form BR-100.

c. Analysis program input files. Both input and output files shall be submitted when
programs other than BrR or spreadsheets are used.

d. All calculations related to the load rating.

e. If applicable, the weight limits posting recommendations including a copy of the
standard posting sign; such as R12-1 (24” x 30”), R12-H5 (30” x 48”), and R12-
H7 (30" x 30”).

TASK 3 — ASSETWISE STRUCTURE INVENTORY AND REVIEW

The scope of this task includes a limited review of the structure inventory data in the
ODOT ASSETWISE. In general, the CONSULTANT shall review specific existing
ODOT bridge inventory records (as provided by the City and approved by ODOT) of
the designated bridge. The CONSULTANT may download the inventory report, which
contains inventory data for each bridge on file with ODOT from the ODOT website.
The CONSULTANT shall verify this data and determine if the ODOT ASSETWISE
structure file information needs to be updated on the system. If no changes are
necessary, then no ASSETWISE inventory needs to be filled out. If changes are
necessary, the scope of this task shall also include completing and filing inventory
updates (and supplements, as needed) in ASSETWISE. The CONSULTANT shall
refer to the ODOT Office of Structural Engineering Inventory and Coding Guide of
ASSETWISE for inventory coding details. In 2023, ODOT will start the transition
toward SNBI, the consultants shall fill out all empty fields for this purposes as
communicated by OSE.

TASK 4 — INSPECTION PROCEDURES

Task 4A - Fracture Critical Plan — A Fracture Critical Member Plan and inspection
procedure shall be developed and updated. For more details, refer to Chapter 4:
Inspection Types in the Manual of Bridge Inspection. It shall include:

1. Sketches of the superstructure with locations of all fatigue and fracture prone
details identified.
a. Use framing plan or schematic with detail locations labeled and a legend
explaining each labeled item on the scheme.
b. Use an elevation view for trusses.

7



General Engineering Services Scope of Services
Central Office, Office of Structural Engineering
PID No. 117554

c. Classify similar fatigue/fracture prone details as types (e.g. end of partial
cover plate).
2. Atable or location of important structural details indicating:
Type of detail (e.g. end of partial cover plate, short web gap, etc.)
Location of each occurrence of detail
AASHTO Fatigue Category of detail
Identify retrofits previously installed

Qo oo

3. Risk Factors Influencing the inspector access.

Photos and sketches shall be properly referenced. The CONSULTANT shall refer to
the most recent ODOT Manual of Bridge Inspection for additional details on the scope
of this task.

Task 4B — Underwater Inspection Procedures — An underwater inspection procedure shall
be developed. For more details, refer to Chapter 4: Underwater Inspections in the
Manual of Bridge Inspection. Please note that ODOT has recently revised the format
of the procedures file. The diving team shall fill out or update the latest form and
upload it on ASSETWISE prior to performing the actual dives. Please contact OSE for
a copy of a blank form if not uploaded on ASSETWISE at the time.

TASK 5 - BRIDGE INSPECTION

Task 5A — Routine Bridge Inspection (ASSETWISE Input) - Perform a routine field
inspection of the structure to determine the general condition. The CONSULTANT
shall refer to the most recent ODOT Manual of Bridge Inspection for additional details
on the scope of this task. Section 1111 of the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 215t
Century Act (MAP-21) modified 23 U.S.C.144, requires Ohio to report bridge element
level data for NBIS bridges on the National Highway System (NHS) to FHWA. A
condition rating or element level inspection will be assigned. This task includes
Condition Rating Inspection for non-NBI structures, Condition Rating Inspection for
NBI structures, and Element Level Inspection for NBI classified as NHS. The
consultant shall probe the channel around the footing in water to determine depth of
scour and report the date in AssetWise.

Task 5B — Fracture Critical Inspection - Perform a fracture critical field inspection of
fracture critical items. The CONSULTANT shall update the FCM inspection procedure
with current photos and descriptions. The CONSULTANT shall refer to the most recent
ODOT Manual of Bridge Inspection for additional details on the scope of this task.

Task 5C — Underwater Dive Inspection_— Perform Underwater/ In-Water inspection
of substructure units according to the cycle shown in ASSETWISE. Emergency
underwater inspection may arise for specific structures over the duration of the
contract period. Work shall be done in accordance with the reference manuals and
inspection procedure. Scour risk shall be evaluated after field and data collection.

8



Q

US.Department
of Transportation

NBIS Oversight Program

Federal Highway
Administration

HIBS-30

Metrics for the Oversight
of the National Bridge
Inspection Program

NBIPOT

May 2017

ToC



NBIP Metrics Contents rev 5/1/17

National Bridge Inspection Program Metrics

a1 oo (U ol o] o IR 3
NBIP IMELFICS GIOSSAIY ...ecuviivieiieeiieetieeteesteeeeste et e e s teeste et e s teeste e s e s beesteessesbeesaeeseesaaesbaaneesreeseeneenneeseas 4
Metric #1: Bridge inSPection OrganiZation.............c.civeiiiiieieeie e se e se et sre e sraenne s 5
Metric #2: Qualifications of personnel — Program Manager...........cccoevveieiieieeiieieesesieeseese e seesnes 8
Metric #3: Qualifications of personnel — Team Leader(S) .......cocevvevveieereeiieiiesie e 10
Metric #4: Qualifications of personnel — Load Rating ENGINEer ...........ccccoevveveiieiiece e 13
Metric #5: Qualifications of personnel — UW Bridge Inspection DIVEr .........cccccevvivevveieceenieennn, 15
Metric #6: Inspection frequency — Routine — LOWer risk Dridges........ccccoveveviieieeiesiiese e 17
Metric #7: Inspection frequency — Routine — Higher risk bridgesS.........cccovvvivevveienieeie e 22
Metric #8: Inspection frequency — Underwater — Lower risk Dridges ........cccooevveveiieeriveiesecsieenenn 24
Metric #9: Inspection frequency — Underwater — Higher risk bridges..........ccccovvevevieiivciciieesieennn, 26
Metric #10: Inspection frequency — Fracture Critical Member...........ccccoveviiiievecicieceee e 28
Metric #11: Inspection frequency — FreqUENCY CIIEITA .........ccviiererieriiiesisie e 30
Metric #12: Inspection procedures — Quality INSPECTIONS........cccoiveiiiiiiiinireeeee e 32
Metric #13: Inspection procedures — Load RALING .........cccvriiiiiiieiiiesereseses e 38
Metric #14: Inspection procedures — POSt OF RESIICT .........coviiiieiiieiciesee e 43
Metric #15: Inspection procedures — Bridge FIleS ... 46
Metric #16: Inspection procedures — Fracture Critical Members..........ccccooveviiiiiciic i, 49
Metric #17: Inspection procedures — UNAEIWALET ...........coouiiiiiieriiie e 52
Metric #18: INSPECLION PrOCEAUIES — SCOUT.......civiiiiirieiteeiieiesieesiesteesteesie et estesseesbeesbesseesreeseeenee e 55
Metric #19: Inspection procedures — COMPIEX Bridges........ccovveiiiiriiiiiiie e 58
Metric #20: Inspection procedures — QC/QA ... oo 61
Metric #21: Inspection procedures — Critical FINAINGS.........cccovveiiiiieiieir e 64
Metric #22: Inventory — Prepare and MaiNtain ............cccveviiiieiieie e 67
Metric #23: Inventory — Timely Updating 0f Data ...........c.ccccvveieiieiieie e 71

NBIP Metrics Page 2 of 72 ToC



NBIP Metrics Introduction rev 5/1/17

Introduction

This document provides guidance and direction to FHWA Division Bridge Engineers in performing
NBIP compliance reviews of State and Federal agency bridge safety inspection programs. It
contains the 23 metrics assessed for compliance reviews under the National Bridge Inspection
Standards (NBIS) at 23 CFR Part 650, Subpart C. This document supersedes the prior Metrics for
the Oversight of the National Bridge Inspection Program, dated April 1, 2013.

The format of this document remains the same as the previous version, with each metric definition
and requirements listed on one page, followed by a commentary section for each to clarify the
metric requirements. The electronic version includes links to other important resources, indicated
by blue text.

Further FHWA guidance available on the National Bridge Inspection Program (NBIP) SharePoint
site will assist reviewers in performing the compliance reviews, primarily The NBIP Compliance
Review Guidance and the BPM Chapter 2 Draft Final 5-1-2017 from the Structure Discipline’s
Bridge Program Manual. The former contains background and information on the development of
the review process and explains the review process generally. The latter document further details
how to address the compliance issues determined, such as the requirements of Plans of Corrective
Actions, Improvement Plans, and other Non-Compliance issues.

NBIP Metrics Page 3 of 72 ToC



NBIP Metrics Glossary

Acronyms and terms used in this document

§ v COMPIIANCE o C
S T Substantial COMPIANCE ......ccccveviiiiieieiicee e SC
g—io NON-COMPIANCE ......cocuiiiieeeeieee ettt ettt sttt re st st et se et st tesenn s NC
S Conditional COMPHANCE .....coiviiiiiie et CcC
% v ASSESSMENT LEVEL ..o AL
G Minimum ASSESSMENt LEVEL ..o Min-AL
§ 9 INntermediate ASSESSMENT .......cviiieieiieie ettt esreeeeenes Int-AL
< IN-DEPLh ASSESSIMENT ......c.viiiiiiiiicieeie st sre e InD-AL
AASHTO Manual for Bridge Evaluation ............ccccecevenne. AASHTO Manual or MBE
SharePoint Metric Assessment Reporting Tool (FHWA NBIP tool)................... SMART

Bridge Safety ENgineer (FHWA) ......oo oo BSE
Continuing EAUCAtioN UNIt..........cccoiiiiiieiic e CEU

Division Bridge Staff FEVIEWET ..........ccviiiiiieieieries s reviewer

Federal Highway AdminiStration.............cccevviiiieeie i FHWA

FHWA Headquarters Bridge OffiCe ........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiceeee e HIBS

Fracture Critical MEMDET.........coi i FCM
IMPrOVEMENT PIAN.......oiiiii e IP

Load and Resistance Factor Rating (method)...........cccooveveviiiii e, LRFR

2 Load Factor Rating (MEethod).........ccooeiiiinininieeee e LFor LFR
3 L0ad RAtING ENGINEET ......cvcvivieieieieceeececececececeeesee e n s LRE
o Metric # ASSESSMENT REPOI .......civiiiiiiieiieieiesie e MAR#
S National Bridge INSPECtion Program .........c.cccuevviieiieeiesie e se e sie e NBIP
= National Bridge InSpection Standards ............coervreririniieiecse e, NBIS
2 National Bridge INVENTOIY .........ccviiiiiiiiecie e NBI
2 National HiGhWay INSHHULE ...............oveeeeeeeeseeseeeseeeseesee s NHI
© National HIghWay SYSEEM .........cccciiiiiiiiiieiccctecee et NHS
2 INOE T0 BXCEEM ...ttt bttt bbbt bbb n e NTE
o) P1an Of ACHION (SCOU) ...v.vviieeiieceeisiee ettt es sttt es sttt en sttt es s e POA
Plan Of COrreCtiVe ACLION ......coovviiiiie et nne e PCA
Professional ENQINEET .........ccviiiiieiee ettt sas e te e re e e sreenbe s PE

Program ManNAgEN ...........ooiiiiiiiiee e PM

QUAITEY ASSUFANCE ... .eveeeeeiteeiteeieeteesteeste et e steeste st esteeteaseestaesteaseesteeneaseesseebesneesraeneeanes QA

QUANTILY CONLIOL ... e sbe e rre e sbeeaaee s QC
Specialized Hauling VERNICIE..........coveiieeccce e SHV

State OF FEAEral AQENCY .....eiiieiiiie et eneas State
Structure Inventory and APPraisal.........c.ccoveeiieieeie s SI&A

LTS T (=T o LT RSP STPRP TL
UNGBIWALET ...ttt bbb bbbttt bbb e sbe s uw

NBIP Metrics Page 4 of 72 ToC



Metric #1: Bridge inspection organization rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.307 — Bridge inspection organization

An organization is in place to inspect, or cause to inspect, all highway bridges on public roads.
Organizational roles and responsibilities are clearly defined and documented for each of the

2 following aspects of the NBIS: policies and procedures, QC/QA, preparation and maintenance
P of a bridge inventory, bridge inspections, reports, and load ratings.
G e Functions delegated to other agencies are clearly defined and the necessary authority is
established to take needed action to ensure NBIS compliance.
e A program manager (PM) is assigned the responsibility for the NBIS.
Population: Not applicable.
Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:
e The organization is in place and effective as indicated by assessment of the other 22 metrics.
¢ Organizational roles and responsibilities are clearly defined and documented.
o Delegated functions are clearly defined with the necessary authority established.
«» * Responsibility for the NBIS is assigned to a PM.
% Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:
j e The organization is in place and effective as indicated by assessment of the other 22 metrics;
e minor deficiencies in the organization exist but do not adversely affect the overall
%’_ effectiveness of the program and are isolated in nature.
£ e Organizational roles and responsibilities are clearly defined and documented; isolated
S deficiencies exist but do not adversely affect the overall effectiveness of the program.
e Delegated functions are defined with authority established to resolve safety issues.
e Responsibility for the NBIS is assigned to a PM.
Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria are not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).
Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:
e Monitor PCA if in effect.
e Assess based on previous review results, the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness of the
~ bridge inspection program, and from the current assessment of the other metrics.
< Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:
= o Verify that responsibility for the NBIS is assigned to a PM, and that documented
& organizational roles, responsibilities, and delegation procedures exist as applicable.
T'_, o If functions are delegated, assess effectiveness of the process through interview of PM and
S some individuals with delegated functions.
% o Assess overall effectiveness of organization through assessment of other metrics and
2 interview of PM.
<

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

e Division InD-AL — In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

¢ National InD-AL - review in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 5 of 72 ToC



Metric #1: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: This metric determines if the State or Federal Agency (State) has an appropriate
organization in place, and if the organization is effective as indicated in part by assessment of the other
metrics. Therefore, this metric may not be fully assessed until the remaining metrics are fully
assessed.

Phrases in italics below are repeated from the metric language, with further explanation provided.

Criteria: The phrase ‘Functions delegated to other agencies are clearly defined’” means each State
office, District office, contractor, or other entity must be given clear direction for assigned or
delegated roles or tasks. For example, a State district office with a delegated PM and inspection teams
must understand the extent of their duties and how they are communicated and relate to the main PM
in the central office.

The phrase “...the necessary authority is established to take needed action to ensure NBIS
compliance’ means the organization must have agreements with other owners to establish the proper
authority necessary to ensure the NBIS is carried out correctly. The State is highly encouraged to
establish such agreements in writing. An example of inadequate authority is a State law that prevents
proper posting of bridges; this would be considered a compliance issue for Metric 1.

Compliance levels: The term Safety issues are those related to bridge closure, posting, critical
findings, and overdue inspections. For C, the phrase ‘necessary authority established’ is inclusive of
these safety issues and all other aspects of delegated functions. For SC, the ‘authority established “for
these safety issues is a minimum.

If other metrics are non-compliant, conduct a careful evaluation to determine whether those non-
compliance issues stem from deficiencies in the organizational structure itself. If so, then a finding of
SC or NC is appropriate for this metric. This is not directly related to the number of metrics in NC or
CC, but whether issues are caused by deficiencies in the organization. Another consideration is if
existing PCAs are on schedule, and if not, whether the reason stems from organizational issues.

When inspection staff is not made aware of key components of organizational roles and
responsibilities, this can result in inconsistencies in application of QA procedures. In such cases the
metric should be considered SC due to organizational deficiency.

Another example of an organization deficiency is when a PM is assigned the responsibility for the
NBIS, but with limited authority to ensure delegated agency functions are carried out due to
conflicting local laws or policies. The PM has implemented an otherwise good policy to place load
posting signs within a specified number of days of a load rating determination, but the bridge owner
refuses to post despite repeated attempts by the PM to convince the bridge owner, and the PM is
prohibited from posting the bridge directly. In this case the metric is considered NC due to the safety
implications.

Assessment levels: At the Min-AL, maintain knowledge and awareness of the programs areas each
year to a reasonable degree, through discussion with the PM or others, and remain aware of changes in
key personnel or program policies that may affect each metric. The knowledge and awareness from
the Min-AL informs whether to perform further review at the Int-AL or InD-AL.

At the Int-AL, consider interviews with individuals who have been delegated PM functions for one or
more agencies, districts, consultants, etc., represented in those bridges selected for field review under
Metric #12.

NBIP Metrics Page 6 of 72 ToC



Metric #1: Commentary rev 5/1/17

Background/ changes for PY 2018: Minor clarifications to wording of metric and addition of
commentary to improve clarity. In-D updated for this and all metrics to provide more flexibility to
Divisions in further assessment of the metric as necessary.

NBIP Metrics Page 7 of 72 ToC



Metric #2: Qualifications of personnel — Program Manager rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.309 (a) — Program Manager and 650.313 (g) QC/QA

The Program Manager (PM) must have the following qualifications:

o
§ e Professional engineer registration or 10 years of bridge inspection experience;
'5 e Successful completion of FHWA approved comprehensive bridge inspection training; and
e Completion of periodic bridge inspection refresher training according to State policy.
Population: The individual designated as PM.
Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:
e The PM has the required qualifications.
e The PM has completed periodic bridge inspection refresher training according to State policy.
(%)
% Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:
-1 e The PM has the required qualifications, except a newly designated PM has not completed
§ comprehensive bridge inspection training, but is scheduled to do so within 6 months after
%‘_ selection to the PM position.
€ e The PM has not completed periodic refresher training according to State policy, but is
S scheduled to do so within the next 12 months.
Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria are not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).
Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:
__* Monitor PCA if in effect.
<_E| e Assess based on previous review results, and on the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness
>, of the PM’s qualifications.
% Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:
:', e Verify PM’s qualifications through interview of PM or PM’s direct supervisor(s).
S e Review PM’s qualification documentation.
= .
A In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:
& © Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence

from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.
e National InD-AL - conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 8 of 72 ToC



Metric #2: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: This metric evaluates the qualifications of the designated State PM, not any other staff
members that may have delegated PM duties. The designated PM is ultimately responsible for all
aspects of the Program, even if some duties are delegated to districts, consultants, local agencies, or
others.

Compliance levels: The term designated PM refers to either an acting assignment or a permanent
assignment of an individual to the position.

If a PM or an acting PM is qualified, but there are issues relating to lack of overall responsibility,
sufficient authority, or effectiveness, this affects the compliance determination for Metric 1 but not
Metric 2.

Assessment levels: If a new PM is designated, perform an Int-AL review in the same year if
possible, or in the subsequent year if not.

Background/ changes for PY 2018: Minor changes to wording of metric to improve clarity. Int-AL
updated to require review the documentation of PM qualifications and to require Int-AL when a new
PM is identified.

NBIP Metrics Page 9 of 72 ToC



Metric #3: Qualifications of personnel — Team Leader(s) rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.309 (b) — Team leader(s) and 650.313 (g) QC/QA

Criteria

Compliance Levels

Assessment Levels (AL)

Each Team Leader (TL) must have at least one of the following qualifications:

e PE registration

e Five years of bridge inspection experience

o NICET Level Il or IV Bridge Safety Inspector certification

e Bachelor degree in engineering from ABET accredited college or university, a passing score
on the Fundamentals of Engineering Exam, and two years of bridge inspection experience.

e Associate Degree in engineering from ABET accredited college or university and four-years
of bridge inspection experience.

In addition to the above qualifications, TLs must have the following training:
e Successful completion of FHWA approved comprehensive bridge inspection training; and
e Completion of periodic bridge inspection refresher training according to State policy.

Population: All TLs for all inspection types for inspections performed from January 1 of the
calendar year prior to the beginning of the review year.

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:

e All TLs have the required qualifications.

e All TLs have completed periodic bridge inspection refresher training according to State
policy.

Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:

e All TLs have the required qualifications.

e One or more TLs have not completed periodic bridge inspection refresher training according
to State policy.

Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.

Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

e Monitor PCA if in effect.

e Assess based on previous review results, and on the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness
of process for monitoring TL qualifications.

Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:

e Randomly sample TLs to review qualifications, including dates of comprehensive and
refresher training.

e Interview the PM or supervisor to verify qualifications when documentation of
qualifications is inconclusive.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following

e Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

e National InD-AL - conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 10 of 72 ToC



Metric #3: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: This metric verifies that all team leaders listed for all types of inspections which require a
TL during the identified time period are qualified. Metric #12 then verifies that TLs are on site
during each bridge inspection, and that the TLs noted in the inspection reports reviewed are included
on the list developed for Metric #3.

Criteria: For additional guidance on what constitutes bridge inspection experience, see the
Questions and Answers on the National Bridge Inspection Standards 23 CFR 650 Subpart C, located
at http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bridge/nbis/index.cfm.

Population: This metric applies to all TLs for initial, routine, in-depth, fracture critical member, and
underwater inspections. The population is limited to TLs that have inspected bridges from January 1
of the calendar year prior to the start of the review year (example: for the PY18 review that starts
4/1/17, include all TLs that have inspected since 1/1/16). This will minimize overlap from one
review year to the next.

Compliance levels: Refresher training must be scheduled on a periodic basis. This schedule should
be documented, but it does not affect compliance if it is not. If any TL reviewed has not taken
refresher training in accordance with State policy, this is considered SC for this metric,
notwithstanding other findings. If a TL has never taken refresher training and none is planned, this is
also considered SC for this metric, and should be further assessed under Metric 20, pursuant to 23
CFR 650.313(g), which requires periodic refresher training. Such training is not specifically required
under 23 CFR 650.309.

Assessment levels: For the Int-AL, use the following procedure to review TL qualifications:
1. If a list of all TLs is available, review qualifications of randomly sampled TLs from the list.

2. If no list is available, refer to the sampling tool’s list of sampled bridges for Metrics 13 — 19, and
21. From this sample, in the order of the random numbers already generated, obtain the name of
the TL for each bridge inspection until a sample of 19 unique TLs is obtained. If this exceeds
the total number of team leaders in the State, review all team leaders.

Because the NBIS does not require a “list” of TLs, the lack of a list does not affect the compliance
status for Metric 3. However, in such situations, review documented procedures used to assure that
the appropriate inspection qualifications are being met.

If no effective process exists to ensure that all TLs are qualified, but the actual TLs assessed in this
metric are qualified, this finding should be considered in the compliance determination of Metric 1,
not Metric 3. Likewise, if the TLs assessed in this metric are not qualified and the State does not
have a process to monitor TL qualifications, this finding should be considered in determining the
compliance determination for both Metric 1 and Metric 3.

If one or more active TLs are found to be unqualified, the finding should be addressed. First, the PM
should ensure that the unqualified individual(s) ceases TL duties. Then work with the PM to develop
a plan to ensure that past inspections by the individual(s) were completed in a quality manner,
through review of those inspection findings or re-inspections if necessary. The plan should also
rectify any underlying process issues that cause unqualified personnel to be assigned TL duties.

If the unqualified TL was found outside the metric process, the finding should also be addressed as
described above. If found when Metric 3 was scheduled for a Min-AL, then a review at the Int-AL
should be scheduled for that review year if possible, or the following review year at the latest, to

NBIP Metrics Page 11 of 72 ToC


http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bridge/nbis/index.cfm

Metric #3: Commentary rev 5/1/17

more fully assess the issue. An unqualified TL is considered a high-risk safety issue, so this finding
should be applied directly to the compliance level of this metric, and is considered NC. If the
underlying issue is resolved by Dec 31, a compliance determination of SC or higher would be
appropriate, depending on other issues if any.

If certificates of training cannot be produced and the training was provided by NHI, transcripts can be
requested from NHI for courses completed within the past 7 years. Each student’s transcript will
show the courses attended and the number of CEUs earned — NHI does not print a new copy of a
certificate. Send requests for transcripts to NHIRegistrar@dot.gov.

Verify professional engineer registration through the State’s PE board website.

Background/ changes for PY 2018: Minor improvements to wording of metric to improve clarity.
Int-AL updated to require interviews of some TLs.

NBIP Metrics Page 12 of 72 ToC



Metric #4: Qualifications of personnel — Load Rating Engineer rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.309 (c) — Individual responsible for load ratings

©
E The Load Rating Engineer has overall responsibility for load rating of bridges and is a registered
'5 professional engineer.
Population: The individual charged with overall responsibility for load rating bridges.
Compliance (C):
e The LRE is a registered professional engineer.
T The LRE has overall responsibility for load rating of bridges.
(b}
:'J Substantial Compliance (SC):
2 e The LRE is a registered professional engineer.
.2 o The LRE does not have total overall responsibility for load rating of bridges, or the degree of
g' responsibility is not clear.
o
O Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).
Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:
e Monitor PCA if in effect.
e Assess based on previous review results, and on the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness
- of the LRE qualifications and responsibilities.
<
(%)
©  Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): Perform the following:
3 e Verify qualifications and responsibilities of the LRE through interview of LRE or
§ supervisor(s).
£ e Review LRE’s qualification documentation.
(7]
< In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

e Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.
e National InD-AL - conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 13 of 72 ToC



Metric #4: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: This metric verifies that the individual designated as the LRE is a registered professional
engineer and has overall responsibility for load rating of bridges.

The LRE may be the same individual as the Program Manager and should be actively engaged in
determining and communicating load rating policy, load rating QC/QA procedures, etc. Many of the
duties of the LRE may be delegated to one or more individuals at lower levels or other agencies, but
the overall responsibility for load rating of all bridges in the State ultimately resides with the LRE.

Compliance levels: The phrase overall responsibility for load rating bridges does not mean that the
individual must complete or review all load ratings directly, but rather that the individual has final
responsibility for establishing procedures and guidance for the load rating process in the State,
including ensuring the completion of load ratings by local agencies.

A compliance determination of SC is appropriate when the LRE is a PE, but the review reveals the
LRE does not have total overall responsibility for load rating of bridges, or the degree of
responsibility is not clear. This can occur, for example, if an individual with a PE is designated as
the LRE but does not have documented responsibility or have authority to establish necessary
policies and practices.

Assessment levels: If a new LRE is designated, perform an Int-AL review in the same year if
possible, or in the subsequent year if not.

Background/ changes for PY 2018: Substantial Compliance criteria was added for this metric, to
account for situations where the LRE’s level of responsibility is not completely clear. The Int-AL was
modified to require review of qualifications by both interviews and reviewing documentation. Minor
improvements to wording of metric to improve clarity.

NBIP Metrics Page 14 of 72 ToC



Metric #5: Qualifications of personnel — UW Bridge Inspection Diver rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.309 (d) — Underwater Bridge Inspection Diver

Underwater bridge inspection divers must have successfully completed at least one of the
following training courses:

e FHWA approved comprehensive bridge inspection training course

e FHWA approved underwater bridge inspection diver training course

Criteria

Population: All inspection divers inspecting those bridges from January 1 of the calendar
year prior to the beginning of the review year.

Compliance (C): The following must be met for C:
¢ All inspection divers have successfully completed FHWA approved comprehensive bridge
inspection training or FHWA approved underwater bridge inspection diver training.

Substantial Compliance (SC):

o All divers listed in the inspection report are qualified, but it is unclear whether all
inspection divers were listed due to inadequate documentation of all divers participating in
inspections.

Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.

Compliance Levels

Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action
(PCA).

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

e Monitor PCA if in effect.

e Assess based on previous review results, and on the reviewer’s knowledge and
awareness of process for monitoring underwater bridge inspection diver qualifications.

Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:

e Randomly sample divers to review documentation of successful completion of required
training.

e Interview PM or supervisor if necessary to verify successful completion of required training
when documentation is inconclusive.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

e Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with
concurrence from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

¢ National InD-AL - conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

Assessment Levels (AL)

NBIP Metrics Page 15 of 72 ToC



Metric #5: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: This metric assesses the qualifications of all underwater bridge inspection divers. The
purpose is not to assess all requirements of the team leader; this is done in Metric #3.

Compliance levels: Even though all inspection divers must have completed an FHWA approved
comprehensive bridge inspection training course or other FHWA approved underwater diver bridge
inspection training course, divers are not required to complete refresher training, unless a diver is also
functioning as the team leader for the inspection.

Any diver responsible for inspection of any element must have completed the required training. If
only one diver for each inspection meets established criteria, and this diver visually and/or tactilely
inspects all underwater components as the primary or only inspector, this is considered a compliance
level of C. Additional divers providing support roles only, such as ‘tender’ divers, need not complete
the training.

For SC, any divers listed in the inspection report or other inspection records must meet required
qualifications, but there may be cases where all divers may not be listed. Thus, it may be unclear
whether every inspection diver that participated in the inspection met the qualifications.

Assessment levels: For the Int-AL, use the following procedure for reviewing diver qualifications:
1. If alist of all divers is available, review qualifications for randomly sampled divers on the list.

2. If no list is available, refer to the Sampling Tool. Use the Metric 17 sample, in the order of the
generated random numbers, to obtain the name of the divers for each UW inspection until the
required sample size of unique TLs is developed.

Because the NBIS does not require a “list” of TLs and/or underwater bridge inspection divers, the
lack of a list does not affect the compliance status for Metric 5. However, in such situations, review
documented procedures used to assure that the appropriate inspection qualifications are being met.

If no effective process exists to ensure that all divers are qualified, but the actual divers assessed in
this metric are qualified, this finding should be considered in the compliance determination of Metric
1, but not affect the determination for Metric 5.

If certificates of training cannot be produced and the training was provided by NHI, transcripts can be
requested from NHI for courses completed within the past 7 years. Each student’s transcript will
show the courses attended and the number of CEUs earned — NHI does not print a new copy of a
certificate. Send request for transcripts to NHIRegistrar@dot.gov.

Background/ changes for PY 2018: Substantial Compliance criteria was added to account for
situations where the qualifications of all divers participating in an inspection are not completely
clear. Int-AL updated to include interviews of PM or supervisor if necessary to verify successful
completion of required training. Minor improvements to wording of metric to improve clarity.

NBIP Metrics Page 16 of 72 ToC



Metric #6: Inspection frequency — Routine — Lower risk bridges rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.311 (a) — Routine inspections

¢ Routine inspections are performed at regular intervals not to exceed (NTE) 24 months, or NTE
48 months when adhering to FHWA approved criteria.

Criteria

Population: Lower risk bridges for the entire State that are open to traffic, and whose inspection
dates have changed since the previous year’s NBI submission or are overdue.

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:

o All bridges are inspected within the required NTE 24 or 48-month interval, as applicable,
unless documented unusual circumstances have caused a 1 month delay for any inspections.

o All bridges on the NTE 48-month interval meet the FHWA approved criteria.

Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:

o At least 90% of bridges are inspected within the required NTE 24 or 48-month interval plus 1
month, as applicable.

o All bridges are inspected within the required interval plus 4 months.

o At least 95% of the bridges on the NTE 48-month interval meet the FHWA approved criteria.

¢ Minor deficiencies exist in the documentation process for 1-month inspection delays, or not all
delays are properly documented.

Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Compliance Levels

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

e Monitor PCA if in effect.

e Generate MARG6 within 30 days of NBI data acceptance and review to resolve overdue
bridge inspections — notify the State of overdue inspections, track completion of
inspections, and document result on MARG.

e Review MARG6 Summary for indication of any new deficiencies.

o Assess based on MARG6 Snapshot and previous review results, and on the reviewer’s
knowledge and awareness.

Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:

¢ Review MARG and resolve data for inspections that exceeded the required interval to the
extent necessary to assure that the compliance status shown is correct.

¢ Review a sample of bridges coded for 48-month intervals from the MARG list of bridges,
to verify they meet the FHWA approved criteria for extended intervals in the State.

o If appropriate, perform a supplemental MARG6 analysis for current year inspections using
additional data obtained from the State.

o If 1-month inspection delays exist, review procedures to ensure there is a process to document
unusual circumstances and that the process is being followed.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

¢ Division InD-AL — In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

¢ National InD-AL — conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

Assessment Levels (AL)

NBIP Metrics Page 17 of 72 ToC



Metric #6: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: The commentary for Metric 6 also applies to Metrics 7-10, except where noted.

The frequency metrics determine if bridges are being inspected per required intervals, including
following FHWA approved criteria for extended intervals, as appropriate. Due to the large numbers
of inspections completed each year and the number of scheduling issues that can occur, certain
tolerances for each compliance level are defined in each metric.

Metrics 6 & 7 reflect low risk and high risk Routine inspections, Metrics 8 & 9 reflect low risk and
high risk Underwater inspections, and Metric 10 reflects FCM inspections. FCM inspections are
different from Routine inspections, and although some bridges may be considered in both metrics, the
assessment is of two different inspection types. This occurs when, for example, a truss bridge is
given a Routine inspection separately from a FCM inspection.

The term overdue means the inspection was due prior to the NBI submission date, but a new
inspection date was not submitted. This typically occurs either when an inspection was done but was
not recorded in the inventory data before submission, or that the inspection has not yet been done. An
overdue inspection, until resolved, is considered a high-risk safety issue.

A delinquent inspection differs from an overdue inspection in that the inspection was completed but
exceeded the required interval.

The analysis includes the 90/180 day NBIS allowance for entering data and an additional 30 days for
compiling the submittal.

Population: Risk classification for Metric 6 & 7 is based on the bridge’s super/substructure
condition, load restriction, and scour vulnerability. NBI Items 41, 63, 64, and 70 determine load
restriction risk, which helps identify posted bridges that do not require load restriction and therefore
are lower risk. Lower risk criteria for Metric 6:
e NBI Item 59 and 60, or 62 > 4 and
e Either:
o NBI Item 70 =5 and Item 63 #5; or
o Item63=5andItem70=5and Item41=A,D,orE
e AndlItem113=4,5,7,8,9,N

Bridges adhering to FHWA approved extended frequency criteria are assumed to be lower risk.

The population of all frequency metrics is defined to eliminate review of the same inspection interval
for the same bridge in successive review years. It also includes bridges indicated by the submitted
data to be overdue for inspection.

Compliance levels: Compliance levels are based on several cumulative thresholds, which allow
consideration of unusual circumstances that can make the completion of inspections within the
required month impractical or inefficient. The percentages shown in the metric criteria section of the
MAR tab represent the compliance level thresholds and are measured when performing an Int-AL.

As identified in the preamble of the NBIS regulation, severe weather, concern for inspector safety,
concern for inspection quality, the need to optimize scheduling with other bridges, or other unique
situations may be justifiable cause to push the inspection interval into an additional month (25"/49™"
or 6173™). Such circumstances must be documented. These thresholds also allow for flexibility so
that structures previously inspected earlier than scheduled can get back on the original schedule.

In unusual circumstances that will delay an inspection or group of inspections for more than 1 month,
an assessment of C can be made if the Division has provided prior approval with concurrence from

NBIP Metrics Page 18 of 72 ToC




Metric #6: Commentary rev 5/1/17

the BSE. Prior to the inspection being delinquent, the State can request FHWA HQ to approval a
time extension. If the request is approved, an assessment of C is proper if the bridge(s) is inspected
by target date in the extension. Reasons for an extension include but are not limited to: permanently
moving a small number of scheduled inspections of low risk bridges to better coincide with existing
inspections in the same geographic area or a one-time schedule readjustment due to an unusually large
or widespread natural disaster requiring a shift in existing resources.

For C (Metric 6 only), all bridges coded for extended intervals must meet the criteria approved by
FHWA for that specific State. At the Int-AL, review and compare the approved criteria with the
related data for bridges currently coded for 48 months.

For SC (Metric 6 only), the 5% tolerance for bridges coded for 48 month intervals is intended for
those formerly meeting the specific criteria, but transitioning to a 24-month interval due to a recent
change in condition or other criterion, which result in SC.

Note that for SC, a 50% threshold is included in the MAR Metric Criteria for the NTE interval. This
threshold conveys an expectation that at least half of inspections should be completed on time.
Failure to meet the 50% threshold should not by itself result in a non-compliance determination; it
may indicate other issues for which further investigation is needed.

Assessment levels:

Min-AL: Resolve all overdue inspections as soon as possible after the NBI data is accepted and the
MAR is generated. In this case, resolve means to determine if the overdue inspection has not been
done or is only a data issue and take the appropriate action(s) that follow.

If the overdue inspection is a data issue, enter the appropriate override code with an explanation on
the MAR data tab.

If a bridge inspection is not completed, take the following actions:

* Notify the State as soon as possible, and work with them to ensure inspection as soon as
possible (within 30 days of notification is suggested). If the State does not take expedited
action to perform the inspection, discuss the issue with the BSE.

» Track the date that the bridge is inspected

» Enter the appropriate override code with an explanation on the MAR data tab.

» Inform the PM that the underlying issue causing the overdue inspections must be corrected as
soon as possible.

Depending on timing and the severity or extent of the underlying issue, the metric should be assessed
at the Int-AL, preferably in the current review year, or at the latest in the next year, to determine the
full extent of any issues related to the metric.

Document in the FSM the number of overdue bridges resolved, and any actions taken by the State to
correct the underlying issue(s).

If any underlying issues are not resolved by December 31, assess as NC. If overdue inspections
resulting from rare and isolated situations are completed in a timely manner, with BSE concurrence,
and the underlying issues are resolved, the previous year’s compliance determination applies, unless
additional issues warrant a lower compliance level, or a lack of additional issues and a completed
PCA lead to a higher compliance level.

At the Min-AL, compare the MAR summary tab percentages inspected within each threshold to the
previous year’s levels to determine if any negative trends indicate possible new compliance issues.

NBIP Metrics Page 19 of 72 ToC



Metric #6: Commentary rev 5/1/17

The MAR summary tab percentages can be shown by pressing the Toggle Assessment Level button to
toggle to the Int-AL/InD-AL. Depending on the degree of the apparent compliance issue (based on
unresolved summary data), a review at the Int-AL should be scheduled for either the current or the
following review year.

Int-AL: Resolve all Overdue inspections as mentioned under the Min-AL, and resolve any other
possible compliance deficiencies shown, such as inspections that exceeded the required NTE interval
plus 1 month, until it is determined that the MAR compliance snapshot is correct. For further
information on resolution of the MAR, see the NBIP — MAR Resolution Guidance.

When warranted, the review can include obtaining the most recent inspection data from the State and
performing a supplemental interval analysis. Such analysis should be conducted after consultation
with the State and if there is a reasonable chance that current inspections will reveal a higher level of
compliance.

To perform a supplemental analysis, generate a new MAR using a current NBI data file (NBI
submission file format) as the Most Recent data and the April NBI submission file as the Previous
data. The supplemental analysis must cover at least 6 consecutive months or 25% of the
population being reviewed, so the supplemental analysis should be performed with a current NBI
data file obtained in October or later of the review year. The BSE can assist if such an analysis is
needed.

For Metric 6 only, in rare and isolated situations, a small number of bridge inspections may exceed
the required interval plus 4 months but no more than 12 months. If these are the only inspections that
cause a finding of NC, with the concurrence of the BSE, the reviewer may assess the metric as SC and
document the resolution in the MAR and FSM accordingly. Below are some examples to
demonstrate this exception:

e Anowner has several bridges on a 48-month frequency where the condition worsened,
requiring the frequency to be reset to 24 months. The new frequency was recoded, but for two
bridges the change was not reflected in the TL’s schedule until the following year.
Consequently, these bridges were inspected in the 36" month. This is an acceptable, isolated
occurrence.

e Anowner has a bridge that has been inspected late for 2 cycles in a row, by 7 months and 5
months respectively. This is not an acceptable isolated occurrence.

Metric Assessment Report (MAR): The MAR is generated using the NBIP MARGen tool that is
downloaded from the NBIP SharePoint site. The MAR is typically based on the most recent and
previous April NBI submissions.

Depending on the summary result, the review may require detailed examination and resolution or
overriding of the data, as explained in the MAR instructions on the SharePoint site. The MAR is
based on NBI data, which has some known limitations for determining compliance. A few examples
include border bridges where the other State has inspection responsibility, when the time frame for
processing and submitting NBI data causes some inspection data to be omitted from the submittal, or
situations when the bridge has been replaced or work has been performed that changes the inspection
schedule.

Background/changes for PY2018: This metric was updated at the Min AL to no longer require
resolution of all possible deficiencies identified in the MAR; only resolution of inspections identified

NBIP Metrics Page 20 of 72 ToC



Metric #6: Commentary rev 5/1/17

as overdue is expected. The Int-AL was modified to require the resolution of all possible deficiencies
or until the compliance determination is confirmed, previously required at the Min-AL.

NBIP Metrics Page 21 of 72 ToC



Metric #7: Inspection frequency — Routine — Higher risk bridges rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.311 (a) — Routine inspections

©
E ¢ Routine inspections are performed at regular intervals not to exceed (NTE) 24 months.
G

Population: Higher risk bridges for the entire State that are open to traffic, and whose

inspection dates have changed since the previous year’s NBI submission or are overdue.

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:

e All bridges are inspected within the required NTE 24-month interval, unless documented

=2 unusual circumstances have caused a 1-month delay for any inspections.

>

4 Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:

L e At least 95% of bridges are inspected within the required NTE 24 interval plus 1 month.

_§ ¢ 100% of bridges are inspected within the required interval plus 4 months.

‘e e Minor deficiencies exist in the documentation process for 1-month inspection delays, or not
% all delays are properly documented.

@)

Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.

Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

e Monitor PCA if in effect.

o Generate MAR7 within 30 days of NBI data acceptance and review to resolve overdue
bridge inspections — notify the State of overdue inspections, track completion, and document
result on MARY.

e Review MAR7 Summary for indication of any new deficiencies.

T e Assess based on MAR7 Snapshot and previous review results, and on the reviewer’s

< knowledge and awareness.

[%2]

'S Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:

3« Review MAR?7 and resolve data to the extent necessary to assure that the compliance status
§ shown is correct.

E o If appropriate, perform a supplemental MAR7 analysis for current year inspections using

% additional data obtained from the State.

ﬁ e If 1-month inspection delays exist, review procedures to ensure there is a process to

document unusual circumstances and that the process is being followed.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

¢ Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

¢ National InD-AL - conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 22 of 72 ToC



Metric #7: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: The commentary for Metric 6 applies to this metric, except where noted.

Population: Risk classification for Metric 7 is based on the bridge’s super/substructure condition,
load restriction, and scour vulnerability. NBI Items 41, 63, 64, and 70 are used to determine load
restriction risk, which helps identify posted bridges that do not require load restriction, and therefore
are lower risk. Higher risk criteria for Metric 7:

e NBI Item 59 or 60, or 62 <5 or

e NBIIltem70<5o0r

e NBI Item 63=5 and Item 70=5 and Item 41=B, P, or R or

e Item113=0,1,2,3,6, TorVuU

Bridges adhering to FHWA approved extended frequency criteria are assumed to be lower risk.

Background/changes for PY2018: This metric was updated at the Min-AL to no longer require
resolution of all possible deficiencies identified in the MAR, only resolution of inspections identified
as overdue. The Int-AL was modified to require the resolution of all possible deficiencies or until the
compliance determination is confirmed, previously required at the Min-AL.

NBIP Metrics Page 23 of 72 ToC



Metric #8: Inspection frequency — Underwater — Lower risk bridges rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.311 (b) — Underwater (UW) inspections

e UW bridge inspections are performed at regular intervals not to exceed (NTE) 60-months, or
NTE 72-months when adhering to FHWA approved UW criteria.

Criteria

Population: Lower risk bridges requiring UW inspections for the entire state that are open to
traffic, with inspection dates changed since previous year’s NBI submission or are overdue.

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:

e All UW inspections are done within the required NTE 60- or 72-month interval, as applicable,
unless documented unusual circumstances have caused a 1-month delay for any inspections.

o All bridges on the NTE 72-month interval, meet the FHWA approved criteria.

Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:

o At least 90% of UW inspections are done within the required NTE 60 or 72-month interval
plus 1 month, as applicable.

e 100% of UW inspections are done within the required interval plus 4 months.

e At least 95% of UW inspections on NTE 72-month interval meet the FHWA approved criteria.

¢ Minor deficiencies exist in the documentation process for 1 month UW inspections delays, or
not all delays are properly documented.

Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Compliance Levels

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

e Monitor PCA if in effect.

e Generate MARS within 30 days of NBI data acceptance and review to resolve overdue UW
inspections — notify the State of overdue inspections, track completion, and document result on
MARS.

Review MAR8 Summary for indication of any new deficiencies.

Assess based on MARS Snapshot and previous review results, and on the reviewer’s
knowledge and awareness.

Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:

e Review MARS and resolve data to the extent necessary to assure that the compliance status
shown is correct.

e Review a sample of bridges coded for 72 month intervals from the MARS list of bridges, to
verify they meet the FHWA approved criteria for extended intervals in the State.

If appropriate, perform a supplemental MARS8 analysis for current year UW inspections
using additional data obtained from the State.

¢ If 1-month inspection delays exist, review procedures to ensure there is a process to
document unusual circumstances and that the process is being followed.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

e Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

¢ National InD-AL - conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

Assessment Levels (AL)
[ ]

NBIP Metrics Page 24 of 72 ToC



Metric #8: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: The commentary for Metric 6 applies to this metric, except where noted.

Population: Risk classification for Metric 8 is based on substructure/culvert condition and scour
vulnerability. Lower risk criteria for Metric 8:

e 2B=Y

e Item 60 or 62 >4 and

o Item113=4,5,7,8,0r9

Bridges adhering to FHWA approved extended frequency criteria are assumed to be lower risk.

Compliance levels: For C (Metric 8 only), all bridges coded for extended intervals must meet the
criteria approved by FHWA for that specific State. At the Int-AL, review and compare the approved
criteria with the related data for bridges currently coded for 72 months.

For SC (Metric 8 only), the 5% tolerance for bridges coded for 72-month intervals is intended for
those formerly meeting the specific criteria, but transitioning to a 60-month interval due to a recent
change in condition or other criterion, which result in SC.

Assessment levels: For Metric 8 only, in rare situations, a small number of bridge inspections may
exceed the required interval plus 4 months but no more than 12 months. If these are the only
inspections that cause a finding of NC, with the concurrence of the BSE, the reviewer may assess the
metric as SC and document the resolution in the MAR and FSM accordingly. Below is an example
to demonstrate this exception:

e Anowner has a bridge that is due for an underwater inspection and contracts with a qualified
diver to inspect the bridge, but illness of the diver prevents the inspection from taking place
on time. By the time the diver recovers, winter conditions further delay the inspection until
spring, resulting in it being 8 months late. This would be considered an allowable isolated
occurrence.

Background/changes for PY2018: This metric was updated at the Min-AL to no longer require
resolution of all possible deficiencies identified in the MAR, only resolution of inspections identified
as overdue. The Int-AL was modified to require the resolution of all possible deficiencies or until the
compliance determination is confirmed, previously required at the Min-AL.

NBIP Metrics Page 25 of 72 ToC



Metric #9: Inspection frequency — Underwater — Higher risk bridges rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.311 (b) — Underwater (UW) inspections

o UW inspections are performed at regular intervals not to exceed (NTE) 60 months.

Criteria

Population: Higher risk bridges requiring UW inspections for the entire state that are open to
traffic, with inspection dates changed since previous year’s NBI submission or are overdue.

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:
o All UW inspections are performed within the required NTE 60-month interval, unless
documented unusual circumstances have caused a 1-month delay for any UW inspections.

Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:

o At least 95% of UW inspections are performed within the required NTE 60 interval plus 1
month.

¢ 100% of UW inspections are performed within the required interval plus 4 months.
o Minor deficiencies exist in the documentation process for 1-month inspection delays, or not all
delays are properly documented.

Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Compliance Levels

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

o Generate MAR9 within 30 days of NBI data acceptance and review to resolve overdue UW
inspections — notify the State of overdue inspections, track completion, and document result on
MARS9.

e Review MAR9 Summary for indication of any new deficiencies.
o Assess based on MAR9 Snapshot and previous review results, and on the reviewer’s
knowledge and awareness.

Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:

e Review MAR9 and resolve data to the extent necessary to assure that the compliance status
shown is correct.

o If appropriate, perform a supplemental MAR9 analysis for current year UW inspections
using additional data obtained from the State.

¢ If 1-month inspection delays exist, review procedures to ensure there is a process to
document unusual circumstances and that the process is being followed.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

¢ Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

¢ National InD-AL - conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

Assessment Levels (AL)

NBIP Metrics Page 26 of 72 ToC



Metric #9: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: The commentary for Metric 6 applies to this metric, except where noted.

Population: Risk classification for Metric 9 is based on substructure/culvert condition and scour
vulnerability. Higher risk criteria for Metric 9:

e 2B=Y

e NBIItem60or62<5or

e Item113=0,1,2,3,6, TorVuU

Bridges adhering to FHWA approved extended frequency criteria are assumed to be lower risk.

Background/changes for PY2018: This metric was updated at the Min-AL to no longer require
resolution of all possible deficiencies identified in the MAR, only resolution of inspections identified
as overdue. The Int-AL was modified to require the resolution of all possible deficiencies or until the
compliance determination is confirmed, previously required at the Min-AL.

NBIP Metrics Page 27 of 72 ToC



Metric #10: Inspection frequency — Fracture Critical Member rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.311 (c) — Fracture critical member (FCM)

Criteria

Compliance Levels

Assessment Levels (AL)

e FCMs are inspected at regular intervals not to exceed (NTE) 24 months.

Population: Bridges that require FCM inspections for the entire State, are open to traffic, and
whose FCM inspection dates have changed since the previous year’s NBI submission or are
overdue.

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:
e All FCM inspections are performed within the required NTE 24-month interval, unless
documented unusual circumstances have caused a 1month delay for any FCM inspections.

Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:

e At least 95% of FCM inspections are performed within the required NTE 24 interval plus 1
month.

¢ 100% of FCM inspections are performed within the required interval plus 4 months.
e Minor deficiencies exist in the documentation process for 1-month inspection delays, or not all
delays are properly documented.

Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:
e Monitor PCA if in effect.
e Generate MAR10 within 30 days of NBI data acceptance and review to resolve overdue

bridge inspections — notify the State of overdue inspections, track completion, and document
result on MAR10.

e Review MAR10 Summary for indication of any new deficiencies.

e Assess based on MAR10 Snapshot and previous review results, and on the reviewer’s
knowledge and awareness.

Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:

¢ Review MAR10 and resolve data to the extent necessary to assure that the compliance status
shown is correct.

e If appropriate, perform a supplemental MAR10 analysis for current year inspections using
additional data obtained from the State.

e If 1-month inspection delays exist, review procedures to ensure there is a process to document
unusual circumstances and that the process is being followed.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

e Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.
e National InD-AL - conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 28 of 72 ToC



Metric #10: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: The commentary for Metric 6 applies to this metric, except where noted.

FCM inspections are different from Routine inspections, and although some bridges may be
considered in both metrics, the assessment is of two different inspection types.

Population: Metric 10 is based on bridges identified as requiring a fracture critical member
inspection. Criteria for Metric 10:

e Item92A=Y

Background/changes for PY2018: This metric was updated at the Min-AL to no longer require
resolution of all possible deficiencies identified in the MAR, only resolution of inspections identified
as overdue. The Int-AL was modified to require the resolution of all possible deficiencies or until the
compliance determination is confirmed, previously required at the Min-AL.

NBIP Metrics Page 29 of 72 ToC



Metric #11: Inspection frequency — Frequency criteria rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.311 (a)(2), (b)(2), (c)2, (d) — Frequency criteria

Compliance Levels Criteria

Assessment Levels (AL)

Criteria is established to determine level of inspection, and frequency for all of the following
inspection types where appropriate:

0 Routine inspections — for less than 24-month intervals

0 FCM inspections — for less than 24-month intervals

o0 Underwater inspections — for less than 60-month intervals

o Damage inspections

0 In-depth inspections

0 Special inspections

Population: Bridges meeting established criteria for the entire State, are open to traffic, and
whose inspection dates have changed since the previous year’s NBI submission or are overdue.

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:

¢ All level of inspection and frequency criteria are established.

¢ All bridges indicate the appropriate level of inspection and frequency in accordance with the
established criteria.

Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:

¢ All level of inspection and frequency criteria are established.

e Records for less than all bridges indicate the appropriate level of inspection and frequency in
accordance with the established criteria.

Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

e Monitor PCA if in effect.

e Review MAR11 Summary for indication of any new deficiencies.

e Assess based on previous review results, and the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness.

Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:

e Review established level of inspection and frequency criteria.

e Review MARL11 to resolve data to the extent necessary to assure that the compliance status
shown is correct and to discuss any identified issues with the State.

e Obtain or generate a list of all bridges meeting State criteria, and review a random sample
from the list to determine adherence to State criteria.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

e Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

e National InD-AL - conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 30 of 72 ToC



Metric #11: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: This metric ensures there is criteria established for triggering more frequent inspections,
and that the criteria is followed.

Criteria: It is understood that a specific frequency is often not established for In-depth and Special
inspections, and typically never for Damage inspections; however, criteria for level of inspections
should be established for all types.

Compliance levels: If bridge records or MAR resolution indicates that some inspections are found
that do not adhere to the established level and frequency criteria, the PM should be notified of the
finding and the metric assessed as SC. The finding will not result in NC because there is no direct
requirement in the NBIS for the State to follow its own criteria; however, since following it is
implied, such a finding is not considered full compliance and therefore is considered SC.

Reasonable documentation for not following the established criteria is acceptable and should be
counted as adhering to the criteria.

Assessment levels: For the Min-AL, review the MAR for indication of any new deficiencies, keeping
in mind that many shown may reflect limitations in analyzing the NBI data. The MAR information
at the Min-AL is for knowledge and awareness only, which should inform whether to perform further
review at the Int-AL for either the current or the following review year, to further assess the extent of
the issue.

Also for the Int-AL, obtain and review the criteria used by the State, and to the extent possible generate a
list of bridges meeting that criteria. Ensure that all bridges are coded for the reduced frequency identified
in the policy. The ability to generate a list may be limited to querying any NBI items that may be
included in their criteria, which may not capture every aspect of the State’s criteria. Alternatively, ask the
State to generate the list, and clearly identify the criteria used to develop that list.

Metric Assessment Report (MAR): Generate the MAR using the NBIP MARGen tool available at
the NBIP SharePoint site. The MAR is typically based on the most recent and previous April NBI
submissions.

The MAR is based on NBI data, which has some known limitations for determining compliance. A
few examples include border bridges where the other State has inspection responsibility, when the
time frame for processing and submitting NBI data causes some inspection data to be omitted from
the submittal, or situations when the bridge has been replaced or work has been performed that
changes the inspection schedule.

Background/changes for PY2018: The Int-AL was modified to bring into the metric an existing
requirement to resolve all deficiencies identified in the MAR or until the compliance determination is
confirmed.

NBIP Metrics Page 31 of 72 ToC



Metric #12: Inspection procedures — Quality Inspections rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.313 (a) & (b) Inspection procedures — Quality inspections

e Each bridge is inspected in accordance with the AASHTO Manual for Bridge Evaluation
(MBE), as measured by the following criteria:

© o condition codes are within generally acceptable tolerances,

= oall notable bridge deficiencies are identified, and

= o condition codes are supported by narrative that appropriately justifies and documents the
= component condition rating.

e A qualified team leader is at the bridge at all times during each initial, routine, in-depth,
fracture critical member and underwater inspection.

Population: Bridges in the State or selected geographic/owner subset that are open to traffic, and
have been inspected since January 1 of the previous calendar year.

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:

o At least 90% of bridges reviewed meet the criteria for component condition ratings,

<  documentation of deficiencies, and following of applicable MBE procedures.

E, ¢ All bridges reviewed had a qualified team leader on site during all most recent inspection types.
@ Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:

T e At least 80% of bridges reviewed meet criteria for component condition ratings, documentation
S of deficiencies, and following of applicable MBE procedures.

CE, ¢ All bridges reviewed had a qualified team leader on site during all most recent inspection types.
© Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria are not met.

Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

e Monitor PCA if in effect.

o Perform field reviews of bridges sampled at a LOC 80%, MOE 15% size or greater, to
compare inspection reports for all appropriate inspection types with actual bridge
conditions to evaluate:

- 1) Accuracy of component condition codes;

< 2) Use of MBE procedures;

< 3) Adequacy of documentation and appropriate justification of component condition
E) ratings;

= 4) Indication that a qualified team leader was present at each applicable inspection, and

é qualified divers for underwater inspections.

@ Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL.:

ﬁ e Include field verification of one active Routine inspection to verify team leader presence

and that MBE procedures are followed.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

e Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

¢ National InD-AL - Conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 32 of 72 ToC



Metric #12: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: Metric 12 assesses the quality of bridge inspections. For each sampled bridge, all
applicable types of inspection are field reviewed to determine if the inspections:
e Were conducted by qualified team leaders,
Were performed using proper procedures,
Resulted in accurate condition codes,
Resulted in fully documented deficiencies, and
Included all appropriate inspection types.

Routine bridge inspections, and FCM and UW inspections when appropriate, are assessed. Complex
inspection procedures where needed are also assessed. The most recent inspection report(s) for all
types are compared to field conditions.

Inspected in accordance with the AASHTO MBE means that inspection processes and techniques
described in the MBE Section 4 for Routine, FCM, and UW inspections are generally followed.
Verifying the use of MBE procedures through field reviews is generally limited to looking for
obvious discrepancies between documented procedures and field observations, such as indications
that certain areas were not accessed or that the FCMs or elements requiring an UW were not
accessed. Therefore, the primary means of assessing whether MBE procedures were followed, other
than participation in the active inspection, is by review of inspection report documentation including
photos for evidence that procedures were carried out.

Metric 22 should be assessed along with the Metric 12 field reviews. Metric 12 is focused on the

four main condition codes resulting from inspections, the quality of the inspection documentation,
and overall quality of the inspection, whereas Metric 22 assesses other NBI data items associated

with the bridge record.

Field reviews are not complete and thorough bridge safety inspections. Rather, these reviews should
make a reasonable assessment of the overall quality of the most recent inspection and verify, to the
extent practical, the previous inspection findings and condition assessments for the accessible parts of
the bridge.

If the inspection report identifies findings that cannot be confirmed, those findings should be
assumed accurate. However, observed defects or deterioration that are not documented in the report
may require further investigation, such as review of prior inspection reports and interviews, before
considering the defect an inspection quality issue.

Field reviews should be coordinated with the State PM or other appropriate inspection staff. State or
agency participation in the review is strongly encouraged, as this typically leads to a consensus of
review findings, informative discussions, and insight into the inspection program. The expectation is
that the field review is conducted with State personnel.

In the rare event the State or agency staff do not attend, make every effort to include another FHWA
employee, for safety of the reviewer. Discuss with the Division leadership or BSE if someone cannot
be found to accompany the reviewer.

Bridges requiring excessive effort or cost due to geography or inaccessibility need not be included in
the field review subset.

Population: The population includes all bridges in the State or a geographic or owner subset (if
selected by the reviewer) that have had Routine Inspections since January of the previous calendar
year prior to the start of the review year. For example, for the PY 18 review beginning in April 2017,

NBIP Metrics Page 33 of 72 ToC




Metric #12: Commentary rev 5/1/17

the review should only include those bridges having had Routine Inspections during or after January
2016. This will ensure that only recent inspections are reviewed, preventing review of the same
structure in subsequent years and identification of older issues that may have since been corrected.

For the sample bridges, the most recent FCM, Underwater, Complex, and other types of inspections
also must be included in the review, regardless of when performed (even if prior to January 2016).

Reviewing a subset can reduce the amount of travel required, but all subsets for the entire State must
be covered in the 5-year review cycle. The plan for review by subsets must be documented each year
under extent of review in the FSM.

Geographic subsets should include all owning agencies within that subset. Rotation of subsets
around the State in less than 5 years may be advantageous, allowing flexibility to focus the remaining
year(s) of the cycle on reassessment of certain areas or a statewide sample to gain an overall
perspective.

Sampling: The minimum number and selection of the field review bridges is based on a statistical
randomized sample, largely consistent with other metrics, and retains sampling flexibility for the
reviewer. The sample is based on criteria determined to ensure selection of bridges with target risk
factors, conditions, and other characteristics. The criteria used by the NBIP Sampling Tool to select
the sample bridges and can be found on the NBIP SharePoint site.

The default sample size used by the Tool is Tier 1 (LOC 80%, MOE 15%), with the ability to
select a Tier 2 (LOC 80%, MOE 10%) sample size. A larger than Tier 1 sample size may be
selected for field review, but the PM must be notified of and understand the reasons for reviewing a
larger size, and the larger size must be documented before the review in the ‘Extent of Review’ field
in the FSM. A larger size other than Tier 2 will require manual selection of additional field bridges
in the order from the random sample list.

For example, if desired, 20 bridges may be field-reviewed in order to remain consistent with past
reviews. When using standard mathematical rounding, the effect of reviewing a Tier 1 sample size
vs. 20 will affect the allowable number of inspections beyond the metric tolerances for each
compliance level.

The Sampling Tool selects a target number of bridges for each of the Procedure metrics (Metrics 13,
14, 16-19, 21) being reviewed at the Int-AL, if available in the selected geographic area. The tool
also selects a target number of bridges in poor, fair, and good condition and on the NHS before
rounding out the sample with bridges of any type, condition, or on/off-system.

The random sample may be manually modified in the Sampling Tool after selection. Reasons for
replacing a sample bridge with another include but are not limited to replacement, closure, or
inaccessibility due to flooding or construction work. However, the next bridge listed in random
sample list should be selected in place of the removed bridge. To obtain a different diversity of
structure types or other factors, the criteria listed above for structural conditions and procedures
metrics being assessed at the Int-AL must first be met. Discuss with the BSE any unique situations
where further selection modification is desired. Document the justification for the selection changes
in the FSM.

NBIP Metrics Page 34 of 72 ToC



Metric #12: Commentary rev 5/1/17

Compliance levels: Generally acceptable tolerances for condition assessments exist when the
inspector determined NBI condition codes are within one value of the review team’s. The team
typically includes both FHWA and State staff.

Notable bridge deficiencies are those leading to NBI component ratings of 5 or less, or those
requiring some kind of immediate action.

The metric is assessed on a “per bridge’ basis. If all factors are within tolerance as identified on the
field review form, then the bridge is a positive data point toward compliance. Conversely, if one or
more factors for the bridge are out of tolerance, then the bridge is a negative data point. If 17 of the
18 bridges are positive (or 94.4%), using standard mathematical rounding to 94%, the determination
for this metric would be Compliant.

When more than one inspection type was completed, percentages for measuring compliance are still
determined based on the number of bridges field reviewed. For example, one bridge may have
current inspection reports for routine, FCM, and UW inspections. This package of three reports
should be considered one data point. The result of the three inspections should yield one resulting
superstructure condition code in the data submittal, and also in the routine inspection report if
completed more recently than the fracture critical and underwater inspection reports. If the three
reports are judged to have the condition codes (Items 58, 59, and 60, or 62) within acceptable
tolerances, it would be a positive data point toward compliance. If 18 bridges identified for field
review had 23 current NBIS inspection reports (5 are inspections other than routine), the denominator
to use for the percentage calculation should be 18 (not 23). The same logic applies to assessing
documentation of notable deficiencies in the three inspection reports.

Condition coding guidance is available in the comprehensive bridge inspection training course, in
addition to the Coding Guide and the BIRM. Draw upon all FHWA guidance to determine the
proper condition code, understanding the extent and severity of deterioration and effect on structural
capacity that is intended for each level of condition. Consult the BSE if a disagreement in the field
cannot be resolved.

Appropriate justification of determined ratings means the lower the value of the condition code, the
amount of documentation increases to thoroughly describe its location, extent, and significance.
While a condition code of 6 may normally warrant a fairly brief narrative, as the condition worsens
more thorough documentation is required, which should include photos, sketches, measurements,
etc., to fully document the identified deficiencies and support the assigned condition rating. Per the
MBE, condition codes of 5 or less require appropriate documentation. If there is lack of
documentation for a component rated 6 or greater, this is acceptable, though it is considered good
practice to include an appropriate description for components in all conditions.

If findings from an UW or FCM inspection have resulted in a lowering of a condition code, the
lowered code and the associated narrative should be reflected in the subsequent Routine inspection
report.

If a compliance issue is found in one geographic subset, the issue should be applied to the State
compliance determination and an appropriate PCA should be implemented. If in the following year a
review is done in a different region yielding no issues, but the PCA for the previous year is not yet
complete, the State is still considered to be in non-compliance until the PCA is complete and no other
compliance issues have been found.

NBIP Metrics Page 35 of 72 ToC



Metric #12: Commentary rev 5/1/17

Assessment levels: Metric 12 assesses, in part, whether a qualified TL was present during the
inspection, while team leader qualifications are assessed under Metric 3. Comparing the team leader
designated on the inspection report to an approved list of team leaders provided by the program
manager is sufficient evidence that a qualified team leader was present. If no qualified team leader as
identified by the State is found to have been on site during one or more inspections, Metric 12 is NC,
except for the following scenario. If the team leader present at the site is on the State’s list of
qualified team leaders, but it was found under Metric 3 that the team leader isn’t actually qualified,
this issue affects compliance for Metric 3 but not Metric 12. However, document the lack of a
qualified team leader on site in Metric 12 and explain that the compliance was affected for Metric 3.

At the Min-AL, use the Sampling Tool to determine the field review bridges, which will produce a
randomized list based on a predetermined set of factors and, if desired, based on the reviewer’s
selected (filtered) geographic region. The sample size at the Tier 1 level will likely be between 15
and 19 bridges, depending on the population of State bridges and the sub-population chosen for the
geographic area under review. The reviewer should remove any bridges that have been dismantled or
replaced, border bridges not under the State’s responsibility, or are otherwise inappropriate for
review, then use the tool to select the next one(s) on the randomized list. The reason for removal of
any bridge from the original randomized list should be documented in the Extent of Review section
of the FSM in SMART. Tier 2 or some other larger sample size should be considered in cases where
a larger selection would better represent multiple Districts or owning agencies within the State or
geographic area.

Assessing Metric 12 along with related Procedure metrics: When a related Procedure metric is being
assessed at the Min-AL, regardless of the Metric 12 assessment level, the reviewer is not expected to
compare conditions at the site with any bridge-specific procedures in the bridge file. Instead, focus
on the overall quality of inspection(s) compared to the inspection report(s), accessibility of bridge
members for inspection, and on the other aspects of Metric 12 such as accuracy of the condition
codes, supporting narrative, and presence of a team leader. In this case, obvious procedure related
inspection quality issues found during the field review, such as a bridge with a pier in deep water and
no evidence of an UW inspection being performed on the pier, should be considered Metric 12
findings. However, any finding directly related to a bridge-specific procedure for any Min-AL
Procedure metric should add to the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness of issues related to that
other metric, but should not directly affect the compliance measure for that metric. Discuss particular
findings with the PM and document them in the FSM. For serious findings, complete an Int-AL
review for the affected Procedure metric in the current or following review year.

When a related Procedure metric is being assessed at the Int-AL, the bridge-specific procedures are to
be reviewed under that metric. If evidence is found in the field indicating the bridge-specific
procedures were not followed, an inspection quality finding should be applied to Metric 12. On the
other hand, if the bridge-specific procedures were followed, but the procedures are found inadequate
for the particular bridge, a procedure finding should be applied to the Procedure metric.

Judgement should be applied in determining the effect of an inspection finding on either the Metric
12 or related Procedure metric’s compliance measure, taking into account the severity and extent of
the finding, the actual effect on inspection quality, and the importance of the specific procedure to
inspection quality.

For example, when a bridge-specific procedure has all FCMs identified, but evidence in the
inspection report or the field indicates some FCMs were not inspected within arm’s reach, the issue
should result in an inspection quality finding for Metric 12. However, if some FCMs were not

NBIP Metrics Page 36 of 72 ToC




Metric #12: Commentary rev 5/1/17

identified but evidence shows all FCMs were inspected within arm’s reach, the issue would result in
a bridge-specific procedure finding for Metric 16. If the FCMs were not identified and evidence
shows that FCMs were not inspected within arm’s reach, the finding should be applied to both
Metrics 12 and 16. If the extent of the finding isn’t clear, or if it’s uncertain which metric(s) apply,
discuss with the BSE.

If the most recent UW inspection report is several years old, any findings still apply toward the
bridge assessment.

At the Int-AL for Metric 12, include participation in at least one active Routine inspection. Select the
bridge(s) manually in consultation with the State, independent of the random sample bridges. For the
active inspection(s), observe the inspection process and application of proper procedures. Add the
bridge(s) to the random sample as a data point for assessment, but only review the bridge(s) for the
Field Form items related to quality of inspection, following of procedures, and qualified team leader
presence on the lower portion of the Form. Do not assess the condition ratings and narrative from the
previous Routine inspection report, or the ratings and narrative generated from the current inspection.
Although the condition ratings and supporting narratives aren’t rated on the Field Form for the
bridge(s), assess the bridge(s) as a data point with the other bridges for final compliance
determination.

Background/ changes for PY 2018: Revised this metric to make the selection of field bridges based
on a random sample, to be more consistent with other metrics. The random sample is based on
criteria built into the FHWA Sampling Tool, related to aspects determined to reflect higher risk, to
ensure selection of bridges of certain types and in fair to poor condition.

NBIP Metrics Page 37 of 72 ToC



Metric #13: Inspection procedures — Load Rating rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.313 (c) — Rate each bridge to its safe load-carrying capacity

'g e Bridges are rated for their safe load carrying capacity in accordance with the AASHTO Manual
T for Bridge Evaluation (MBE), for all legal vehicles and State routine permit loads.
@)
Population: All bridges in the State that are open to traffic.
Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:
o All bridges have a NBI load rating determination.
¢ All sampled bridges have documentation in accordance with the MBE that supports the load
@ rating determinations.
% Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:
j ¢ 100% of higher risk bridges and at least 95% of lower risk bridges have an NBI load rating
e determination.
%’_ o At least 90% of sampled bridges sampled have documentation in accordance with the MBE
£ that supports the load rating determinations.
G e Ratings may have minor or isolated documentation deficiencies, but these do not adversely
affect the accuracy of the rating.
Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).
Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:
e Monitor PCA if in effect.
¢ Review MAR13 Summary for indication of any new compliance deficiencies.
o Assess based on previous review results, the status of any new compliance deficiencies, and
the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness of State load rating practices.
—~ Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:
- : : . S
< e Review MAR13 and resolve load rating compliance deficiencies to the extent necessary to
% assure that the compliance status shown is correct, and discuss identified load rating data
% inconsistencies with the State.
— e Randomly sample bridges identified in the NBI as having load rating determinations and
§ review the load ratings to verify that load rating calculations or documented determinations
£ exist, all legal vehicles were considered, and load ratings are consistent with current
8 conditions.
< * Include some bridges from this metric’s random sample in the Metric 12 and 22 field review

sample, to compare actual bridge conditions with those identified in the load rating.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

¢ Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with
concurrence from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

¢ National InD-AL - conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 38 of 72 ToC



Metric #13: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: The NBIS requires all bridges to be rated for safe load capacity, including bridge length
culverts.

Population: Higher risk bridges for the Load Rating metric are those bridges with:
e NBI condition ratings of 4 (Poor) or less for Superstructure (Item 59),

Substructure (Item 60), or Culvert (Item 62)

Item 70 <5

NBI appraisal rating of 3 (Serious) or less for Structural Evaluation (Item 67)

Bridges requiring load restriction (NBI Item 41 coded B, P or R),

Bridges with temporary supports (NBI Item 41 coded D)

Bridges with fracture critical members (FCM)

Lower risk bridges for this metric are those that are not classified as higher risk bridges.

Compliance levels: A load rating, as defined in the NBIS, is the determination of the live load
carrying capacity of a bridge using bridge plans and supplemented by information gathered from a
field inspection.

An NBI load rating determination means NBI Items 63 and 65 are not equal to 5 (no load rating
analysis or evaluation performed).

The 100% and 95% thresholds in the first SC criteria are applied to higher and lower risk bridges,
respectively, as analyzed by MAR using the entire State inventory, while the 90% threshold in the
second SC criteria is applied to the file review sample, which is reviewed at the Int-AL. The
difference in the thresholds reflects the different aspects of assessing inventory load rating data
versus the review of a random sample of load rating files.

For SC, minor or isolated documentation deficiencies include calculations that are difficult to follow,
missing data input; valid but unclear assumptions, etc.

Any NBI reporting deficiencies, including data not reported in the proper format (RF/HS20/HL93),
or NBI data not matching the load ratings on file, should be considered for Metric 22.

Per the MBE, ratings should be accurate for current structural and traffic conditions, and material
types.

Reasonable timeframes to accomplish a load rating should be acknowledged in assessing
compliance. For example, consider a bridge that has recently been identified as needing a rating (or
re-rating), but the rating has not yet been done; if the State established timeframe has not been
exceeded, this bridge would not be considered as a rating deficiency.

The load rating should consider all legal vehicles when determining if posting is required or not.
This can either be done on a per bridge basis, or by parametric analysis for groups of bridges. When
the design load rating value does not envelope all legal loads, a rating value must be documented for
each vehicle requiring posting.

Assessment levels: Assessment of this metric includes review of MAR for all assessment levels, but
to a higher degree at the Int-AL than the Min-AL; it also includes review of a sampling of files, and
field reviews at the Int-AL.

NBIP Metrics Page 39 of 72 ToC



Metric #13: Commentary rev 5/1/17

The MAR includes all bridges for the metric population, and is based on the most recent and
previous April NBI submissions.

The MAR has a summary tab and a data tab(s). The data tab(s) details inconsistencies, errors, or
compliance deficiencies in the NBI load rating data. The results shown on the summary tab should
be considered a preliminary assessment of compliance only. Investigation of the data issues, as
indicated below, is required. Some issues may be data errors (a Metric 22 issue), while others may
relate to the load rating (a Metric 13 issue).

At the Min-AL, the MAR summary tab is reviewed for knowledge and awareness. If new
compliance deficiencies are identified that are not being corrected under a PCA, then the metric
should be assessed at the Int-AL, preferably in the current review year, or at the latest in the next
year, to determine the full extent of any issues related to the metric.

At the Int-AL, the compliance deficiencies identified on the summary and data tabs as red items must
be resolved by:
1. Reviewing the data for inconsistencies and errors, resolving as appropriate.
2. Informing the State of any non-resolved compliance deficiencies, and the NC or SC
determination based on MAR13.
3. Asking if the State concurs with the NC determination.
a. If there is concurrence with NC, follow normal procedures for NC.
b. If there is not concurrence with NC, ask for corrected NBI data or an explanation as to
why the metric should not be considered NC. If necessary to achieve resolution, increase
the sample size to the Tier 2 level or complete additional investigation at the InD-AL.

The final compliance snapshot on the MAR summary tab after resolution must match the compliance
level assigned for the metric.

The data inconsistencies identified in the MAR as yellow items are also evaluated at the Int-AL.
Review a few (at least 5 recommended) bridges of these bridges to determine if correction is
necessary. Some data inconsistencies could be valid, while others may not be, leading to SC and a
resulting Improvement Plan.

File review: At the Int-AL, select a random sample of bridges for file review. Verify bridges have
load rating calculations or that documented determinations exist and ensure that the results are
consistent with other bridge information contained in the file and in the NBI.

Verify load rating calculations, assumptions, and methodology to ensure consistency between
calculations and the load rating summary information, suitability of rating vehicles, software
program used, etc. Note load rating assumptions in the file and verify the actual conditions. Such
assumptions include LRFR considerations for condition, significance of or changes to dead load,
impact forces, and effectiveness of enforcement.

Evaluation of the load rating file and load rating policies and procedures requires familiarity with
assigned rating policies (5 conditions in the 9/29/2011 HIBT memo), rating vehicles (including
AASHTQO’s SHVs), and other MBE provisions.

An assigned rating is different than an engineering judgment rating as prescribed in the AASHTO
Manual. Engineering judgment is allowed by the MBE in certain circumstances, primarily for
concrete or masonry bridges with no plans.

NBIP Metrics Page 40 of 72 ToC


http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bridge/110929.cfm

Metric #13: Commentary rev 5/1/17

The FHWA Resource Center or Headquarters load rating specialists are available to participate when
conducting an Int-AL review.

Field reviews: At the Min-AL, the reviewer should compare field conditions, condition codes,
inspection narrative, and design load with the overall load rating, checking only for obvious and
substantial discrepancies between them. If a load rating issue is found for bridges field reviewed
under Metric 12, it should add to the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness for Metric 13. For
example, if a load rating for a bridge being reviewed under Metric 12 does not seem to match field
conditions, consider reviewing Metric 13 at the Int-AL sooner in the 5-year cycle than previously
planned or reviewing at the Tier 2 level to further assess the extent of the issue.

At the Int-AL, the process for determining the number and selection of sample bridges from this
metric for inclusion in the field review for Metrics 12 and 22 is covered in Metric 12, and is repeated
in part here. The Sampling Tool will automatically select a target number of bridges (see selection
criteria on the NBIP SharePoint site for current target number) required under this metric for the
Metrics 12 and 22 field reviews, if available in the selected geographic area. If fewer bridges than
the target are available, the reviewer is not expected to go outside of the geographic area to review
additional bridges.

At the Int-AL for Metric 13 for bridges selected for both field and file review, any field findings can
be applied directly to the compliance determination for Metric 13. Actual bridge conditions should
be compared to the load rating assumptions, input criteria, etc., such as the percentage of section loss
on steel beams.

Also at the Int-AL, evaluate the accuracy and compatibility of other related load rating NBI items
listed below for all bridges sampled. 1f NBI data is inaccurate, this should not directly affect the
compliance of Metric 13, since NBI data quality is assessed under Metric 22. Notify the State of any
data quality errors, but the data should not directly impact the compliance determination of Metric
22. However, if a widespread data issue is suspected, consider (re)assessing Metric 22 at the Int-AL
and including the load rating data item(s) in question.

Load rating NBI items relating to, or which could influence this rating include:
e Item 31 — Design Load

Items 63-66 — Operating/Inventory Ratings and Methods

Item 41 — Structure Open, Posted or Closed

Item 70 — Bridge Posting

Item 103 — Temporary Structure

Item 106 — Year Reconstructed

Item 108 — Wearing Surface

Metric Assessment Report (MAR): The MAR is generated using the NBIP MARGen tool
available at the NBIP SharePoint site.

The MAR is based on NBI data, which has some known limitations for determining compliance. A
few examples include border bridges where the other State has inspection responsibility, when the
time frame for processing and submitting NBI data causes some inspection data to be omitted from
the submittal, or situations when the bridge has been replaced or work has been performed that
changes the inspection schedule.

NBIP Metrics Page 41 of 72 ToC



Metric #13: Commentary rev 5/1/17

Background/ changes for PY 2018: Metric revised to no longer require resolution of all possible
deficiencies per the MAR at the Min-AL; several clarifications were made in the Commentary.

NBIP Metrics Page 42 of 72 ToC



Metric #14: Inspection procedures — Post or Restrict rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.313 (c) Inspection procedures — Post or restrict bridges

e Bridges are posted or restricted in accordance with the AASHTO Manual for Bridge
Evaluation (MBE) or in accordance with State law, when the maximum unrestricted legal
loads or State routine permit loads exceed that allowed under the operating rating or
equivalent rating factor.

e Posting deficiencies are promptly resolved.

Criteria

Population: All bridges in the State requiring posting or that are closed.

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:
e All bridges are properly posted or restricted.
¢ All identified posting/closing compliance deficiencies have been promptly resolved.

Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:

e All bridges are properly posted or restricted.

e Posting deficiencies have been promptly resolved, but no maximum timeframe for correction
has been established or documented.

o Safety Related Checks for bridge posting included in the NBI data check reports are resolved
within 90 days of receipt.

Compliance Levels

Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

e Monitor PCA if in effect.

¢ Review and notify the State of posting deficiencies identified in the data submittal reports
within 30 days of receiving the reports from the NBI administrator.

e Review MAR 14 and resolve all posting deficiencies identified.

e Assess based on previous review results, the status of current posting deficiencies, and the
reviewer’s knowledge and awareness of State load posting practices.

Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:

e Randomly sample bridges requiring posting and review the bridge files to verify that the
documentation shows posting is properly implemented and corresponds to the load rating
recommendation.

e Include some bridges from this metric’s random sample in the Metric 12 and 22 field review
sample, to verify that posting signs exist and are appropriate for the current load rating and
posting recommendations.

Assessment Levels (AL)

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

¢ Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with
concurrence from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

¢ National InD-AL — Conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 43 of 72 ToC



Metric #14: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: This metric assesses whether bridges are load posted or restricted when the maximum
unrestricted legal loads or State routine permit loads exceed those allowed under the operating rating or
equivalent rating factor.

Population: Criteria for Metric 14, bridges requiring posting:
e Item41=Aand (Item 70 <5 or Item 64 <20 mT*) or
e Item41=B,D,E K,PorRor
e Item4l<>Kand Item 64 <2.7mT*

* Note that the Sampling Tool and MAR generator require Item 64 to be in metric tons, regardless of
how submitted. When Items 64 (and 66) are submitted as a rating factor to the NBI, they are converted
to and stored as metric tons. When generating a NBI data file, Item 64 (and 66) are output in metric
tons.

Compliance levels: The Safety Related Checks for bridge posting list bridges with Item 64 between 2.7
and 19.9 mT or Item 41 = “B’. These checks are included in the NBI data check reports, which are
generated during processing of the NBI data submittal and sent to the Division and State by the National
Bridge and Tunnel Inventory Engineer in the Office of Bridges and Structures. Track the resolution of the
Checks to determine the proper compliance level.

Promptly resolved means resolving within the timeframe stipulated in the load posting procedures. The
FHWA recommends resolution as soon as possible depending on urgency, up to 90 days if no
timeframe has been established. The FHWA selected the default 90-day timeframe after careful
consideration of current practice, the safety implications, and what can reasonably be accomplished.
However, in cases where known existing loads significantly exceed the recommended posting limit, or
the route is of significant importance (bus routes, emergency vehicle routes, etc.), FHWA recognizes
that these routes must be posted much more quickly to ensure safety.

It is not possible to eliminate vandalism or impact damage; however, the owner should develop a
process to quickly replace or repair such signs upon discovering the problem. For example, some
States consider a missing posting sign a critical finding and have established an allowable timeframe to
reinstall the sign. Similarly, once determined that a bridge must be restricted for loads, the new signs
must be installed promptly. If the owner is able to install the missing, damaged, or new posting signs
within the agreed upon timeframe, the deficiency is considered resolved, and a determination of C is
warranted. If the owner has no established timeframe, but still promptly resolves the issue, a
determination of substantial compliance is warranted. If the owner does not timely address the issue of
posting deficiencies, this should be considered NC.

Consider substandard signs, such as those with the proper information but a non-standard font or sign
material or not easily readable, to be SC.

Assessment levels: Resolve all identified posting/closing compliance deficiencies by following up on
identified items and determining if they are just data errors that must be corrected, or if bridges still must be
posted. Confirm the accuracy of the data, and resolve any compliance issue(s). If the bridge has since been
posted within the established timeframes, this would be considered resolved. If any bridge must be posted
and has not been by the established timeframes (or 90 days if no timeframe is established), this is
considered NC. Address such situations promptly with the State, and communicate them to the Division
Administrator and the Bridge Safety Engineer. Document the current status and eventual resolution of each
of these situations in the MAR14, with a copy attached in SMART.

NBIP Metrics Page 44 of 72 ToC



Metric #14: Commentary rev 5/1/17

At the Min-AL for Metric 14, if a posting issue is found for bridges field reviewed under Metric 12, use
this knowledge and awareness to consider another review of Metric 14 at the Int-AL in the current or
following review year, to further assess the extent of the issue. Discuss particular findings with the
State for prompt resolution.

At the Int-AL, the process for determining the number and selection of sample bridges from this metric
for inclusion in the field review for Metrics 12 and 22 is covered in Metric 12, and is in part repeated
here. The Sampling Tool will automatically select a target number of bridges from this metric for the
Metrics 12 and 22 field reviews if available in the selected geographic area (see selection criteria on the
NBIP SharePoint site). If fewer than the target are available, the reviewer is not expected to go outside
of the geographic area to review additional bridges.

At the Int-AL for Metric 14, for bridges selected for both field and file review, any field findings can be
applied directly to the compliance determination for Metric 14.

Load posting NBI items are those related to or could influence this topic: Item 31 — Design Load; Items 63-
66 — Operating/Inventory Ratings and Methods; Item 41 — Structure Open, Posted, or Closed; Item 70 —
Bridge Posting; Item 103 — Temporary Structure. At the Int-ALs these items are reviewed during field
reviews for compatibility between items and for accuracy. The reviewer should include these items as part
of an Int-AL of Metric 22 when this level of assessment is undertaken for Metric 14.

In some cases, bridges on the Metric 14 sample that need posting are coded ‘R’ for Item 41—these are often
parkway bridges with ample load capacity for the trucks allowed on the parkway. In these cases, if the
operating rating meets or exceeds the force effects from all allowable truck loads on that route, and heavier
trucks are restricted by some other method than load posting each bridge, then the code of ‘R’ is sufficient
to indicate that the bridge is restricted and does not need to be individually posted.

Metric Assessment Report (MAR): The MAR includes all bridges for the metric population, based
on the most recent and previous April NBI submissions.

The MAR has a summary tab and a data tab(s). The data tab shows the bridge-by-bridge posting status
based on several evaluations using NBI Items 41, 64, 70, 103, and 59-60 or 62 in the most recent and
the previous year’s NBI submissions. It also has a Bridge Compliance Status indicator showing the
overall posting status of the bridges. The summary tab summarizes the evaluation data on the data tab
and provides an Overall Compliance Snapshot based on a summary of the Bridge Compliance Status
indicator.

For all assessment levels, the Bridge Compliance Status of all bridges evaluated as not properly posted
or restricted must be resolved. The data tab provides columns for manually overriding the evaluation
result and for providing comments or explanations based on the review.

Posting/closing compliance deficiencies are those identified as red items in the MAR. (Note: These
include the “safety related checks” of the NBI submission, but also incorporate more data checks).

MAR data inconsistencies and errors are those identified as yellow items in the report.

Background/changes for PY2018: Clarifications were made to commentary.

NBIP Metrics Page 45 of 72 ToC



Metric #15: Inspection procedures — Bridge Files rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.313 (d) — Prepare bridge files

e Bridge files are prepared and significant bridge file components recorded as described in the
AASHTO MBE.

Criteria

Population: Bridges for the entire State that are open to traffic.

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:
e All sampled bridges have files.
e All sampled files have the applicable significant components.

Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:
e All sampled bridges have files.
o At least 85% of sampled bridge files have the applicable significant components.

Compliance Levels

Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

e Monitor PCA if in effect.

e Assess based on previous review results and the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness of
State’s practices.

Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:

e Randomly sample bridges to verify that bridge files and significant bridge file components
exist; if some components are only referenced, verify the components exist in the
referenced location(s) and are readily available.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the
following:

e Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with
concurrence from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

¢ National InD-AL — Conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines

Assessment Levels (AL)

NBIP Metrics Page 46 of 72 ToC



Metric #15: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: As outlined in Section 2 of the AASHTO Manual (MBE), the bridge file contains a wide
range of information applicable to bridge inspection which may be located in more than one location.
The list of applicable significant bridge file components for Metric 15, which is a subset of the larger
list provided in the MBE is composed of:

Inspection reports

Waterway information — channel cross-sections, soundings, stream profiles
Special inspection procedures or requirements

Load rating documentation, including load testing results

Posting documentation

Critical findings and actions taken

Scour assessment

Scour Plan of Action (POA) (for scour critical bridges and those with unknown
foundations) and documentation of post-event inspection or follow-up
Inventory and evaluation data and collection/verification forms

¢ Significant correspondence

Per the NBIS, bridge files must also contain maintenance records.

Channel cross-sections must be included in the bridge file per section 4.8.7 of the AASHTO

MBE. The FHWA interprets the MBE provision to apply to all bridges, including floorless culverts,
spanning a waterway. Cross sections include vertical measurements from identified points on the
upstream and downstream face(s) of the structure to the stream bottom or embankment at each
abutment and at other substructure walls or piers at a minimum. A single cross section at one face
may be appropriate for historically stable channels and embankments. Cross sections must be
updated periodically so that a historical comparison is available in the file to help determine the
extent of any scour, channel shifting, degradation, or aggradation of the stream. A frequency for
obtaining and updating these measurements should be established, depending on an assessment of the
bridge and stream characteristics, and documented in the bridge file. Evaluate the need for obtaining
cross sections for pipes and box culverts that meet the definition of a bridge under the NBIS on a
case-by-case basis.

Significant correspondence refers to correspondence and agreements regarding inspection
responsibility, ownership, maintenance responsibilities with other agencies, or other issues that have
an impact on the ability to ensure that thorough and timely inspections are completed.

For additional information on particular aspects or considerations relating to the significant file
components, consult Section 2 of the AASHTO MBE.

Some significant components require retention of historical information, such as inspection reports,
channel cross-section, etc. If the historical aspect of these components is found deficient, such as
lack of past cross-section information, the remedy of this practice through an improvement plan or
plan of corrective action will only change future documentation. Future year assessments should
consider these recent improvements and their effectiveness of procedures moving forward in time in
evaluating the adequacy of these components, and not require full histories that are unrecoverable.
Another scenario is if files have been destroyed by a natural disaster, the previous files should be re-
created to the extent possible from electronic or duplicate copies that may exist elsewhere, and from
that time going forward the new file contents should be complete.

NBIP Metrics Page 47 of 72 ToC



Metric #15: Commentary rev 5/1/17

Compliance levels: Percentages for determining metric compliance should be calculated by
considering each bridge file as one data point. Each of the significant components listed above and
relevant maintenance and inspection data are the minimum requirements. Those components that do
not apply to that particular bridge do not affect compliance for that bridge. For example, a scour
assessment is not necessary if the bridge is not over water; no posting documentation is necessary if
calculated load capacities were sufficient; etc.

For another example, when reviewing a sample of 19 bridges at the Int-AL, 1 bridge file is missing a
required scour assessment; a second is missing both the load rating calculations and the stream cross-
sections for a scour critical bridge; and the remaining bridge files are complete. The compliance
percentage would be calculated as 17/19, or 89.5%, yielding a substantial compliance determination
for the metric.

Assessment levels: Most of the components of a bridge file should be in the same location;

however, if there are items that are not included in the bridge file, the file should reference where the
information is located. The bridge file can be electronic, hard-copy, or a combination of both, as
determined by the State’s policies. Bridge files, or parts thereof, might be located in district or region
offices for agencies that have a de-centralized organizational structure. These files may be reviewed
electronically, by requesting mailed copies, or by visiting the remote offices.

Background/ changes for PY 2018: Minor editorial corrections made, and clarification on channel
cross sections and relevant maintenance data.

NBIP Metrics Page 48 of 72 ToC



Metric #16: Inspection procedures — Fracture Critical Members rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.313 (e) (1) — Bridges with fracture critical members (FCMs)

e Bridges with FCMs have the following:

= o location of all FCMs identified
b= 0 inspection frequency
3] 0 inspection procedures
e FCMs are inspected according to those procedures.
Population: Bridges for the entire State with FCMs that are open to traffic.
Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:
o All sampled bridges with FCMs have documented inspection procedures.
= o All sampled bridges with FCMs are inspected according to those procedures.
>
4 Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:
8 e All sampled bridges with FCMs have documented inspection procedures; the procedures may
& have minor or isolated deficiencies that do not adversely affect the effectiveness of the FCM
S inspections.
CE, e All sampled bridges with FCMs are inspected according to those procedures.
O
Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).
Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:
e Monitor PCA if in effect.
e Assess based on previous review results and the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness of
:::T State’s FCM inspection practices.
& Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:
€ e Randomly sample bridges to verify that sample FCM bridge files contain inspection
4 procedures, and the FCM inspection report indicates the bridge was inspected according to
% those procedures.
£ e Include some bridges from this metric’s random sample in the Metric 12 and 22 field review
§ sample, to verify documented procedures were followed.
(72]
< In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

e Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with
concurrence from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.
e National InD-AL - Conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 49 of 72 ToC



Metric #16: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: FCMs must be inspected according to the documented inspection procedures for the
bridge, which should contribute to thorough inspections yielding accurate condition assessments.

Risk factors to consider for inspection procedures include, but are not limited to:

o fatigue and fracture prone details ¢ load posted

e problematic materials e superstructure condition code of 4 or less
e poor welding techniques e subject to overloads or impact damage

e potential out-of-plane distortion details o older service life

e previous cracking or repairs e removal of debris

e source of prior cracking e high ADTT (either ADTT>5,000 or State
e cold service temperatures defined criteria)

Knowledge of the source of prior cracking, such as load induced, distortion induced, constraint
induced (pop-in fracture), or fabrication flaws (hydrogen, weld defect, etc.), can determine proper
inspection procedures. Load induced is typically the most predictable, whereas the others are less
predictable (with more inherent risk). The lowest anticipated service temperature is an important
factor in determining susceptibility to cracking.

Bridges posted because of a controlling FCM, which may include deterioration, also warrant special
attention. In general, evaluate the appropriateness of the prescribed procedures for any identified risk
factors.

The non-redundant nature of FCMs, especially when coupled with risk factors, leads to a heightened
concern for the performance of these members. By identifying these conditions or risk factors, the
inspectors of FCMSs can appropriately prepare for, and perform, a thorough inspection. Accordingly,
the reviewer should, for those bridges selected from this metric for field review, look for the presence
of risk factors at each site and evaluate whether the FCM inspection procedures and the inspection
reports adequately address them.

Compliance levels: Minor or isolated deficiencies with FCM inspection procedures are those that
could be improved to make the inspection more efficient or effective, or relate to better
documentation of the report or the procedures. For example, ultrasonic inspection methods might be
listed, but it is unclear which members will receive UT. However, the identification of FCMs,
frequency of inspection, and knowing the risk factors present are all critical items, and deficiencies in
these are not considered minor.

Assessment levels: Documented inspection procedures are those procedures required in the NBIS
for specific types of more complex inspections, in this case for FCMs, to address those items that
need to be communicated to the inspection team leader to ensure a successful inspection. These
inspections must be planned and prepared for, identifying and accounting for each fracture critical
member, needed access, inspection equipment, risk factors present (as detailed above), inspection
methods and frequencies, and the required qualifications of inspecting personnel.

The AASHTO MBE, Section 4, has general considerations regarding inspection plans. An owner
may have general overall inspection procedures in their bridge inspection manual which address
common aspects of FCM inspections; however, each bridge with FCMs must have written inspection
procedures specific to that bridge which address items unique to that bridge, if any. The prior
inspection report is valuable to review for previous inspection findings, but often does not serve the

NBIP Metrics Page 50 of 72 ToC



Metric #16: Commentary rev 5/1/17

same purpose as the inspection procedures. The inspection report records what an inspector actually
did, what was looked at, and what was found. Procedures lay out what should be done, looked at,
etc. However, the required procedures may be incorporated into each report, often as an introductory
section. This is an acceptable practice.

At the Min-AL for Metric 16, any State bridge-specific FCM procedures need not be assessed during
the field reviews of any bridges under Metric 12 that may include FCMs. If an issue is found
regarding a bridge-specific FCM inspection procedure for bridges field reviewed under Metric 12, it
should add to the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness toward Metric 16. Consider reviewing Metric
16 at the Int-AL in the current or following review year, to further assess the extent of the issue.
Discuss particular findings with the State and document them in the FSM.

Conversely, at the Int-AL for Metric 16, for bridges selected for both field and file review, any field
findings should be applied directly to the compliance determination for Metric 16.

For file review sampled bridges, evaluate the FCM inspection procedures for compatibility with the
inspection reports and the bridge plans.

At the Int-AL, the process for determining the number and selection of sample bridges from this
metric for inclusion in the field review for Metrics 12 and 22 is covered in Metric 12, and is repeated
here in part. The Sampling Tool will automatically select a target number of bridges from this metric
for the Metrics 12 and 22 field reviews if available in the selected geographic area (see selection
criteria on the NBIP SharePoint site for field bridge selection). If fewer than the target are available,
the reviewer is not expected to go outside of the geographic area to review additional bridges.

Background/ changes for PY 2018: Clarifications to field review selection and other clarifications
were made.

NBIP Metrics Page 51 of 72 ToC



Metric #17: Inspection procedures — Underwater rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.313 (€)(2) — Bridges requiring underwater (UW) inspections

e Bridges requiring UW inspection have the following:

.3 o location of all UW inspection elements identified
g 0 inspection frequency
O 0 inspection procedures
e UW elements are inspected according to those procedures.
Population: Bridges for the entire State requiring underwater inspection that are open to traffic.
Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:
o All sampled bridges requiring UW inspection have documented inspection procedures.
«» * All sampled bridges requiring UW inspections are inspected according to those procedures.
% Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:
;'J o At least 90% of sampled bridges requiring UW inspections have documented inspection
e procedures; procedures may have minor or isolated deficiencies, but the deficiencies do not
% adversely affect the effectiveness of the UW inspections.
£ e At least 90% of sampled bridges requiring UW inspections are inspected according to those
G procedures.
Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).
Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:
e Monitor PCA if in effect.
< ° Assess based on previous review results and the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness of
< State’s UW inspection practices.
= Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL.:
& e Randomly sample bridges to verify that files contain UW inspection procedures, and the
:', UW inspection report shows that the bridge was inspected according to those procedures.
é e Include some bridges from this metric’s random sample in the Metric 12 and 22 field review
3 sample, to verify documented procedures were followed.
? In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

e Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with
concurrence from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.
e National InD-AL - Conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 52 of 72 ToC



Metric #17: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: UW inspection must be performed according to the documented inspection procedures for
the bridge, which should contribute to thorough inspections yielding accurate condition assessments.

Documented UW inspection procedures are those procedures required in the NBIS for specific types
of more complex inspections, in this case for underwater elements, to address those items that must
be communicated to the inspection team leader to ensure a successful inspection. These inspections
must be planned and prepared for, taking into account identified underwater elements, physical scour
countermeasures, needed access, inspection equipment, structural details, hydraulic features and
characteristics, risk factors (as detailed below), inspection methods and frequencies, and the required
qualifications of inspecting personnel.

Other items that may be addressed, if applicable, are: special contracting procedures prior to
inspection (Coast Guard, etc.) and scheduling considerations (lake draw down, canal dry time, etc.).
The AASHTO MBE, Section 4, gives general considerations regarding inspection plans.

An owner may have general overall inspection procedures in the bridge inspection manual that
address common aspects of underwater inspections; however, each bridge with elements requiring
underwater inspection must have written inspection procedures specific to each bridge that address
items unique to that bridge. The prior inspection report is valuable to review for previous inspection
findings, but most often does not serve the same purpose as the inspection procedures. The
inspection report records what an inspector actually did, what was looked at, and what was found.
Procedures lay out what should be done, looked at, etc. However, the required procedures may be
incorporated into the report, often as an introductory section. This is an acceptable practice.

This metric considers the risks of bridges which cross over waterways. The development of good
inspection procedures and concerted attention to follow those procedures will mitigate most of those
risks. In addition, the risk of scour for scour critical bridges or bridges with unknown foundations is
mitigated by development and implementation of a scour plan of action (POA) for each bridge.

Compliance levels: Specific risk factors include waterway features that may promote scour and
undermining of substructure elements, such as, but not limited to:

rapid stream flows

significant debris accumulation
constricted waterway openings
soft or unstable streambeds
meandering channels

Water conditions that may affect the inspection, such as black water or rapid stream flows, should be
identified and accounted for in the inspection methods. The procedures should identify water
environment and structural systems or materials that may accelerate deterioration of the bridge
elements. These factors include highly corrosive water, unprotected steel members, timber piling in
the presence of teredos or limnoria, etc. By identifying these conditions, the underwater inspectors
can appropriately prepare for and perform a thorough inspection.

NBIP Metrics Page 53 of 72 ToC



Metric #17: Commentary rev 5/1/17

For bridges sampled for field and/or file review, look for any evidence of risk factors or unique
circumstances or conditions at each site by reviewing the inspection report, plans, etc., and
comparing them with the inspection procedures. The field review should verify underwater inspection
access requirements, if possible.

Assessment levels: At the Min-AL for Metric 17, any State bridge-specific procedures need not be
assessed during the field reviews of any bridges under Metric 12, which may include bridges
requiring underwater inspections. If a specific underwater inspection procedure issue is found for
bridges field reviewed under Metric 12, it should add to the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness
toward Metric 17, and consider reviewing Metric 17 at the Int-AL in the current or following review
year, to further assess the extent of the issue. Discuss particular findings with the State and document
them in the FSM.

Conversely, at the Int-AL for Metric 17, for bridges selected by the sampling tool for both field and
file review, any field findings should be applied directly to the compliance determination for Metric
17.

At the Int-AL, the process for determining the number and selection of sample bridges from this
metric for inclusion in the field review for Metrics 12 and 22 is covered in Metric 12, and is in part
repeated here. The Sampling Tool will automatically select a target number of bridges from this
metric for the Metrics 12 and 22 field reviews, if available in the selected geographic area (see
selection criteria on the NBIP SharePoint site for field bridge selection). If fewer than the target are
available, the reviewer is not expected to go outside of the geographic area to review additional
bridges.

Background/ changes for PY 2018: No substantial changes were made to this metric. Minor
clarifications and editorial corrections were made.

NBIP Metrics Page 54 of 72 ToC



Metric #18: Inspection procedures — Scour rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.313 (e), (e3) Bridges that are scour critical

< * Bridges over water have a documented evaluation of scour vulnerability.
S e Bridges that are scour critical have a scour plan of action (POA) prepared to monitor known and
= potential deficiencies and to address scour critical findings.
. . Bridges that are scour critical are monitored in accordance with the POA.
Population: Bridges for the entire State that are over water and open to traffic.
Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:
o All bridges over water have a scour evaluation as indicated by NBI scour coding.
¢ All sampled bridges have a documented scour evaluation assessing scour vulnerability.
o All sampled bridges that are scour critical or with unknown foundations have a scour POA.
., ® Allsampled bridges subject to a triggering event are monitored in accordance with the POA.
'S Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:
3« All bridges over water have a scour evaluation as indicated by NBI scour coding.
8 e All sampled bridges over water have a documented scour evaluation assessing scour
_§ vulnerability, but some evaluations may have minor or isolated deficiencies that do not
'S adversely affect the assessment.
g o All sampled bridges that are scour critical or with unknown foundations have a POA, but some
= may have minor or isolated deficiencies that do not adversely affect the POA effectiveness.
o All sampled scour critical bridges subject to a triggering event are monitored in accordance
with the POA, but minor deficiencies in documentation of monitoring may exist.
Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria are not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).
Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:
e Monitor PCA if in effect.
e Review MAR18 Summary and resolve previously identified unevaluated bridges.
e Assess based on previous review results, the status of any new compliance deficiencies, and
from the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness of the State’s processes and practices.
7 Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:
<« Randomly sample bridges to review files to verify that scour evaluations are documented,
= consistent with bridge conditions, and properly assess scour vulnerability.
§ e From the random sample, verify that POAs are developed and documented for those that are
— scour critical or have unknown foundations.
S e Include some bridges from this metric’s random sample in the Metric 12 and 22 field review
g sample, to verify validity of scour evaluations.
@ e Ifatriggering event has occurred to a sampled bridge during the 2-year period prior to the
<L year of assessment, review file and conduct interviews as necessary to verify that monitoring

was executed in accordance with POA.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

¢ Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

¢ National InD-AL - Conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 55 of 72 ToC



Metric #18: Commentary rev 5/1/17

Population: Metric 18 criteria:

Criteria for bridges requiring scour evaluation:
e Item42B=5,6, 7, 8,9 (all bridges over waterways) or
e lItem11l3<or>N

Criteria for bridges requiring a scour POA:
e Item 113 < 4 (scour critical bridges) or
e Item 113 = U (bridges over water with unknown foundations)

Compliance levels: POA deficiencies leading to a SC determination could be either lack of adequate
documentation or ineffective monitoring. Lack of documentation could include inadequate or
outdated information for emergency contacts, scour information, etc.

A documented scour evaluation should be a report with calculations, a documented assessment, or
documented screening process explaining how the Item 113 value was determined. This evaluation
should be available for every bridge over water.

Ineffective monitoring could involve situations where monitoring thresholds are poorly chosen or not
clearly identified, or there was some confusion on what to monitor for or in what priority.

SC instances represent minor or isolated situations. POAs with major or significant shortcomings that
render them useless for mitigating scour risks are NC findings.

Assessment levels: Previously identified unevaluated bridges in the MAR are those which have
been coded as 6/ T/ null in Item 113 — Scour Critical Bridges. The resolution of these items at the
Min-AL is to verify that those bridges have been evaluated for scour.

At the Min-AL for Metric 18, any State bridge-specific procedures need not be assessed during the
field reviews of any bridges under Metric 12, which may include bridges that are scour critical and
require a POA. If a specific issue related to Metric 18 is found for bridges field reviewed under
Metric 12, it should add to the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness of compliance toward Metric 18,
and consider reviewing Metric 18 at the Int-AL in the current or following review year, to further
assess the extent of the issue. Discuss particular findings with the State and document them in the
FSM.

Conversely, at the Int-AL for Metric 18, for bridges selected for both field and file review, any field
findings should be applied directly to the compliance determination for Metric 18.

At the Int-AL, the process for determining the number and selection of sample bridges from this
metric for inclusion in the field review for Metrics 12 and 22 is covered in Metric 12, and is repeated
here in part. The Sampling Tool will automatically select a target number of bridges from this metric
for the Metrics 12 and 22 field reviews if available in the selected geographic area (see selection
criteria on the NBIP SharePoint site for field bridge selection). If fewer than the target are available,
the reviewer is not expected to go outside of the geographic area to review additional bridges.

At the Int-AL, the field review of the sampled bridges should verify scour vulnerability coding
compared to actual conditions, in addition to the other aspects of field review conducted under Metric
12 and 22. Also, for bridges requiring a scour POA, evaluate conditions on site to determine
compatibility to the actions required in the plan. If a scour ‘triggering event’ has occurred within the

NBIP Metrics Page 56 of 72 ToC



Metric #18: Commentary rev 5/1/17

2-year period prior to the year of assessment (2 full calendar years prior), then determine if the
POA was followed through record review, and through interview if the records are inconclusive.

Metric Assessment Report (MAR): The MAR includes all bridges over waterways for the
metric population, based on the most recent and previous April NBI submissions.

The MAR has a summary tab and a data tab. The data tab shows the status of each bridge based
on NBI Item 113 in the most recent and the previous year’s NBI submissions. It also indicates
whether a POA is required (if the bridge is scour critical or has an unknown foundation).

For all assessment levels, the status of all bridges listed as not evaluated (NBI Item 113 code =
‘6’ or blank), identified as red items, must be resolved. The data tab provides columns for
overriding the result and for providing comments or explanations based on the review.

For newly constructed or acquired bridges, a scour evaluation may be completed up to 1 year after
acquisition.

Background/ changes for PY 2018: The population for this metric now applies to all bridges over
water when assessing completion of scour evaluations. Previous assessment at the Int-AL only
applied to bridges evaluated as scour critical, not yet evaluated, or having unknown foundations. The
Min-AL no longer requires verification of POAs for scour critical bridges.

NBIP Metrics Page 57 of 72 ToC



Metric #19: Inspection procedures — Complex Bridges rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.313 (f) — Complex bridges

Criteria

Compliance Levels

Assessment Levels (AL)

e Complex bridges have the following identified:
0 specialized inspection procedures
O additional inspector experience and training
e Complex bridges are inspected according to the procedures.

Population: Bridges for the entire State that are complex bridge types that are open to traffic.

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:

¢ All sampled complex bridges have specialized documented inspection procedures, and have
any required additional inspector training and experience identified.

¢ All sampled complex bridges are inspected according to the specialized procedures, and
inspectors of those bridges have the identified additional training and experience.

Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:

o At least 90% of sampled complex bridges have specialized documented inspection procedures,
and have any required additional inspector training and experience identified.

o At least 90% of sampled complex bridges are inspected according to the specialized
procedures, and inspectors have the identified additional training and experience.

Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

e Monitor PCA if in effect.

e Assess based on previous review results and the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness of
complex bridge inspection procedures.

Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL.:

e Randomly sample bridge files to verify that bridges have documented specialized
inspection procedures, and that any additional inspector training and experience has been
identified and met.

e Review sample bridge reports to verify that documented procedures were followed.

e Include some bridges from this metric’s random sample in the Metric 12 and 22 field review
sample, to verify documented procedures were followed.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

e Division InD-AL — In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with
concurrence from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

e National InD-AL — Conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 58 of 72 ToC



Metric #19: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: Complex features found in complex bridges include, but are not limited to:

e suspension cables e other unusual characteristics which
e stay cables may include:

e anchorages of cables and post-tensioning o floating bridge components

e electrical systems o materials with known problems
e mechanical systems o special seismic features

e operational systems and controls

Features may be considered complex due to design, constructability, and/or inspectability issues.

Complex bridges must be inspected according to the written inspection procedures for the bridge and
by inspectors with the additional training and experience specified. This should result in thorough
inspections yielding accurate condition assessments.

Specific risk factors include, but are not limited to:

e complex structural response e high ADT & ADTT
e difficult to access ¢ low redundancy
e specialized inspection equipment needs e history of past problems

By identifying these conditions or risk factors in the inspection procedures, the complex bridge
inspectors can appropriately prepare for and perform a thorough inspection.

Population: Complex bridges are defined in the NBIS as movable, suspension, cable stayed, and
other bridges with unusual characteristics. Criteria for Metric 19:

e Item43B =13, 14, 15, 16, or 17

States have the flexibility to define additional bridges considered complex because of unusual
characteristics. If additional bridge types are considered complex, include them in the population.

Compliance levels: Acceptable specialized documented inspection procedures are required in the
NBIS for specific types of more complex inspections, including for complex bridges. Such
procedures address items that must be communicated to the inspection team leader to ensure a
successful inspection. These inspections must be planned and prepared for, taking into account
identified complex features (detailed above), risk factors (detailed above), inspection methods and
frequencies, and the required qualifications of inspecting personnel. The AASHTO MBE, Section 4,
discusses general considerations regarding inspection plans.

An owner may include general inspection procedures in the bridge inspection manual that address
common aspects of inspecting particular features; however, each complex bridge with unique
elements requiring special inspection must have specific written inspection procedures. These
procedures must identify which features have unusual characteristics and detail how to inspect them.
The prior inspection report is valuable to review for previous inspection findings, but most often does
not serve the same purpose as the inspection procedures. The inspection report records what an
inspector actually did, what was looked at, and what was found. Procedures lay out what should be
done, looked at, etc. However, the required procedures may be incorporated into the report, often as
an introductory section. This is an acceptable practice.

NBIP Metrics Page 59 of 72 ToC



Metric #19: Commentary rev 5/1/17

Assessment levels: At the Min-AL for Metric 19, any State bridge-specific procedures need not be
assessed during the field reviews of any bridges under Metric 12, which may include bridges
requiring underwater inspections. If a specific issue related to Metric 19 is found for bridges field
reviewed under Metric 12, it should add to the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness toward Metric
19, and consider reviewing M19 at the Int-AL in the current or following review year, to further
assess the extent of the issue. Discuss particular findings with the State and document them in the
FSM.

Conversely, at the Int-AL for Metric 19, for bridges selected for both field and file review, any field
findings should be applied directly to the compliance determination for Metric 19.

At the Int-AL, the process for determining the number and selection of sample bridges from this
metric for inclusion in the field review for Metrics 12 and 22 is covered in Metric 12, and is repeated
here in part. The Sampling Tool will automatically select a target number of bridges from this metric
for the Metrics 12 and 22 field reviews if available in the selected geographic area (see selection
criteria on the NBIP SharePoint site for field bridge selection). If fewer bridges than the target are
available, the reviewer is not expected to go outside of the geographic area to review additional
bridges.

For file reviews, evaluate the inspection procedures for compatibility with the inspection reports and
the bridge plans.

The field reviews should verify the complex bridge designation, in addition to the other aspects of
field review conducted under Metric 12 and 22.

For those bridges selected from this metric for field review, the reviewer should look for any
evidence of risk factors or unique circumstances or conditions at each site. Then evaluate whether
the inspection procedures and inspection reports adequately address them.

Background/ changes for PY 2018: No substantial changes were made to this metric.
Minor clarifications and editorial corrections were made.

NBIP Metrics Page 60 of 72 ToC



Metric #20: Inspection procedures — QC/QA rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.313 (g) — QC/QA

e Systematic quality control (QC) and quality assurance (QA) procedures are used to maintain a
high degree of accuracy and consistency in the inspection program.

e QC/QA procedures include periodic field review of inspection teams, periodic refresher
training requirements, and independent review of inspection reports and computations.

Criteria

Population: None (or as determined to be appropriate by the reviewer).

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:

e QC/QA procedures are established, documented, implemented, and effective.

e QC/QA procedures include periodic field review of inspection teams, periodic refresher
training requirements, and independent review of inspection reports and computations.

Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:

e QC/QA procedures are established, implemented, and effective, but minor aspects of the
procedures are not documented or are not being performed.

e QC/QA procedures include periodic field review of inspection teams, periodic refresher
training requirements, and independent review of inspection reports and computations.

Compliance Levels

Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria are not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

e Monitor PCA if in effect.

e Assess based on previous review results and the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness of
QC/QA procedures.

Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:

e Review written procedures to verify that the key components of the QC/QA procedures
meet the requirements of the NBIS.

e Verify that a process exists to document the bridges that have received QC or QA.

e Review documentation of QA reviews for number of reviews, types of reviews and
findings; verify that any measurable review requirements have been achieved.

e Assess whether the procedures are effective in improving program accuracy and
consistency, by determining if actions resulting from the QA findings are being taken.

e Perform interviews of personnel responsible for QC and/or QA reviews to determine or
verify procedures are used.

Assessment Levels (AL)

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

e Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

¢ National InD-AL — Conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 61 of 72 ToC



Metric #20: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: This metric evaluates if the QC/QA process meets the intent of the NBIS, verifies that the
reviews are performed, and ensures that review results are used to maintain a high degree of accuracy
and consistency in the inspection program.

FHWA'’s recommended QC/QA framework can be found at
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bridge/nbis/nbisframework.cfm.

Criteria: Computations include but are not limited to load rating and scour evaluation calculations.

Review of Inspection Reports should also include review of the NBI data associated with the
inspection.

Population: A population was not defined for this metric. There are many different methods and
requirements by which Agencies perform QC/QA review of inspections, load ratings, NBI data, and
other computations.

However, if the established QC/QA process lends itself to random sampling, the reviewer may use
the NBIP assessment sampling criteria to review the various aspects of QC/QA process.

Compliance levels: Implemented QC/QA procedures infers that the procedures are enacted and
used.

When evaluating this metric, consider if repetitive errors are found during the review of Metrics 12,
13, 18, and 22, as this may be an indication that the QC/QA procedures are ineffective.

If minor aspects of the QC/QA process are not being performed, but the overall effectiveness is not
impacted, this would be considered SC. An example of minor aspects would be cases where a
QCI/QA check was performed, but documentation of the check is missing.

Assessment levels: The Min-AL is based upon the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness the
agencies QC/QA program and if the procedures are being followed.

Key components include periodic field review of inspection teams, periodic bridge inspection
refresher training for program managers and team leaders, and independent review of inspection
reports, NBI data, and computations.

At the Int-AL, review documented procedures for performing QC/QA of inspections, NBI data, and
calculations to verify that the procedures include all NBIS required components.

Verify that established criterion exists for refresher training as part of this metric. Evaluate
adherence to the established criteria by the program manager and team leaders as part of Metrics 2
and 3, respectively.

The QC/QA procedures should include a process to document and confirm that QC/QA procedures
are being followed.

Verify that the information from the QC/QA process is used to maintain a high degree of accuracy
and consistency in the inspection program. For example, if the review process finds a common
coding error on several QA reviews, verify that the corrective action is disseminated (quarterly
meetings, refresher training, memos, etc.) to all inspection teams.

NBIP Metrics Page 62 of 72 ToC


http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bridge/nbis/nbisframework.cfm

Metric #20: Commentary rev 5/1/17

In addition to the QC/QA of owner’s activities, verify that the procedures address the QC/QA of
consultants and/or other agencies that perform inspections or calculations.

Interview personnel responsible for QC and/or QA to determine their level of understanding of the
QC/QA process and if it is effective at maintaining a high degree of accuracy and consistency in the
inspection program. At a minimum, one person should be interviewed, but this number can vary
based upon the size of the program.

Background/ changes for PY 2018: No substantial changes were made to this metric. Minor
clarifications and editorial corrections were made.

NBIP Metrics Page 63 of 72 ToC



Metric #21: Inspection procedures — Critical Findings rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.313 (h) — Follow-up on critical findings

Criteria

Compliance Levels

Assessment Levels (AL)

e A procedure is established to assure that critical findings, as defined in 650.305, are addressed
in a timely manner.

e FHWA is periodically notified of the actions taken to resolve or monitor critical findings.

Population: All bridges identified by State criteria as having an active critical finding at the
time of the last assessment, and any critical findings identified since the last assessment.

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:

e A documented procedure has been established and implemented to assure critical findings are
addressed in a timely manner.

e All critical findings are addressed and documented in accordance with the procedure.

e The period for notifying the FHWA of actions taken is established and followed.

Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:

e A documented State procedure has been established and implemented to assure critical
findings are addressed, but timeframes for addressing critical findings are not clearly defined.

e All critical findings are addressed in accordance with the procedure; isolated instances exist
where documentation of actions taken is incomplete.

e The period for FHWA notification of actions taken is established; FHWA was notified of
critical findings in all but a few isolated instances, and was notified within the established
period in all but a few isolated instances.

Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria are not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

e Monitor PCA if in effect.

e Monitor the periodic notifications to confirm that critical findings are being addressed.

e Verify the status of any critical findings during field reviews of bridges for Metrics 12 and 22.

e Assess based on previous review results and the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness of the
State’s process for addressing critical findings.

Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:

o Verify that the established critical finding procedure meets the requirements of the NBIS.

e Randomly sample bridges and review the bridge files to ensure that actions taken and
documentation were in accordance with the established procedure, and that proper
notifications of critical findings were provided.

e Include some bridges from this metric’s random sample in the Metric 12 and 22 field review
sample, to verify that findings were addressed according to procedures.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

e Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

e National InD-AL — Conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 64 of 72 ToC



Metric #21: Commentary rev 5/1/17

Population: The bridges identified for the Metric 21 population are taken from the State’s periodic
reporting of critical findings to FHWA. This reporting includes critical findings that occurred on
bridges owned by State, local, and other agencies.

Identify the reported bridges in the Sampling Tool to create a population for Metric 21 prior to
developing the field review sites. Additionally, when the NBI data is loaded into the Tool, include in
the Metric 21 population bridges with a condition rating for Items 59-60 or 62 that are less than or
equal to 2 (Critical).

Active critical findings are those in which the owner has not taken or completed action to address
public safety including closure, repair, or replacement of the bridge.

Compliance levels: Timely for this metric is established in the State’s procedure for addressing
critical findings.

Addressed means that the owner has taken actions to protect public safety including closure, repair or
replacement of the bridge.

The critical finding procedure must identify the permissible timeframe from when a critical finding is
identified to when the structural or safety concern is addressed. If the procedure does not identify
timeframes for addressing critical findings, this should be considered SC.

At the Substantial Compliance level, there may be isolated instances where the critical finding has
been properly addressed but the actions taken are not documented. This may include missing
documentation for completed work or failure to close out the critical finding after work is completed.

The maximum suggested interval for periodic FHWA notification is 3 months.

In an isolated instance where a critical finding was not reported to the FHWA pursuant to the policy,
this is considered SC.

Assessment levels: At both the Min and Int-AL, the Sampling Tool will automatically select a target
number of bridges with CFs in the sample for Metrics 12 and 22 field reviews if they exist in the
selected geographic area. See selection criteria on the NBIP SharePoint site for field bridge
selection. If fewer than the target number are available, the reviewer is not expected to go outside of
the geographic area to review additional bridges. At both assessment levels, verify the status of any
additional bridges with CFs that may also have been selected in the field review sample.

Verify the status of the critical finding to identify whether the actions proposed for the critical finding
have been completed such as closure, repair, or replacement of the bridge.

At the Min-AL, monitor the periodic notifications from the State to verify that critical findings are
addressed. Verify throughout the year when the notification is received. If a critical finding is not
being addressed in timely manner, work to address the critical finding and consider reviewing this
metric at the Int-AL in the current or following review year, to further assess the extent of the issue.

At the Int-AL, review files to check that critical findings have adequate documentation to track the
status of the actions proposed and whether they were completed. If a bridge in the random sample is
included based only on having a condition rating < 2, determine whether the bridge should have
qualified under the State criteria as a critical finding. If so, notification should have been provided to
FHWA and the reviewer should determine if this is an isolated occurrence or an indication of a more
widespread issue.

NBIP Metrics Page 65 of 72 ToC



Metric #21: Commentary rev 5/1/17

When performing the review for this metric, consider how critical findings are monitored for bridges
owned by local agencies.

If a critical finding for a bridge does not meet the intent of the NBIS regulation, it can be removed
from the population.

Background for PY 2018: This metric has been revised to include a check for critical findings that
may have not been reported to FHWA, and also to perform field visits of critical finding bridges
selected by the sampling tool.

NBIP Metrics Page 66 of 72 ToC



Metric #22: Inventory — Prepare and Maintain rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.315 (a) — Prepare and maintain an inventory

Criteria

Compliance Levels

Assessment Levels (AL)

e An inventory of all bridges subject to the NBIS is prepared and maintained.
e Data collected is in accordance with that required for the Structure Inventory and Appraisal
(SI&A) sheet.

e Data is recorded according to FHWA procedures and available for collection by FHWA as
requested.

Population: Bridges for the entire State or selected geographic/owner subset that are open to
traffic, and have been inspected since January 1 of the previous calendar year.

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:

e At least 95% of the sampled bridge inventory items reviewed are within the acceptable
tolerances.

e FHWA data checks did not identify any bridges with data errors.

Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:
o At least 90% of the sampled bridge inventory items reviewed are within the acceptable
tolerances.

¢ No errors are identified in the Persistent Error Report, all other errors identified in the other
FHWA Data Checks are resolved within 90 days.

Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria are not met.
Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

e Monitor PCA if in effect.

e Perform field reviews for a LOC of 80%, MOE of 15% sample of bridges or greater to
verify NBI SI&A items with information in the bridge file and actual field conditions for the
SI&A items identified on the Field Review Form. Resolve the safety related checks and
persistent error reports generated during the NBI submittal process.

e Note NBI data errors found during review of other metrics when resolving MARs and other
data, for knowledge and awareness.

Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL:

e Verify NBI SI&A items with information in the bridge file and actual field conditions for an
additional SI&A item group available when generating the Field Review Form, selected based
on the reviewer’s knowledge and awareness of the program.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:
e Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

¢ National InD-AL — Conduct in accordance with national direction and guidelines.

NBIP Metrics Page 67 of 72 ToC



Metric #22: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: Metric 22 assesses the quality of NBI data and should be assessed along with the Metric
12 field reviews. Review and compare the data to the actual site conditions observed by the reviewer
during the field reviews. Metric 12 in part focuses on the four main condition codes and supporting
narrative resulting from the inspection (intentionally excluded from this metric), whereas this metric
assesses other NBI data items associated with the bridge record.

All the NBI data should be as accurate as possible, so even if a small number of errors are found, they
can be corrected.

Acceptable Tolerance is the allowable variance for an NBI item as identified in the NBIP Field
Review Form. These tolerances were developed for the NBIP assessment process based upon safety,
access limitations, and time constraints during the field review and must be used to assess
compliance.

FHWA Data Checks are processed during the annual NBI submittal and sent to the Division and State
by the National Bridge and Tunnel Inventory Engineer in the Office of Bridge Technology. FHWA
Data Checks™* are as follows:
1. National Bridge Inventory File Check — Report generated by FHWA to identify errors when
NBI data is submitted.
2. Safety Related Checks related to bridge closure — Report generated by FHWA to identify
safety related issues. Report criteria:
a. ltem 64 < 2.7 metric tons; item 41 = A, B, P, or R; and item 103 is blank; and
b. Any bridge with item 59 and/or item 60 coded < 2; item 41 = A, B, D, P, or R; and
item 103 is blank.
3. Persistent Error Report — Report generated by FHWA to check for repeat errors over a 3-year
period.

* Some identified errors in these reports are situations which are not covered in the current Coding
Guide (for example, side hill viaducts), or are bridges with low operating ratings values in which the
force effects of all State legal and routine permits are less than the calculated rating. Do not count
such instances as data errors. If this situation occurs, document the reason for each bridge; this will
also help in future year’s reviews.

The Safety Related Checks related to physical posting (Item 64 between 2.7 and 19.9 mT or Item 41
= *B’) are assessed under Metric 14.

If necessary, update the NBI data for the subsequent annual NBI submittal.

Population: The number and selection of the field review bridges is based on a statistical random
sample, consistent with other metrics. The sample is based on criteria built into the Sampling Tool to
ensure selection of bridges with diverse conditions, and other characteristics. Please refer to Metric
12 commentary for a full explanation for field review bridge selection. Some is repeated here for
emphasis.

Reviewing a geographic subset can reduce the amount of travel required, but all subsets for the entire
State must be covered in the 5-year review cycle. The plan for review by subsets must be
documented each year under extent of review in the FSM.

Geographic subsets should include all owning agencies within that subset. Rotation of subsets
around the State in less than 5 years may be advantageous, allowing flexibility to focus the remaining

NBIP Metrics Page 68 of 72 ToC



Metric #22: Commentary rev 5/1/17

year(s) of the cycle on reassessment of certain areas or a statewide sample to gain an overall
perspective.

If an issue of non-compliance is found in one geographic region or other subset, apply the issue to the
State compliance determination, and implement an appropriate PCA. If in the following year a
review is done in a different region yielding no issues, but the PCA for the previous year is not yet
complete, the State is still considered to be in conditional compliance until the PCA is complete and
no other compliance issues have been found.

As with other metrics, when a PCA is complete, an Int-AL review should be completed, either on the
same region that had the compliance issue, for the entire State, or for some other geographic region,
as long as the original region with the issue is included in the current region.

Compliance levels: When calculating the percentage of items which are within tolerance as
identified in the NBIP Field Review Form, divide the total number of items properly coded by total
number of items reviewed.

The following example is for a minimum level field review on 20 bridges, 15 items per bridge, of
which 5 bridges are on the NHS:

NHS Bridges
15 items per bridge x 5 bridges = 75 items

Non-NHS Bridges
13 items per bridge x 15 bridges = 195 items

Percentage of items within tolerance
Total items reviewed = 75 + 195 = 270 items
10 items exceeded allowable tolerances
270 total items - 10 items exceeding tolerance = 260 item coded within tolerance
260/270 *100 = 96% coded within tolerance

In this example, if the items exceeding the allowable tolerance were isolated instances and these
items were corrected, this would be considered C. If any of the miscoded items is a systematic
problem that obviously occurs beyond the field reviewed bridges, such as when one data item is
incorrect for most or all 20 bridges, correct the underlying issue and the data for all bridges before a
determination of C can be assigned. Until all the items are correct, the appropriate compliance
determination is SC.

Data errors found during review of the other metrics represent the quality of the NBI data. When a
significant number of data errors are found, for example in resolving the MARSs, these errors are not a
direct compliance issue for Metric 22, but consider review of such items under an Int-AL in the
current or following year.

Assessment levels: The NBIP Field Review Checklist identifies which items must be reviewed at
the Min-AL for each field reviewed bridge. Each year the items will be rotated, and the current items
will be on the most recent NBIP Field Review Checklist on SharePoint.

NBIP Metrics Page 69 of 72 ToC



Metric #22: Commentary rev 5/1/17

At the Int-AL, in addition to the items identified at the Min-AL, review items from an additional
SI&A Item category as identified on the NBIP Field Review Checklist.

During the field review of each bridge, verify that the NBI data reported to FHWA is properly coded
and reflects conditions in the field. If an item cannot be verified in the field, compare NBI data with
available information in the bridge inspection reports, plans, and other records. An example of an
item that may be difficult to verify in the field is Year Built.

Regardless of the assessment level, review the Persistent Error Report generated during the NBI
submittal process. Errors in this report must be resolved within 30 Days of receipt of the NBI data
acceptance from FHWA HQ.

Background/ changes for PY 2018: Revised this metric to make the selection of field bridges based
on a random sample, to be more consistent with other metrics. Data items to be reviewed will now
be rotated each year.

NBIP Metrics Page 70 of 72 ToC



Metric #23: Inventory — Timely Updating of Data rev 5/1/17

NBIS Reference: 23 CFR 650.315 (a), (b), (¢) & (d) — Updating data in the inventory

e Structure Inventory and Appraisal (SI&A) data is submitted to the FHWA NBI as requested
using FHWA established procedures.

e SI&A data is entered in the State’s inventory within 90 days of the date for State owned
bridges and within 180 days of the date for all other bridges for the following events:
O routine, in-depth, fracture critical member, underwater, damage and special inspections
o existing bridge modifications that alter previously recorded data and for new bridges
o load restriction or closure status

Criteria

Population: Bridges in the entire State.

Compliance (C): All of the following must be met for C:

e SI&A data is submitted to the FHWA NBI by the requested date with no errors preventing
FHWA acceptance of the data.

e State has a process to verify SI&A data is updated in the State inventory within 90/180 days.

e SI&A data reviewed is updated in the State inventory within 90/180 days after inspection,
modification, or change in load restriction.

Substantial Compliance (SC): All of the following must be met for SC:
e SI&A data is submitted to the FHWA NBI within 10 work days of the requested date; errors
preventing acceptance are resolved within 15 work days after notification by FHWA.

e State does not have a process to verify SI&A data is updated in the State inventory within
90/180 days.

o At least 90% of SI&A data reviewed is updated in the State inventory within 90/180 days.
Non-Compliance (NC): One or more SC criteria are not met.

Compliance Levels

Conditional Compliance (CC): Adhering to FHWA approved plan of corrective action (PCA).

Minimum Assessment (Min-AL): Perform all of the following:

e Monitor PCA if in effect.

o Verify SI&A data was submitted to the FHWA NBI and verify any issues identified were
resolved in the specified timeframe.

e Assess based on previous review results and reviewer’s knowledge and awareness of State’s
program.

Intermediate Assessment (Int-AL): In addition to the Min-AL.:

e Assess how State is able to determine if bridge SI&A data is updated in the 90/180 day
timeframes through interview or review of procedures.

e Randomly sample bridges using Int-AL criteria to verify bridge SI&A data is updated in the
90/180 day timeframes.

In-Depth Assessment (InD-AL): Perform one of the following:

e Division InD-AL - In addition to the Int-AL, develop guidelines for review, with concurrence
from BSE, and conduct in accordance with guidelines.

e National InD-AL - Conduct in accordance with established national direction and guidelines.

Assessment Levels (AL)

NBIP Metrics Page 71 of 72 ToC



Metric #23: Commentary rev 5/1/17

General: The 90/180 day requirement for updating SI&A data refers to data entered into the State
inventory. Updated SI&A data should be available in a central location for submittal to FHWA upon
request. The 90/180 day timeframe starts at the completion of the specific activity (inspection, load
rating, etc.). Local agencies must submit the SI&A data changes to the State within 180 days of the
completion of the activity.

Population: To refine the scope of review of the updates to the NBI, review bridges for the entire
State that are open to traffic, and have been inspected since January 1 of the previous calendar year,
for all inspection types, bridge modification types, and capacity status.

Compliance levels: If SI&A data is submitted to the FHWA NBI beyond the requested date but
within 10 work days of the requested date, this is considered SC. Further, if errors in the data prevent
FHWA from accepting that data, but those errors are resolved within 15 work days after FHWA
notifies the State of those errors, this is also considered SC. Track the submittal and re-submittal
dates from the State to determine if this timeline is met.

If bridge records or State policy/procedures do not have a process to verify that SI&A data is updated
in the State inventory within 90/180 days, notify the PM of the finding in writing, and assess the
metric as SC.

At the Int-AL, for the random sample, the metric is assessed on a “per bridge’ basis. If all SI&A data
for the bridge is updated in the 90/180 day timeframes, then the bridge is a positive data point toward
compliance. Conversely, if one or more SI&A data items for the bridge are not updated in the 90/180
day timeframes, then the bridge is a negative data point.

Assessment levels: As identified in the Annual Call for Update of the National Bridge Inventory
memorandum, a State should run the error check on UPACS and address any errors prior to submittal
of the data. Alternatively, an internet version of this error check, NBI Submittal File Check, is
available on FHWA'’s Website at http://www.fhwa.dot.gov\bridge\nbi.htm.

If an unusual circumstance arises and the State requests a time extension beyond the identified
submittal date, the Division must coordinate with the NBI Engineer in the FHWA Office of Bridges
and Structures to determine if a time extension is acceptable and to establish a revised submittal date.

Compliance with the 90/180 day timeframes — at the Int-AL, assess how State is able to determine if
bridge SI&A data is updated in the 90/180 day timeframes by determining if the State has the ability
to verify that data is being updated into the State inventory within 90/180 days of inspection,
modification, or changes in load restrictions. Verify this by interviewing the person responsible for
managing the data or reviewing the relevant procedures.

Background/ changes for PY 2018: This metric has been updated to assess whether the SI&A data
Is submitted to the FHWA NBI in a timely manner through a random sample, instead of assessing the
data from those bridges found as overdue in the frequency metrics.

NBIP Metrics Page 72 of 72 ToC


https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bridge/nbi.cfm

LEGISLATION CONSENT
Rev. 8/5/2022

Resolution #: 77-2022
Introduced by Sam Artino

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PROVIDE CONSENT
AND ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE MUNICIPAL BRIDGE
INSPECTION PROGRAM; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

ODOT Project Title: Municipal Bridge Inspection Program

The following is a Resolution enacted by the Council of the City of Huron, Erie County, Ohio, hereinafter referred
to as the Local Public Agency (LPA).
SECTION I — Project Description

WHEREAS the (LPA) has determined the need for the described project:

Bridge Inspection Program Services, including, but not limited to routine inspections, element level inspections,
critical findings report, fracture critical member inspections, load rating calculations and reports, weight limits
posting sign recommendations, scour assessments, scour plan of actions, development of fracture critical plans, and
underwater dive inspection reports if needed.

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City of Huron (LPA) of Erie County, Ohio.
SECTION 11 — Consent Statement

Being in the public interest, the LPA gives consent to the Director of Transportation to complete the above-
described project.

SECTION 111 — Cooperation Statement

The LPA shall cooperate with the Director of Transportation in the above-described project as follows:

The State shall assume and bear 100% of all the cost for Bridge Inspection Program Services requested by the City
and agreed to by the State. Eligible Bridge Inspection Services are described in the Consultant’s Scope of Services
Task Order Contract (Exhibit A).

The LPA agrees to pay 100% of the cost of those features which are not included in Exhibit A. Those features may
include but not limited to the purchasing and erecting the recommended weight limits postings signs, the

implementation of critical findings reports such as partial or total bridge closures, the implementation of the scour
plan of actions. When recommendations affect public safety, ODOT expects full implementation by the municipality

ODOT - Municipal Bridge Inspection Program



As of October 2019, FHWA requires installing weight limits posting signs within 30 days from the official date of
the approved recommendations. Timely implementation is essential to the success of this program.

SECTION IV - Utilities and Right-of-Way Statement

The LPA agrees that all right-of-way required for the described project will be made available in accordance with
current State and Federal regulations.

SECTION V - Project Duration and Consent Applicability

The Project is based on the available funds provided by ODOT aimed at assisting the LPA in reaching compliance
with State and Federal laws and policies for bridge inspection. The Project specifics (program duration, PID
number, and consultant scope of services (Exhibit A)) shall be provided to the designated LPA Contractual Agent
via email sent by ODOT Office of Structural Engineering (OSE).

ODOT will seek additional funds to renew the project in future years. If such funds are allocated, ODOT will send
an email with the Project specifics to the designated LPA Contractual Agent seeking approval for the new Project.
ODOT will not proceed with any Project that does not have written authorization via email from the designated LPA
Contractual Agent.

SECTION VI - Authorization of Project

The City Manager of the City of Huron is hereby empowered on behalf of the LPA to provide written authorization
via email to the Director of Transportation to complete the above-described project and any renewals.

Passed:

Attested: , City Manager
(Clerk) (Contractual Agent of LPA — title)

Attested:

Monty Tapp, Mayor

The Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure to expedite the highway project and to promote
highway safety. Following appropriate legislative action, it shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its
passage and approval, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

ODOT - Municipal Bridge Inspection Program



CERTIFICATE OF COPY
STATE OF OHIO

City of Huron (LPA), of Erie County, Ohio

I, Terri S. Welkener, as Clerk of Council for the City of Huron (LPA) of Erie County, Ohio, do hereby
certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 77-2022 adopted by the legislative Authority
of the said City of Huron on the 13" day of September, 2022. That the publication of such Resolution No. 77-2022
has been made and certified of record according to Law; that no proceedings looking to a referendum upon such
Resolution have been take; and that such Resolution and certificate of publication thereof are of record in __N/A.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed my official seal, if applicable,

this___ day of September, 2022.

Terri S. Welkener, Clerk of Council
City of Huron (LPA)
Erie County, Ohio

(CITY SEAL)

(If the LPA is designated as a City then the “City Seal” is required. If no Seal, then a letter stating “No Seal is required to accompany the
executed legislation.)

The foregoing is accepted as a basis for proceeding with the project herein described.

For the of County, Ohio.
(LPA)

Attested: Date
(Contractual Agent)

For the State of Ohio

Attested: Date
(Director, Ohio Department of Transportation)

ODOT - Municipal Bridge Inspection Program



CITY OF

RURCN

TO: Mayor Tapp and City Council

FROM: Stuart Hamilton , Service Director

RE: Resolution No. 78-2022 (submitted by Stuart Hamilton)
DATE: September 13, 2022

Subject Matter/Background

Resolution 2022-78 requests authorization for Contract Modification No. 1 from OHM Advisors relating to the
Cleveland Road East Sidewalk Extension Project for additional engineering design services. These additional
design services arise from an expansion of the scope of the project to include installation of a sidewalk on the
south side of Cleveland Road East from Lincoln Avenue to the water tower. Adding this additional stretch of
sidewalk will make it possible for children to get to Shawnee Elementary School without having to cross Cleveland
Road East more than once. Services to be provided include additional topographic survey work and construction
document preparation.

Resolution No. 51-2022 adopted on May 10, 2022 (copy attached as Exhibit 1) authorized engineering design
services, estimating and project award assistance in an amount not to exceed $53,300.00. This Change Order No.
1in the amount of $7,500.00 will bring the total engineering design costs for the Project to $60,000.00. Huron
Township has committed to contributing funds for 50% of these design fees.

Financial Review

The City will continue to utilize Fund 401 (capital improvement fund) to fund the project, which has a sufficient
fund balance to cover the change order.

Legal Review
The matter has been reviewed, follows normal legislative procedure, and is properly before you.

Recommendation
If Council is in agreement with the request, a motion adopting Resolution No. 78-2022 is in order.

Resolution No. 78-2022 OHM CO #1 2022 Gateway East Sidewalk Project.doc
Resolution No. 78-2022 Exhibit A.pdf


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1551667/Resolution_No._78-2022_OHM_CO__1_2022_Gateway_East_Sidewalk_Project.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1551668/Resolution_No._78-2022_Exhibit_A.pdf

RESOLUTION NO. 78-2022
Introduced by Joe Dike

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 51-2022, ADOPTED MAY 10, 2022,
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT CONTRACT MODIFICATION
NO. 1 FROM OHM ADVISORS FOR ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING DESIGN
SERVICES RELATING TO THE CLEVELAND ROAD EAST SIDEWALK
EXTENSION PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED SEVEN THOUSAND
FIVE HUNDRED AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($7,500.00).

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO:

SECTION 1. The City Manager shall be, and here hereby is, authorized and directed to
accept Change Order No. 1 from OHM Advisors to reflect the additional engineering design
services related to the Cleveland Road East Sidewalk Extension Project in an amount not to
exceed Seven Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($7,500.00), which Change Order No.
1 shall be in substantially the form of Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof.

SECTION 2. That this Council hereby finds and determines that all formal actions
relative to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council and that
all deliberations of this Council and of its Committees, if any, which resulted in formal action,
were taken in meetings open to the public in full compliance with applicable legal requirements,
including O.R.C. §121.22.

SECTION 3. That this Resolution shall go into effect, and be in full force and effect,
immediately upon its passage.

Monty Tapp, Mayor

ATTESTED:

Clerk of Council

ADOPTED:




OHM

ARCHITECTS. ENGINEERS. PLANNERS. Advancing Communities
September 7, 2022

City of Huron

Stuart Hamilton, Service Director

417 Main Street

Huron, OH 44839

RE: Cleveland Road East Walk Extension — Contract Modification
Location: City of Huron
Proposal #22129A

Dear Mr. Hamilton:

The following scope of services, price proposal, and project schedule which represent our understanding of the
project, based upon prior discussions, meetings, and/or additional project information made available at the time
of this proposal. Should you have any questions, please let us know.

Proposal Outline
Proposal OULNE ...
Project UNderStanding ..ottt
Scope of Services - Information Gathering Tasks .......cccoeviiiiiiiiiiii s
Scope of Services - ENGINEEIING TASKS.....vuevieiieciiciicriccce e
PLICE PLOPOSAL...nieiieiiiii e
Anticipated Project SChEdUle ...
Clarifications and ASSUMPLONS ....cc.vueerieeeieerrieeirieeerieetsiee et seae sttt eae s ese e eae e ees e ese e eae e ess e easseesesessssensesensssensesenas
Client RESPONSIDIITIES ...uvvuviivsiesieiiciiiiiit e
Standard Terms & CoNAItIONS. ... bbb ss b

Sincerely,
OHM Advisors Authorization to Proceed

AN

Chad M. Lewis, PE, Project Manager Signature Date
Chad.lewis@ohm-advisors.com
D: 216.865.1345 C: 216.644.3987

/2“( Z% Printed Name Title

Russell Critelli, PE, PMP
Principal/Manager of Cleveland
Russ.critelli@ohm-advisors.com
D: 216.865.1339

OHM Adyvisors®
6001 EUCLID AVENUE SUITE 130
CLEVELAND OHIO 44103 T 216.865.1335 OHM-Advisors.com



Project Understanding

The referenced project modification will install a 5-foot-wide concrete walk along the south side of Cleveland
Road East from Lincoln Avenue to the water tower, approximately 600 lineal feet. Curb ramps with ADA
detectable warning pads will be installed at roadway crossings.

Scope of Services - Information Gathering Tasks

Task #2A Topographic Survey (Additional)
e The following services are included in the fee shown:

o Limits of Survey: Cleveland Road East (US 6) from Lincoln Avenue to the water tower
= Approximately 600 LF
= Crown of pavement to South right of way line of Cleveland Road East, plus 15 feet

o Property Owner Notification Letter
=  Right of Entry per O.R.C. 163.03 & O.R.C. 5517.01
®  Mailed to record owners 48 hours in advance of field work

o Project Control and Benchmarks:
= GPS Site Control Points: Ohio State Plane Coordinate System, North Zone, (2011)
= Vertical Benchmarks: North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD 88)

o Existing Centerline and Right of Way — Monumentation Recovery:
= Research and analysis of existing tax maps, deeds, plats, and surveys
* Thorough field reconnaissance and recovery of existing centerline and right of way

monuments

o Field Survey and Base-Mapping
»  Existing Conditions Survey

e Topographic & Planimetric Features
o Curb, walk, drive, and pavement locations and material
o Existing building and structure locations
o0 Vegetation: Trees (larger than 12” in wooded areas), stumps, shrubs, flower

beds, wood lines, and landscaped areas

e Located using ODOT field codes

Existing Utilities (gas, electric, telephone, water, storm, or sanitary sewer, etc.)

e Field observation: Lines marked by OHIO811 (OUPS) Utility Members, utility
poles, overhead wites, valves, hydrants, pull boxes, cleanouts, drainage and sewer
structures and inverts

e Record Plan Information
o Obtained from provided construction or as-built drawings.

o Obtained from design OUPS ticket
o0 Scaled and “best-fit” into the survey base map
= Existing Sewer Network

e Flowline elevations and connectivity of existing storm and sanitary structures
and pipes
= Existing Surface
e Based on spot elevations and break lines (crown/edge of pavement, curb lines,
top/toe of slopes, drainage swales, retaining walls etc.)

OHM Adyvisors®
6001 EUCLID AVENUE SUITE 130
CLEVELAND OHIO 44103 T 216.865.1335 OHM-Advisors.com



Exclusions:
1. Resolution of individual property lines or any right of way plan development necessary for temporary or
permanent easements is not include in this survey estimate.
2. A bridge survey and/or stream cross sections are not included in this survey estimate.
3. Physical excavation and/or verification of buried utilities are not included in this sutvey estimate.

Deliverables: Existing Conditions Basemaps (BE001.dwg & BR001.dwg) provided in an AutoCAD Civil 3D 2018
for use in design.

Scope of Services - Engineering Tasks

Task #60A Construction Documents (Additional)

e The following services are included in the fee shown:
o Additional, and updates to, Construction Documents shall be as follows:
= Title Sheet
= Schematic Plan
= Typical Sections
=  Maintenance of Traffic Notes and Plan
= General Summary
= Subsummaries
= Plan Sheets
= Cross Section Sheets
o Design will include all details and specifications required for public bidding of a unit price
contract, in accordance with industry standards.
o Submit final plans to public and private utilities, ODOT, Huron Township, and the City of
Huron.

Price Proposal

# Information Gathering Tasks Fee
Task #2.4 Topographic Survey (Additional) $ 1,600
Subtotal = § 1,600

# Engineering Tasks Fee
Task #60.A4 Construction Documents (Additional) $ 5,900
Subtotal = $ 5,900
Grand Total = $ 7,500

OHM Advisors®

6001 EUCLID AVENUE SUITE 130
CLEVELAND OHIO 44103 T 216.865.1335 OHM-Advisors.com



Anticipated Project Schedule

Information Gathering Tasks:  September 2022
Engineering Tasks: October 2022 through December 2022

*Project schedule may become dependent on project partner(s) administrative requirements, i.e., ODOT, MPO, Township,
ete.

Clarifications and Assumptions

e Our Proposal was prepared based on the following assumptions:

o Ifadditional labor effort or change in schedule is required beyond described herein, OHM Advisors
will negotiate an amendment with the City of Huron. OHM Advisors will not proceed with
additional services without written authorization to proceed from the City of Huron.

o Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Scope of Services as described herein.
Additional meetings, not described within our Scope of Services, shall be considered additional
services, and will be billed on an hourly basis under the Additional As-Needed Services Allowance
upon agreement with the City of Huron.

Client Responsibilities

e City of Huron will provide a single point of contact to OHM Advisors who is knowledgeable about the
project needs and desired outcomes

o  City of Huron will provide the following, if available, to assist us with the project: (provide appropriate list
as pet your project/discipline. examples follow:) prior as-builts and existing plans, plat maps, site surveys
indicating site boundaries, exiting topography, access to structures, easements and utility line information,
utility availability, building information, etc.

Standard Terms & Conditions

The Standard Terms and Conditions contained in the Annual Engineer contract per resolution number 5-2021,
shall also apply to this contract.

OHM Adyvisors®
6001 EUCLID AVENUE SUITE 130
CLEVELAND OHIO 44103 T 216.865.1335 OHM-Advisors.com



	City Council Agenda
	Huron-679-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-679-2019 - Ordinance No. 2022-48 HPP City Manager Purchase Power.doc
	Huron-690-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-690-2019 - Ordinance No. 2022-50 City Mgr Auth for Signs and Use of Public Property.docx
	Huron-690-2019 - Ordinance No. 2022-50 Exhibit A Chapter 121.pdf
	Huron-690-2019 - Ordinance No. 2022-50 Exhibit B Chapter 131.pdf
	Huron-690-2019 - Ordinance No. 2022-50 Exhibit C Chapter 159.pdf
	Huron-686-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-686-2019 - Resolution No. 76-2022 St Peter Fun Run Banner.docx
	Huron-686-2019 - Resolution No. 76-2022 Exhibit A St Peter Fun Run Banner.pdf
	Huron-688-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-688-2019 - Resolution No. 2022-77 Exhibit 1 ODOT Bridge Inspections.pdf
	Huron-688-2019 - Resolution No. 2022-77 Exhibit 2 ODOT Bridge Inspections.pdf
	Huron-688-2019 - Resolution No. 77-2022 ODOT Bridge Inspections.doc
	Huron-691-2019 - Cover Page
	Huron-691-2019 - Resolution No. 78-2022 OHM CO #1 2022 Gateway East Sidewalk Project.doc
	Huron-691-2019 - Resolution No. 78-2022 Exhibit A.pdf



